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24(1) 

Independent Auditor's Report 

r;: Q! 
To the Members of J 
Canadian Hockey Association o/a (operating as) Hockey da 

We have audited the accompanying financial state of Canadian Hockey Association o/a 
(operating as) Hockey Canada, which comprise t e lance sheet as at June 30, 2011, the 
statements of operations, changes in fund balan 1fid cash flows for the year then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies an th explanatory information, 

_j) 

Management's Resptmstbtltty for the Fina cial Statements 

Management is responsfble for the pre ration and fair presentation of these financial 
statements fn accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such 
internal control as management deter ines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material fsstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express pinion on these f inancial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in acct!r a c with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we ly with ethical l'equirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assuran bout whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. t;t 
An audit involves rf ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the cial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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• 

• 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Canadian Hockey Association o/ a (operating as) Hockey canada. as at June 30, 2011 
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted ac;counting principles. 

24(1) 

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Waterloo, Ontario 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

June 30 

Assets 

Current 
Cash and treasury bills (Note 2) 
Accow:,ts receivable 
Receivabtc:- rrom funds (Note 3} 
Bre3 ka way invcotOf)I 
Prepaid e~penses 

LotllL·tenn investments (Note 4) 
Capital ~ssets (tlote 5) 

Uabllltles and Fund Balances 

curr,mt 
Accounts payable and accrued llabfl1tle, (H<>te 12) 
Payable to funds (Note 3) 
DeferTcd contrfbllrions, operati~ jNote 6) 

O.fe1Ted contributions re!Ated to a,p~al assets (Note 7) 
Other llabilltfes and resorves 

Fund bi1Ll!llC9• 
lnt~lly r,esl/icted 
Unrestooed 

19(1) and 24(1) 

Operating fund 

$ 6,133,FO s 
2,285,789 
1,300,559 

517,176 
515,388 

s $ 

n .osz.ol~ s 
ry 1,539,-471 

5,591 ,508 

116,294 

6,407,802 

1,17-4,891: 
8,340,169 

9,515,060 

Health Benefit 
Trust 

1, 1 ◄9,2◄7 s 
37,9◄5 

1,117,192 

3,509, 14◄ 

◄ 696 336 $ 

774,lSS S 
126,033 

900, l-18 

9nO, Jlll 

3,79!1,948 

$ IS 922 862 $ _ 4 696 

19(1) and 24(1) 

tegral. part of these ffnancial. statements . • 

~ 
CANAD.A 

Balance Sheet 

National 
Egui~fund 

2,179,005 $ 
U,955 

2,192,960 

13,3411,02. 

15 .5◄1. 392 s 

232,604 $ 
391,060 

10','ZS0,000 

10·,87],664 

◄,667,721 

Pillars 

. s 

39,0113,611 

39 083 6 11 $ 

$ 
783,466 

783,466 

783,466 

38,300,151 

38,300,152 

2011 

Total 

9,462,022 
2,337,689 

' 1,300,559 
517,176 
585,3811 

1◄,203,53◄ 

59,0◄9,◄18 
1,991,186 

75 2+4 208 

5,05.'l,996 
'1 ,300,559 
1,539,471 

1 ,899,026 

8 16, 294 
10,250,000 

_ 18,965,320 

47,9311,71<} 
_8,!40, 169 

56,273,Sa& 

s 

s 

s 

$ 39 083 618 $ 75 24-4 208 S 

19(1) and 24(1) 
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2010 

Total 

21 ,301,489 
5,122,652 

10,154, 161 
518, 122 
642,512 

37,738,936 

41,362,639 
2,41,(),308 

81 561 683 

9,158,621 
10,154,161 

1,368,677 

20,681,459 

690,494 
'9,650,000 

31,221,'iSJ 

45,302,747 
5,037,183 

50,339,930 

81 561 883 



For the year ended June 30 

Fund balance, beginning ,of the year 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures fore the 
year 

rnterfund transfers (Note 8) 

Unrealized change In market value of investments duri 
the year (Note 9) 

Fund balance, end or the year 

s 

s 

331,918 

1TT,922 

• 
Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

Benefit Trust 

CANADA 

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances 

Natlona'l 
E ul Fund 

Pillars 
Schedule 

2011 2010 

Total Total 

S 2,992,437 $ 4,131,802. $ 36,608,695 S 50,339})30 $ 39,243,495 

543.799 (51,104) 

3 ,536,236 4,080,698 

259,712 587,030 

648,498 

37,Z57,193 

(331, 918) 

1,374,.817 

3 ,1il9 ,417 10,857,712 

53,879,347 50,101,207 

2,399,541 238.77.3 

9 ,515,060 $ 3,795,948 $ 4,667,728 $ 38,300,.152 $ 56,278,888 $ 50,339,930' 



. ---- ·----- . ------------------------------------------------------~ 

Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

~ 
CANADA 

Statement of Operations 

for t he year ended June 30 201 1 2010 

Operating Health National Pillars Total Total 
Fund Benefit Trust Eguity Fund 

Revenue 
Funding (Note 10) $ 5,065,,517 $ - s - s - $ 5,065,517 s 6,690,085 
Marketing (Note t 3) 12,402,843 12,402,843 14,702,743 
Development 2,153,207, 2,153,207 1,897, ln 
Hockey resource centre 1,75&,926 ~ 1,758,926 1,sn,01s 
National events and camps 1,389,785 1 ,389,785 1,79.5,598 
High performance 1,317,785 1,317,785 1,191,311 
International event hosting Q<::;, 25,117,661 
Olympics 1,739,977 
investment and interest income 17 . ' 6 125,737 547, 845 1,583,483 2,431,431 1,303,580 
Administration 1,5 . 7 1,557 ,877 1,360,378 
Member services 2, 66 2 ,545', 166 2,515,346 
Foundation events 1 40 15,347 1,612.,387 2,026,685 
Insurance premiums 3,887,904 8,762,284 12,650,188 12,676,630 

4,013,641 9,325,476 1,583,483 44,885,112 74,596,241 

Expendihlrm () Funding 367,157 n1, 1s1 456, 13:Z 
Marl(etin11 2,017,769 2,017,769 2,839,339 
Development 1,374,330 2,783,535 2,56S,S9-7 
Hockey resource centre 640,438 640,438 8,54,051 
National events and camps 2,096,643 2 ,096,643 1,771,485 
High perfonnance 

\ 
6·,268,756 r : 6,268,756 6,548,224 

International event hosting H,,182,482 
Olympics 6,500,038 
Administration 9,912,407 385,402 412,415 780, 137 11,490,361 10,821,265 
Custodial fees 

~ 
10,404 60,541 154,848 225,793 168,852 

Member servkes 1,541 ,801 e-- 1,541,801 1, 194,6n 
Information services 786,429 786,429 638,210 
Foundation events 1,548,154 1,,!)'18,154 1,967,237 
lns11rance premiums 1,556,960 .S,817, 2.25 1 ,434.185 7,6H,275 
,Insurance claims 

() 
1,527,480 2,617, t'M 4,144,674 3,603,665 

27,564, 2811 • 3,469,842 9,376,580 934 ,985 41 ,345,695 63,738,529 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue ov ndfture.s for the 
· ear- s 2,398 2::?~ s 543,799 $ 51. 104 s 648,498 s 3,539,417 $ 10, 857,712 

ooopo6 



• Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey.Canada 

<.I 
For the year ended June 30 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year 
Items not involving cash 

Amortization of capital assets 
Amortization of deferred contributions 

related to capital assets 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 

Cash flows from investing act · 
Purchase of capital assets 
Purchase of investmeotg 

eye~r 

Cash, end of year 

s 

CANAOA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

2011 

~ 
~<::) 3,539,417 

0 382,592 

~ (74,200) hJ 179 124 

y 4,026,933 

(92,594) 
(15,287,308) 

(15,379,902) 

(11,839,467) 

21,301,489 

2010 

$ 10,857,712 

317, 522 

(74,207) 

11,101,027 

(3,727,297) 
184,506 
805,823 

4,316,918 
(1,128,952) 

(196,236) 
(19,211,815) 

(19,408,051) 

(7,856,026) 

29,157,515 

$ 9,462,022 $ 21,301,489 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements. 
7 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<, 
CAN A DA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Consistent GAAP 

Nature of Business 

~ 
Fund Accounting ~ 

~~ 

~~~ 
~ g 

() 

The accounting policies of th anization are in accordance 
with Canadian generally a pted accounting principles 
applied on a basis consist~lth that of the preceding year. 
Outlined below are tho policies considered particularly 
significant. () 

The organization is stered Canadian Amateur Athletic 
Association incorpo without share capital under the laws 
of Canada. The iation carries on operations for the 
express purpose o mproving and enhancing the growth and 

key in Canada. 

The Organi · ,( follows the restricted fund method of 
accounting. 

The O ating Fund accounts for the costs of programs, 
a{lminist tive and other operating expenditures of the 
Association funded by fees, funding agencies, sponsorships 
an ther general income. 

ealth Benefit Trust Fund was established in 1988 to 
ovide supplementary medical and dental coverage during 

HA sanctioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses 
·s reviewed regularly by the Association to ensure financial 
risk is minimized. 

The National Equity Fund balance has been accumulated as a 
precaution against judgments that may be made against the 
Association as a result of current or future claims. The 
Association is currently involved in defending legal actions 
resulting from accidents and injuries involved in CHA play. 
Provision has been made for estimated settlements and 
professional fees related to these actions. This provision is 
reviewed regularly by the Association throughout the year to 
ensure that financial risk is minimized. 

8 
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• 
June 30 2011 

Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

4# 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The Pillars are internally restricted funds which include The 
Growth Fund, Facilities Funi, anch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabilization F nd the International Event 
Hosting Support Fund . These els are to be used as follows: 

II, 
Growth Fund is to be d, as determined by the Board 
of Directors, for the elopmept of hockey in Canada. 

f acilities Fund is e used to support current office 
structures in .Wing and to review other initiatives 1 regarding fad~ across the country. 

~ - Branch ~~ rt Fund is to be use to ensure the 
~ , organiz 10~ an support Branches fot initiatives that are 
~ ~ nation i scope, but require delivery at the Branch 

level, 

(f> ~ fr'>,:_ In ance Rate Stabilizatlon Fund is to be used to ensure 
~ <:::::f} ~ fut e insurance rate increases are buffered by this fund. 

~ ~<::J nternational Event Hosting Support Fund is to be used to 'VJ M upport the organization's hosting of international 
vents. 

Inventory 4 ventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
alue. Cost Is generally determined on the first-in, first-out 

basis. 

Capital Assets tl Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulate<l 

() 

amortization. Amortization based on the estimated useful life 

Revenue Recognition 

of the asset Is calculated as follows: 

Computer equipment · 3 year straight line basis 
Leasehold improvements straight-line over the term of 

the lease 
Office equipment · 5 year straight line basis 

Amortization is not taken in the year of acquisition. 

Restricted contributions related to general operations are 
recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year In 
which the related expenses are incurred . All other restricted 
contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate 
restricted fund. 

9 



Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

June 30 2011 

Contributed Materials ft 
Services 

C0G 
Income Taxes ~ 
Foreign Currency 
Translation 

g 
() 

Use of Estimates 

<., 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the 
Operating Fund in the year, ived or receivable if the 
amount to be received can reasonably estimated and 
collection is reasonably ass . In certain instances, the 
Association receives fund#-O",eJTI the federal government and 
other supporters to o~fs t '!pecific expenses. When these 
funds are received pri Incurring the related expenses, 
they are shown as defe contributions. · 

Volunteers contrib many hours per year to assist the 
organization in c ng out Its service deUy~ry activities. 
Beca1.1se of th 1 ficulty of determining their fair value, 
contributed rv es are not recognized in the financial 
statements. o ibuted materials are not (ecognlzed in the 
financial st · ents unless they would normally be purchased 
by the organization and their fair market value can be 
ascerta· ed. 

The org nization claims an exemption for income tax 
l)U oses as a Registered Canadian Amateur Athletic 
Ass latlon. Accordingly, no provision for Income taxes has 

made in these financial statements. 

oreign currency accounts are translated into Canadian 
dollars as follows: 
At tile transaction date, each asset, liability, revenue and 
exp~nse is translated into Canadian dollars by the use of the 
exchange rate in effect at that date. At the year end date, 
monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian 
dollars by using the exchange rate In effect at that date. The 
resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are included in 
income in the current period. 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from management's best estimates as 
additional Information becomes available in the future. 
Significant estimates were required in the valuation of 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

10 
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• Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

.t, 
June 30 2011 

Financial Instruments 

c;:A NA DA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Unless otherwise noted, it is, gement's opinion that the 
organization is not exposed to , ficant Interest, currency or 
credit risks arising from its fin al instruments. 

11, 

All transactions relate~ to 1 ncial instruments are recorded 
on a sett le ment date ~ s. The fair values of financial 
instruments are deter ll! using published price quotations, 
where applicable.Umr tion costs relating to all financial 
instruments are exp d as incurred. 

The organiz~tio ssifies its financial instruments into one 
of the follow· ate gories based on the purpose for which 
the asset w a ufred. The organization's accounting policy 
for each ca o is as follows: 

Held-for-tradin 
This ca gory is comprised of cash a nd cash equivalents. They 
are car · d in the statement of financial position at fair value 
with changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of 
Op tions. 

1 ble-for-sale 
hi category is comprised of long-term investments. They are 
arried on the balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair 

value r-ecognized in the Statement of Changes in Fund 
Balances. 

l oans and receivables 
This category includes accounts receivable. They are initially 
recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at 
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method, less 
any provision for impairment. 

Other financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities includes all financial liabilities and 
are comprised of accounts payable and accrued liabilities and 
other liabilities and reserves. These liabilities are init ially 
recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at 
amort ized cost using the effective interest rate method . 

11 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<I 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2011 

2. 

Accounting Framework 

Cash and Treasury Bills 

For the year ends beginning olfter January 1, 2012, Not-
for-Profit Organizations will the option of adopting 
either International financia porting Standards (IFRS) or 
GAAP for Not-for-Profit Or@Qfzations. The existing standards 
in the CICA Handboog.--Attounting will continue to be 
available until 2012, a ich tirne they will cease to be 
authoritative source anadian GAAP for Not-for-Profit 
Organizations. Acior · , an organization that wishes to 
adopt GAAP for No r-Profit Organizations will be able to 
adopt the stand early. The organization is currently 
monitoring cha g to the standards to determine the 
potential imp its non-consolidated finar:icial statements. 

V) 

~) ~ \ 2011 2010 

Cash $ 7,339,599 $ 21,301,489 
Dual currency deposit ~ming interest 

~ at 4.17%, maturing July 2011 1,932,140 
1.3% GIC, maturing November 201 190,283 

~<n) s 9,462,022 s 21,301,489 

The organization's bank a nts are held at one chartered bank and earn interest at a rate 
of bank prime less 2.05 w a certain accoun~ requiring a minimum average balance of 
$3,000,000 be malnta e . Th~ prime rate at June 30, 2011 was 3.00%. Bank balances 
Include $1 ,161,934 inated in U.S. dollars converted to $1,138,219 Canadian. The 
organization has a n of credit of $1,000,000 at a rate of bank prime and it is secured by a 
general securitY. g ement. At June 30, 2011, the organization had undrawn credit 
capacity of S 1, 0, 0 under this facility. 

3. Rece ivable From Funds/ Payable To Funds 

The interfund balances are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

12 
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• Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<I 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2011 

4. Long-Term Investments 

5. 

Cash and money market funds (Effective rate 1%-2%) (} 
Bond funds ~ 

~~~~~~!te bonds a'f;j g 
Market value V 

2011 

$ 1, 834,021 $ 
25,903,586 
28,006,628 

3,305,253 

2010 

1,969,183 
21,077,154 
16,711,015 

1,605,287 

$59,049,488 $ 4t,362,639 

Corporate bonds have effective rates ran rom 3.10% to 6.25% and mature between July 
2011 and December 2019. Bond funds had an average rate of return of 4 .84%. 

% 
5 

CapUal Assets ~!,._ <:: /4 
2011 2010 

£5)~ a Accumulated Accumulated 
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization 

Computer equipment $ 519,647 $ 227,894 s 1,836,841 s 1,311,661 
Leasehold irnproveme 3',616,499 1,940,652 3,642,713 1,816,489 
Office equipment 31,716 18,130 445,662 336,758 

Net book value() 

s 4,177,862 $ 2, 186,676 s 5,925,216 s 3,464,908 

s 1,991 , 186 s 2,460,308 

During the year, the organization recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
$382,592 (2010 -S317,522). 

13 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<I 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2011 

6. Deferred Contributions - Operations I 
Deferred contributions, operations relate to restricted Q~ atin_g funding received in the 
current period that is related to expenses that will be- in red in the subsequent period. 

Changes in the deferred contributions balance re the Operating Fund are as 
follows: o~ {/ 2011 2010 

Balance, beginning of year () $ 1,368.671 s 2,497,629 
Contributions received 115391471 1,2651261 

» 2,908,148 3,762,890 
Recognized to revenue \ (1,368,677) (2,394,213) 

Balance, end of year ) <:: $ 1,539,471 s 1,368,677 

7. Deferred Contributions -

Deferred contribution 
Association renov 
amortized using 

ated to capital assets are restricted contributions with which the 
the Canadian Hockey Centre in Calgary, Alberta and are being 

aight-line method over 25 years. 

Changes in the red contriputlons related to capital assets are as follows: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Recognized to revenue 

Balance, end of year 

201 1 2010 

$ 890,494 $ 
(74,200) 

$ 816,294 $ 

964,701 
(74,207) 

890,494 

14 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

-.t., 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2011 

8. lnterfund Transfers " 

Transfers from the International Pillar were as foltows:~ 1-000 was transferred to the 
Facilities Pntar; $2,864,000 to the 8: nch Support Pit";/'j<J",331 , 918 to Operations. 

9. Unrealized Change tn Market Vi).lue of lnvestme 

Unrealized changes in the market value of ~2!8· erm investments classified as "Available for 
Sale" are recognized as a direct adjustmel'}r._~~ e Statement of Changes in Fund Balances. 
The adjustment of Sl,399,541 (2010 - S23 ,7 represents the unrealized change in market 
value of long-term investments during the r ended June 30, 201 1. 

10. Government Assistance 

The general operating grants fro 
fiscal year to which they appl • 

Governments and funding agencies are recorded in the 
al funding received during the fiscal year was $3,768,500 

(2010 · $5,129,000). 

4 
11. Commitments (j -t=rr~ 

Subsequent to Jfat end, the organization 
approximately ~ ,000 to $4,000,000. 

committed to purchasing capital assets of 

15 
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Canadian Hockey AssociaUon o/a Hockey Canada 

.ti 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2011 

12. Related Party Transactions 

Hockey Canada exercises significant influence over the Ho Canada Foundation and the 
Canadian Hockey Foundation U.S. (the Foundations) by vJ}tl!e of its sharing of premises and 
administrative support. The Foundations were estabrlshed as registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey Can and of other organizations in the 
country with objectives similar to Hockey Canada. 

Transactions with Hockey Canada Foundation and 

Donations to the Foundations 
Hockey Canada Foundation 
Canadian Hockey Foundation U.S. 

Grants received from the Foundat' ns 

Hockey Canada Foundation yable (()) ~ 

Hockey Canada Foundat , ~ ~ 
Canadian Hockey Fou tlon U.S. ~ 

() ~~ 

13. Value in Kind 

Sponsorship revenue includes value in kind of $1,317,747. 

201 1 

$ 1,098,054 s 
802 

$ 1,098,856 s 

s 392,955 $ 

$ 659,585 $ 
1,356 

$ 660,941 $ 

2010 

1,212,137 
5,563 

1,217,700 

706,100 

924,275 
1,448 

925,723 

16 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

-ti. 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2011 

14. Capital Risk Management 

The Organization's objectives when managing capital are 
ability to continue as a going concern. Capital is defineg>, 

afeguard the Organization's 
e Organization as all general 

and internally restricted funds. 

The Operating Fund's objective is to provide working al for the Organization's operating 
expenses. Deposits and withdrawals to this fund are inistered by management and are 
authorized by Board passage of the annual operati udget. 

The Health Benefit Trust Fund is determined b he Board and its objective is to provide 
supplementary medical and dental coverage ~ · g CHA sanctioned activities.. 

The National Equity f und is determined b t Board and its objective i s to provide against 
future judgements that may be made agalflst the Organization as a result of current or 
future claims. 

The Growth Fund Is determined by e Board and its objective is to be used for the 
developmeQt of hockey in Canada. 

The Facilities Fund's objective is 
and to review other initiatives 

be used t o support current office structures in planning 
d the country. 

The Branch Fund's objectlv 
for initiat ives that are na · 

to be used to ensure the organization can support Branches 
in scope. 

The Insurance Rate Sta · ation Fund's objective is to ensure future insurance rate increases 
are buffered. 

nt Hosting Support Fund's objective is to help support the hosting of 

The Organizat, is in compliance with its externally imposed capital requirements. The 
Organization's overall strategy with respect to capital risk management remains unchanged 
from the year ended June 30, 2010. 

17 
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For the year ended June 30 

Fund balance, beginning of the year $ 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures for the year 

Unrealized change In ma~et value of 
investments during the year 

Int er-fund transfe~ (Note 8) 

Fund balance, end of U1e year $ 

Growth Fund 

10,000,011 $ 

40◄,9S5 

Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<I 
C AN A DA 

Schedule of Activity for the Pillars Fund 

2011 

Branch Support Insurance Rate lntematlonal. Total 
Fund Stablllzatlon Fund Event Hostfng 

Support fund 

. 7,109 $ 7,136,564 $ 5,279,832 $ 11,935,.179 $ 36,608,695 

0 321,225 77,62.3 218,572. (373.,877) 648,498 

304,564 37S,9•28 256,564 108,.082 1,374,877 
2,743,000 2,864,000 (5,938,918) (331,918) 

8,625,898 s 10,454,115 s 5-, 754;'968 $ Z,730,466 $ 38,300, 1'52 
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24(1) 

. :.I • 

lnd_ependent Auditor's Report 

~ QI 
To the Members of () J 
Canadian Hockey Association o/a (operating as) Hockey Ca 

We have audlt~d the accompanying financial statem of Canadian Hockey Assocjatlon o/ a 
(operat ing as) Hockey Canada, which comprise t lance sheet as at June 30, 2012, the 
statements of operations, changes in fund balanc a cash flows for the year then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and e explanatory fnformation. 

Management's Responslbl(ity for the Finan lat Statements 

Management is responsible for the prep ation and fair presentation of these fina.ndal 
statements in accordance with Canadian generally acce pted accoonting principles, and for such 
internal control as management dete r ines ls necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material isstatement, whethe r due to fraud or error. 

Auditor ' s Responsibility 

Our responsibility fs to express pinion on 'these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit In acc~ r with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we c ly with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable· assuran out whether the financial s.t atements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves {Jo ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the n cial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor' s 
judgment, includin e assessment of the risks of material misstatem~nt of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained ls sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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24(1) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, tn all material respects, the financial 
position of Canadian Hockey Association o/a (operating as) Hockey Canada as at June 30, 2012 
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

24(1) 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

~ 
C::ANADA 

Balance Sheet 

June 30 2012 201i 

Operating fund Health Benefit National PIiiars Total Tohl 
Trust !gUi~ Fund 

Assets 

Current 
Cash and tr~asury bills (Note 2) s 1,196,071 s 1,013,093 $ 2,049,◄08 $ 13,◄55,385 $ 17,713,957 $ 9,-462, 022 
Accounts receivable l,6◄2, 309 3◄, 100 27,0◄3 826, 183 3,529,615 2,337,6119 
·Receivable from funds (Note J) l,◄113,.lt39 621,517 16,4117 3,191,00 1,300,559 
iln!akaway fnvento,y 5117,079 5&7,079 517,1176 
Prepald e,:penS@S 60◄,)73 7.1 604,-445 

-·· 
585,388 ·I 

7,512,171 1, 663,710 2,163,010 14,281, 56& 25,626, 159 14,20),534 

Lorlfl t«m, pr•pald ~n:ses 1,<112,959 
LoJl!:•lerm lnvMtmRnt• (Note -1) 3, 376,969 13,579, 156 l.+,211,97'> 59,937,1.111 59,049,483 
Capit•I assets (Note 5) !1-,014,925 1,991,186 

_$ 5 0-45 679 15 7◄2. 166 s _ ◄a ◄9l SO _$ - 91 9 91,321,_ ___ _7S 2~ oe 

Llabllltlots. and Flil'ld Baianc .. 

Current. 
A<;counts payable and =c,d liabilltms (Note 12) $ 1,011,123 $ J.43,366 $ . $ a,69.+,Jzo $ 5,058,996 
Payable lo funds (Note 3) 1, 19f:,0◄3 3,191,0•U 1,300,559 
Oefcfl'!:°d contr1bution:s, oper1l1loru (Note 61 ~ 1, 16-9,420 1,539,471 

,,011,121 l -48, 366 ], 191·,043 IJ,054,713' 7,899,026 

DQ'(errecl contri>utlons related to c:apitlll us1>1:s (Note 7) 816,294 
Oth•r lll!bllitics ,>nd r9'1rv1s 10, 350,-000 10,350, 000 10,250,000 

\ 
1,50_:4,~51 __ 1,011,123 ___ ~ 10,6,98,366 --- 3, 19 1,043 23 ,404,713 18,965,320 

Fund bal.\ncrs 
Internally rmricted 5, 0 1-4,915 4,0l.f,5!>6 5,fMl,100 45,302,500 S9,l95,7U 47,918,719 
Unrestricted 9 ,"190,762 9 ,190, 761 8,340, 169 

U ,10~,687 -4,()H,S56 5,.0-4l,!100 45,102,500· 61,.516,5-43 56,2:78,38,5 

s 22 709 ,9311 $ S ()45 67',, s 15 742 166 . $ ◄a ◄n s◄-1 $ 91 991 326 75 244,2011 

19(1) and 24(1) 
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For the year -ended June 30 

Fund balance, beijinning of the year 

Exc:Hs (defldeney) of revenue over expenditu res for the 
year 

lnterfund transfers (Note 8) 

l.Jnrealiz-ed chanse lr1 market value of Investments durin 
the year (Note 9} 

Fund balanctt, end of the year 

s 

(17◄, 8661 

Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

kncrrt Ti'tlst 

C ANADA 

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances 

N'atlonal 
E ul Fund 

Plllan 
Schedule 

2012 

Total 

201, 

Total 

3,795 , '.1◄8 $ 4,667,728 S 38,300,152 $ 56,278,888 S 50,339,930 

◄72, 80'.I 636,834 

4,2611,757 S,304,562 

(23◄,201) (:2.60 ,762) 

1.3,332, 302 

51,632,454 

(5 485,217) 

(84'1,737) 

13, 822 , 221 3,539,411 

70,101,109 53,879,347 

(1,514,566) 

$ 14,205,687 $ 4,034,S56 $ 5,0-43 ,80(1 $ 45,302,500 $, '68,58,,543 $ 56,278,i!BS 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

41 
CANADA 

Statement of Operations 

For the year en<Hd June 30 2012 2011 

Operating Health National Pillars Total Total 
fund Benefit Trust Eguit~ Fund 

Revenue 
funding (Hote 10) $ 5,370,164 $ . $ - $ - $ ·5,370,164 $ 5,065,517 
Marketing (Note 13) 1 ◄,129, 399 14,129,399 12.,402,843 
Development 1,,07,m II 1,307,551 2.153,207 
Hockey resoorce centr'e 1,3◄5,728 ~ i,345,728 1,758,926 
Hat'ional events and camps 593,657 593,657 1,389,785 
High performance 1,469,405 1,469,405 1,317,785 
International event hosting ~ 36,698,054 36,698,054 
Investment ar1d interest income 133,373 575,050 1,858,927 2,567,350 2,431,431 
Admi n iW at ion 7l1,7U 1,557,877 ·1 
Mem~ services 3,362,005 2, '>45, 166 
Foundation !!Vents 1,47l,p29 1,612,387 
Insurance premiums 4,035,242 8,744,897 12,780,139 12,650,188 
Other Income 1,147,'314 

9,041 4, 168,1615 9,319,947 38,556,981 83,574,584 44,865,1H 

Expenditures 

=11 Funding () 426,592 426,592 367,157 
Marileting 2,760, 576 1,760,576 2,017,769 
Oevetopment 1,873,554 73,748 1,952, 302 2,783,535 

~ Hockey reS01Jrce cent re (Note 14) 630,325 630,325 640,438, 
National events and camps 2,019,115 2,019,11'5 2,096,643 
1-tigh perfonnance 6,927,355 6,927, 355 6,268,7$6 
International event ho.sting 

\ 
23,948,760 23,.9-48,760 

Olympics 8,829 8,829 
Administrati on 12,934,358 424,092. 455,503' 1,105,670 14,919,623 11,490,361 
Custodial fees 61,771 170,249 132,020 225,793 
Member savices 2,096,786 2,096,786 1,541,801 
lnformat1011 ~rvices 1,044,245 1,044,245 786,42.9 
Foundation events 1,422,030 1,422,030 1,548, 154 
Insurance premiums 1,672.,826 5,750,100 7,422,926 7,434,185 
lnsurar1ce claims 1,598,888 2,i.1,991 3,940,879 4,144,674 

32,148,765 3,695,806 8,683,113 2S,224,679 6'1,752,363 41,345,695 

u~fortlie 
(le.tr $ 619 724 $ ◄72 809 $ 636 834 $ 13 332 )02 $ 13,a?l 221 3 539 417 

The accomp;rnying 11ot.e,; are an I I part or th= financial $tatements. 000024 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

For the year ended June 30 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year 
Items not Involving cash 

Amortization of capital assets 
Amortization of deferred contributions 

related to capital assets 
(Galn)/loss on disposal of capital assets 

€1 
CANADA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

2012 

6>~$13,822,221 $ 

a 
g 

197,340 

(816,294) 
(1,147,314) 

12,055,953 

2011 

3,539,417 

382,592 

(74,200) 
179,124 

Changes in non-cash working capital balanceo 
Accounts receivable 
Breakaway inventory 
Prepaid expenses 

(1,191 ,946) 2,784,963 
(69, 203) 246 

(1,432,016) 57,124 
Accounts payable -and accrued llabillt s 
Deferred contributions, operations 
Other current liabilities 

3,635,324 (4,099,625) 
(370,051) 170,794 
100,000 600,000 

~ \ 672,108 (486,498) 

Cash flows from Investing a 
Purchase of capital assets 
Proceeds on disposal o~'JEJ 
Purchase of investmeny 

; ~ ______,_;...;;...;;..._~ 

~
{(]«=J]; ~:::::::::) '•:::::::I 
~ ~ 2,650,624 

(2,402, 361 ) j15,287,308) 

(# (4,476,126) (15,379,902} 

Cash, beginning of 

Cash, end of year 

h during the year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

8,251 , 935 

9,462,022 

(1 1,839,467) 

21,301,489 

$17,713,957 $ 9,462,022 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

.fl 
C:AN AD A 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2012 

1. Summary of Sfgnificant Accounting Polictes ~ 

Consistent GAAP The accounting policies of the anization are in accordance 
with Canadian generally c?~pted accounting principles 
applied on a basis consiste with that of the preceding year. 
Outlined below are th olicies considered particularly 
significant. 

Nature of Business 

g 
() 

The organtzatfon is~istered Canadian Amateur Athletic 
Association incorpo t without share capital under the laws 
of Canada. The A elation carries on operatiol)s for the 

The Organl 
accounting. 

? improving and enhancing the growth and 
key in Canada. 

n follows the restricted fund method of 

The Op ting Fund accounts for the costs of programs, 
administ tive and other operating expenditures of the 
As atlon funded by fees, funding agencies, sponsorships 

ther general Income. 

e ealth Benefit Trust Fund was established in 1988 to 
ovide supplementary medical and dental coverage during 

HA sanctioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses 
·s reviewed regularly by the Association to ensure financial 
risk is minimized. 

The National Equity Fund balance has been accumulated as a 
precaution against judgments that may be made against the 
Association as a result of current or future claims. The 
Association is currently involved in defending legal actions 
resulting from accidents and injuries involved in CHA play. 
Provision has been made for estimated settlements and 
professional fees related to these actions. This provision is 
reviewed regularly by the Association throughout the year to 
ensure that financial risk is minimized. 
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June 30 2012 

Inventory 

Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

~ 
C A NAD A 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The Pillars are internally restnifunds which include The 
Growth Fund, Facilities Fund nch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabilization , the International Event 
Hosting Support Fund and t~ltiatives Support Fund. These 
funds are to be used as folio~ 

Growth Fund is to 
or Directors, for the 

ecf, as determined by the Board 
elopment of hockey in Canada. 

Facitities Fund s o be used to support current office 
structures in ning and to review otner initiatives 
regarding f · ·es across the country. 

UA rt Fund is to be use<! to ensure the 
can support Branches for intttatives that are 

in scope, but require delivery at the Branch 

lnsu nee Rate Stabilization f uncf is to be used to ensure 
future insurance rate increases are buffered by this fund. 

tematlonal Ev~t Hosting Support Fund is to be used to 
upport the organization's hosting of international 

events. 

Initiatives Support Fund was approved by the Board of 
Directors to support three initiatives identified as 
important to the Association. The fund was created 
through profits from the 2012 IIHF World Junior 
Chnmplonship and is to be used to support the 
Association's delivery of programs related to e-learning, 
techflOlogy, and recruitment and retention for a three 
year period. At the end of the three year period, the 
Board will examine the need for further funding. 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is generally determined on the first-in, fi rst-out 
basis. 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

June 30 2012 

Capital Assets 

Impairment of L011g l1ved 
Assets 

Revenue Recognition 

<I: 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Capital assets are stated ' cost less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization base the estimated useful life 
of the asset is calculated as fol . 

II, 
Building - 5 ye<lr straight line basis 
Computer equipment ~ 3 year straigfit line basis 
Leasehold Improvements • straight-line over the term of 

the lease 
Offlc equipment • 5 year straight line basis 
Tra!ntng/ rnedical e ent- 5 year straight line basis 

In the event hat facts and circuJnstances indicate that the 
organlzij·on's long-lived asset$ may be Impaired, an 
evaluat of recoverability would be performed. Such an 
evaluati entails comparing the estimated future 
undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset to the 

's carrying amount to determine if a write down to 
t value or discounted cash flow value Is required. The 
zatton consfders that no circumstances exist that would 

q e such an. eval atlon. 

a estricted contributions related to general operations are 
recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year fn 
which the rel~ted expenses a re incurred. All other restricted 
contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate 
restricted fund. 

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the 
Operating Fund in the year received or receivable ff the 
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and 
collection is reasonably assured. in certain instances, the 
Association receives funds from the federal government and 
other supporters to offset specific expenses. When these 
funds are received prior to incurring the related expenses, 
they are shown as deferred contributions. 

10 

000028 



Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada . .t, 
~ANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2012 

Contributed Materials & 
Volunteers contribute many ~ per year to assist the Services 

Income Taxes 

organization in carrying out · ervice delivery activities. 
Because of the difficulty eterminlng their fair value, 
contributed services are n recognized in the financial 
statements. Contribut~ rials are not recognized in the 
financial statements uni s ey would normally be purchased 
by the organization eir fair market value can be 
ascertained. ri} 

The organizatio ~ ms an exemption for income tax 
purposes as egistered Canadian Amateur Athletic 
Association. f co ingly, no provision for income taxes has 

/.::> been made i e financial statements. 

Foreign Currency ~ 
Translation foreign currency accounts are translated into Canadian 

-,,,,, J) dollars follows: 
<:;:3/ 1 A the nsaction date, each asset) liability, revenue and 

~ expense , translated into Canadian dollars by the use cif the 
-1/) ax nge rate In effect at that date. At the year end date, 
M mo tary assets and liabilities are translated Into Canadian 

s by using the exchange rate in effect at that date. The 
·ng foreign -exchange gains and losses are included in 

~ ome in the current period. 

Use of Estimates e preparation of financial statements in accordance with g Can~dian generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of 

() 

the financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from management's best estimates as 
additional information becomes available in the future. 
Significant estimates were required in the valuation of other 
liabilities and reserves. 

11 



Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

J une 30 2012 

Financial Instruments 

~ 
C'ANAOA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Unless otherwise noted, it is ~ement's opinion that the 
organization is not exposed to icant interest, currency or 
credit risks arising from its · a al instruments. 

All transactions relat~<} t ancial instruments are recorded 
on a settlement date . The fair values of financial 
Instruments are dete using published price quotations, 
where .applicable. T sa ·on costs relating to all financial 
instruments are exp s d as Incurred. 

The organiza!io ssifies Its financial Instruments into one 
of the follow· tegories based on the p1..1rpose for which 
the asset w ac ired. The organization's- accotinting policy 
for each cat is as follows: 

Held-for-tradin 
This ca ory is comprised of cash and cash equivalents. They 
are car in the statement of financiat position -at fair value 
with cha ges In fair value recognized in the Statement of 
0 ation,s. 

bte-for-sale 
i category is comprised of long-term investments. They are 
rried on the balance sheet at fair value with changes in fai r 

alue recognize.cl in the Statement of Changes in Fund 
Balances. · 

Loahs and receivables 
This category includes accounts receivable. They are initially 
recognized at fai r value and subsequently carried at 
amortized cost, using the effective Interest rate method, less 
any provision for impairment. 

Other financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities are comprised of accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities and other liabilities and reserves. 
These liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and 
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method. 

12 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

.ti 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2012 

2. 

Accounting Framework 

Cash and Treasury Bills 

~ 
Cash 
Dual currency deposit 
1.3% GIC 

For the year ends beginning on fter January 1, 2012, Not-
for-Profit Organizations W}>, e the option of adopting 
ei ther International Financ1 eportjng Standards (IFRS) or 
GMP for Not-for-Profi ~izations. The existing standards 
fn the CICA Handboo counting will continue to be 
available until 2012, a !ch time they wilt cease to be 
authoritative source anadian GAAP for Not-for-Profi t 
Organizations. Ace i gly, an organization that wishes to 
adopt GAAP for N • r-Proflt Organizations will be able to 
a_dopt the sta a s early. The organization. is currently 
monitoring c n s to the standards to determine the 
potential im ct its financial statements. 

(~ 
2011 

~ $ 17,713,957 s 7,339, 599 
<::- 1,932, 140 

_(0)~ 
190,283 

$17,713,957 s 9,462,022 

The organization's bank a ts are held at one chartered bank and earn interest at a rate 
of bank prime less 2.05 · a certain account requiring a minimum average balance of 
$3,000,000 be mafnta . The prime rate at June 30, 2012 was 3.00%. Bank balances 
Include $420,768 de o mated ih U.S. dollars converted to $431,266 Canadian. The 

general security g ement . At June 30, 2012, the organization had undrawn credit 
capacity of $1, , 0 under tMs facility. 

3. Receivable From Funds / Payable To Funds 

The interfund balances are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

13 
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Canad;an Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<., 
CA NA DA 

Notes to F;nancial Statements 
June 30 2012 

4. Long-Te rm Investments ~ u/ _ __,;;;;..20;...;.;12;;;......_ _ ___;2;;.;;..;01'-'--1 

Cash and money market funds (Effective rate 1%-2%) 0 $ 2, 344,626 S 1,834,021 

5. 

Bond funds ~ 27,847,584 25,903,586 
Equities 

0
~ )) (j 26,719,249 28,006,628 

Corporate bonds ~ {Y 3,0251824 3,3051253 

Market""'"• ()_ A $5919371283 I 591""'91488 

Corporate bonds ha,,ve effective rates ranging from 4.00% to ~.02% and mature between 
October 2013 and December 2019. L g- term Investments had an average rate of return of 
4.32%. 

Caplta~ ,0 -- 2012 2011 

Ac.cumulated Accumulated 
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization 

B<nlding g $ 562,508 $ . s . s 
Computer equlp?,t 1,.139,845 346,706 529,647 227,894 

Leasehold lmp~ ts 2,090,259 169,158 3,616,499 1,940,652 
Office equlpme 1,306,166 21,853 31,716 18,130 
Training/medi l uipment 453,864 

$ 5,552,642 s 537,717 s 4, 177,862 s 2,186,676 

Net book value $ 5,01 4,925 s 1,991,186 

During the year, the organization recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
$197,340 (2011 -$382,592). 

14 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<I 
CA N ADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2012 

6. Deferred Contributions• Operations I 
Q(::) 

Deferred contributions, operations relate to restricted erating funding received in the 
current period that Is related to expenses that will be i ed In the subsequent period. 

Changes in the deferred contributions 
follows: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Contributions recei'led 

Recognized to revenue 

Balance, end of year ~ ~ /4 

balance/Jr< d 

(J 
in the Operating Fund are as 

2012 2011 

$ 1, 539,471 s 1,J68,6n 
1,169,420 1,539,471 

2,708,891 2,908,1 48 
(1 ,539,471) (1,368,677) 

$ 1, 1691420 $ 1,5391471 

Deferred contributio lated to capital assets are restricted contributions with Which the 
Association re~o the Canadia11 Hockey Centre In Calgary, Alberta and are being 
amortized usin traight-line method over 25 years. During the year, the organization 
moved to ne pr ises. As such, the remaining balance In deferred contributions was 
recognized int enue during the year. 

Changes in the deferred contributions related to capital assets are as follows: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Recognized to revenue 

Balance, end of year 

2012 201 1 

$ 81 6,294 $ 
(81 6,294) 

$ . $ 

890,494 
(74,200) 

816 294 

15 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<I: 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30. 2012 

B. lnterfund Tran,fe,s lJ 
During the year, the Board of Directors authorized trajsf Q~ f $4,644,957 to the Operating 
Fund from the Facilities Pillar; $840,260 to the Operati nd from the Initiatives Pillar and 
$5,683,060 to the Initiatives Pillar from the lntematio liar. 

9. Unceat;zed Change In Market Value of Invest a.ring the Year 

Unrealized changes In the market value of n erm investments dasslffed ~s "Available for 
Sale" are recognized' as a direct adjustme the Statement of Changes In Fund Balances. 
The adjustment of $(1,514, 566) (2011 • ,399,541} represents the unrealized change in 
market value of long-term investments during the year ended June 30, 2012. 

10. Government A>: ance \ ~ ~ 
The general operating grants Governments and funding agencies are recorded in the 
fiscal year to which they ap~ T al funding received during the fiscal year was $3,815,200 
(2011 • $3,768,500). ~ 

IJ J !) 
11. Commitments(/.. . {ff> 

The organizati s committed to expenditures related to its event hosting activities of 
$2,000,000 an until 2021 . 

16 
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Canadian · Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

.fl. 
C A N A D A 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2012 

12. Re lated Party Transactions II 
Hockey Canada exercises significant influence over the ~Y Canada Foundatioo and the 
Canadian Hockey Foundation U.S. (the Foundations) by v: of its sharing of premises and 
administrative support. The Foundations were e~ shed a~ registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey Ca M and of other organizations in the 
country with objectives similar to Hocl<ey Canada. 

Transactions with Hockey Canada Foundation and 

Donations to the Foundations 
Hockey Canada Foundatlon C~ •c::~s. \ 

Grants received from the F'cundati~ s 
Hockey Canada Foundation 

Amount Included In Accou 
Hockey Canada Found 
Canadian Hockey Fo 

() 
· 13. Value fn Kind 

dian Hockey Foundation U.S. 

2012 2011 

$ 918, 121 S 1,098,054 
1,281 802 

$ 919,402 $ 1,098,856 

$ 108,561 S 392,955 

$ 517,269 S 659,585 
918 1,356 

$ 518,187 $ 660,941 

Sponsorship revenue includes value in kind of $1,402,813 (2011 - $1,317,747). 

17 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<., 
C AN A DA 

Notes to Financial St atements 
June 30 2012 

14. Breakaway Sales . . , IJ 
Total breakaway inventory sold during the year was $630,~201 1 ~ $640,438). 

15. Capital Risk Management 
11 

The Organization's objectives when managing l are to safeguard the Organization's 
ability to continue as a going concern. Capit s efined by the Organization as all general 
and Internally restricted funds. 

The Operating Fund's objective ls to provi rking capital for the Organization's operating 
expenses. Deposits and withdrawals. to this fund are admlnlstertd by management and are 
authorized by Board passage of the an ual operating budget. 

The Health Benefit Trust Fund is det lned by the Board and Its objective is to provide 
supplementary medical and dental coverage during CHA sanctioned activities. 

The National Equity F~nd is dete 
future judgements that may 
future claims. 

lned by the Board and iu objective is to provide against 
de against the Organization as a result of current or 

The Growth Fund is det by the Soard and its objective is to be used for the 
development of hockey in da. 

The Facilities Fund's ',,{vtlve is to be used to support current office structures in planning 
and to review other i~~es around the country. 

The Branch Fu/o~ective Is to be used to ensure the organization can support Branches 
for initiatives tf!!j-fe national in scope. 

The Insurance Rate Stabilization Fund's objective is to ensure future insurance rate increases 
are buffered. 

The International Event Hosting Support Fund's objective is to help support the hosting of 
international events. 

The Initiatives Support Fund's objective is to support the Association's delivery of programs 
related to e-learning, technology and recruitment and retention. 

The Organization is in compliance with its externally imposed capital requirements. The 
Organization's overall stra~egy with respect to capital risk management remains unchanged 
from the year ended June 30, 2011. 
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for the yeu ended June ,o 
Growth Fund fadlitles fund 

Fund balance, begtnntn~ of the year $ 10,73A,705 8;625, 11'98 

Excess (<leflcieney) Of ~es ..C70, 939 318,-427 
aver expenditures for the year 

Unrealized cha.nge In market value 
of lnvesur.enu durlna; the year (235,!1111 ) 

Inter-fund trmsfen; (Note 8) 

fund balance, end of the ~~r __ s 10,970,06) $ 

() 

The accompanying notes are an. i al part of these financial statements. 

Canadian Hockey Association o/ a Hockey Canada 

(242,0.51!) 

10,069,259 

<I 
CAN A D A 

Schedule of Activity for the Pillars Fund 

[nwrance Rate 
StablllUtlOn fUnd 

$ 5,754,965 

256,076, 

(126,4701 

$ s.aa_-t,.574 

International Event 
Hostine Support 

Fund 

$ 2,730,~66 

11,369,628 

(49, ~96) 
15,683,060) 

_$ 9,367,338 

s 

$ 

lnltl~tlves 
Pillu 

4,842,a_oo 

4,842,800 

$ 

2012 

311,300,152 

13,332,JDZ 

(84◄,737) 
(5, 485,217) 

,45, 302,500 
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24(1) 

tndependent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of 
Canadian Hockey Association o/a (operating as) Hocke 

We have audited the accompanying financial stat 
(operating as) Hockey Canada, which CO/Tlprise the 
2012 and July 1, 2011, the statements 9f opera · 
the years ended June 30, 2013 and June 3 2 
policies and other exp\anatory infonnation. 

ts of Canadian Hockey Association o/a 
ance sheets as at June 30, 2013, June 30, 

, changes in fund balances and cash flows for 
, and a summary of sfgniHcant accounting 

Management's RespO,ll!ii bility for the Fi ncial Statements 

Management is responsible for the p paration and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with.. Can dian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, 
and for such Internal control as ma gement determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are fr om material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility () /"'\ 

Our responsibility is to expr opinion- on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in~dance y1lth Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that w mply wi th ethica requirements and plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assu e about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involve p orming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in th nandal statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk asse$sments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

24(1) 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Canadian Hockey Association o/a (operating as) Hockey Canada as at Jun~ 30, 2013, 
June 30, 2012 and July 1, 2011 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years 
ended June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012 in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for 
not-for-profit organizations. 

I 
~ Q~ 

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants {j J' 
W::iti>rlnn Ont;:irin ~ ~ 
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Canadian Hockey Associati on o/a Hockey Canada 

-t., 
C#\,..AOI\ 

Balance Sheet 

J une 30 , June 30, July 1, 
20 13 2012 2011 

(Sd1t>dUlt II (Scht'dUII! 2) 

Operatlns Health Nationa l 
Fund Be nefit Trust Egult~ Fund Pillars Total Total Total 

Assets 

C&lrrent 
Call! (HOit\ l I $ 1,S41,7.ll s s 2,391,650 26],860 s 5,◄Q4,720 s 17,71),957 s 9,462,022 
Accounu rl!crl~abtl!' 1,21T,427 n .~91 1,251,SU 4;584,774 3 ,'S29,6lS 1, ])7,689 
R«efv1bl11 (roin fund, (Noll! A) )◄ 7,515 1,569,00)' 2,656,310 3. 191,(M) 1,)00,559 
Brl!ak,wz,y lrwentory :Sl), 105 57), 105 587,079 517,876 
Prl!l)ilci t'XMnsts t,7.oi9, 144 1,7.oi9, 144 604,44S 5&5,388 

6,·◄99,91◄ ),980,0◄1 1,515,372 1","168,OSl 25,626,159 1A, 20.3,534 

l o"I tNm p,cpald 1!,cpcmes 352,1◄1 l,'111,959 
lo!l!l•term i""nlm• nts (Note 5) l ,728.,201 14,612,◄9) l0,161,895 65,◄92,907 59,917.,283 59,0<19, 4H 
P.r~rty, planl and equipment (NCIC·61 ◄,9 19 027 S,01'4.925 l,99·1,156 

6 700 92.0 $ 18 592 HI s 31 878 267 .s -as Vl O l s 91 901,)16 s ,s ?~~ ,oa 

Llabllltll!J 1nd F1111d Batancci ( 

C111renl 
kcounu ~y•ble i nd acc111K!d Habllllles (Note 7 ~nd ill 2,062,JU ~ 579,6U > Ji),l, lSt :~ 6,◄70,llS s l,69◄, 320 s s.o~B,i96 
P.ayabll!' lO funds {Holc,, .CJ 147,515 l,6S6,l10 ),191~3 1,)00,559 
Oel!!rrcd conu11Mforu, opc-raclons (Note 8) 2,276,907 I, 169,420 1,5)9,-471 

2,062,l9J 579,611 651,766 t t,,◄Ol,452 1J,05'1,7U 7,899,026 

~l~rrtd ,capital contributions 

' 
816,?94 

Other Cl1bllltlc1 and rrservos 12,S00,000 ;2,soo,000 I0,3S0,000 10,250.000 

l,109,68i 2,06l , )9l 11,079,611 651,766 23,903,452 23,<l'0◄ ,783 18,'16S,l20 

Fund b&tenus 
rnterMUy restrlctt'd ◄,9i9,ol'I' -',~J8,S27 S,S12,929 l l,2?6,501 46,296,98◄ 59,395,781 47,9la,119 
U!!lcttrlcted 15,5 ) 1,.96 15,531,696 9,190,762 8,l~0, 11>9 

20,-450,713 . ,,t,l,3,127 5,512,929 ]1,216,501 61,828,680 68,586,S43 56,279.BM 

$ 28 560 404 s 6 700 920 11 592 541 s l1 &711 267 $ as n2 u 2 s 91 991.326 $ 75 244 208 

On behalf of the Board; Ii) On bl!h.111 or N.ana81)ment: 000041\'i 
24(1) 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

~ 
C:hNI\DI\ 

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances 

per.atfng Health National Pillars 
Fund Bmcflt Trust E uf Fund Schedule 4 Total 

Fund balanCl!h .July 1, 2011 b(::)s 9,515,060 $ 3,795,948 $ ◄,667,728 $ 38,300,1!;2 $ 56,278,BU 

' '"" ' (d<fl,~nq,I of =••"" , • ., .,,~dltam fo, .,, 'I"" '"'''a 
June JO, 2012 (Note 2) (Schedule 31 (794,,590) 238,606 "~376 ,()72 12,48,7,565 12,307,65!> 

g B,710,470 4,034,556 '5,0 43,800 50,787,717 68,586,543 

lnterfund tn,nsferJ 5,48S,217 (5,485,217) 

Fund baliinces. June 30, 2012 14,105,687 '4,0l4,S'S(, ~,043,BOO ◄5,302,500 68,586,543 

Excess (dv(iclency) .of-revenue over elependlturM fort 
June 30, 2013 1,409,253 603,971 469,129 (9,2.40,216) (&,751,Slil) 

15,614,940 4,638, 527 '5,512,929 36,062,28◄ 61,82&,6-SO 

lnterfund transfers (Note 9} \ 4,835,783 (4 ,835,783) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2013 s 20,450,723 $ 4,638,527 $ 5,512,929 $ 31,226,501 $ 61,828,680 

The accompanyln1 not.es , 5 



Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<, 
Statement of Operations 

!for the :te■r ended June 30 2013 1012 
(Schedule 3J 

Operating Hcnlth National 
Fund Benefit Trust Egul!x Fund PIiiars Total Total 

Revenue 
Funding (Note 10 and 121 $ 5,875,229 s . s . $ . s 5.8?5,129 s '5,370.164 
MarJo:ellng (Note 13) 20,108,278 20,108,178 14,729,399 
De...elopment 1, 549,432 1,549,43.1 1,307,551 
Hockey resource cenlle 1,586,643 1,586,643, 1,345,728 · 
Nalional events and caf!1J)S 1, 106,0 , t, 106,051 59),657 
High perfonnance 1,254, 1,254,607 1,469 ,405 
International •event hos tint 4,370,621 4,;170,&'21 36,698,054 
Investment and interest Income 179,517 654,772 2,297,797 3,132,086 2,567,350 
Admin istration 9 900,385 131,789 
Member services 3,8 5 3,812,695 3,362,005 
Foundation events 3 • 8 l66,19a 1,472,029 
Insurance premiums 4,011,'19 8,608,531 12,620,260 12,780,139 
Other Income 1 1-47,314 

-4,191,246 9,26l,303 6,668,418 56 ,682,485 83,574,584 

Expenditures () Funding 209,506 209,506 -426,592 
M;if'ket Ing 

() 
2,995, 177 

A l ,995, 177 2,760,576 
~lopment 2,5.29,.&ll 313,441 l,843,27 3 1,952,)02 
Hoclcey resource centre (Mote 14) 588,080 588,080 6)0,325 
National events and camps 3,113,S23 

L 3,113.523 2,019,115 
High pen'ormance 7,967,312 7,967,312 6,927,355 
lntema1lonal event hosting 6, 142, SSO -6, 142,580 B,94S,7b0 
Olympics 155,236 155,236 8,829 
Admininration 

' 
11,9◄2,981 411,850 ◄64,052 651 ,2)2 13,480,1 15 14,.919,623 

Custodial fees S4, ◄60 1◄9,737 204,197 232,020 
Member services 5, 116,113 5,116,,113 2,758,489 
ln(onnatlon urvlce, 840,827 

~ 8◄0,827 382,5412 
Foundation events 373,694 373, 694 1,422,030 
Donations (Mole 121 10,(.100,000 10,000,,000 
Insurance premfums ,-..... 1,689,396 5 ,749,700 7,439,096 7,422,926 
lnsurilnce dalms 1,676,558 2,673,217 4.3◄9,775 3,940,879 

35,832,281 3,787,804 9 ,154,870 1619◄l,S49 '15,818,504 69,752,363 

Excess (ddldencyJ oi revenue over expen u Jor the year 
before other Item 727,237 403,◄◄2 8 ,4 33 (10_,27S,131) (9,136,019) 13,822,221 

Other Item 
Unrealized aaln (loss) on market Ya 682,016 200,529 460 ,696 1,,034,915 2,378.156 !1 ,5M,566l 

Excess dcrlclen car s 1 .C09 253 s 603 971 s ◄69 129- _s 9 2-40 216 $ 6 757 8"3 s 12 307 655 

I Pilrt of these nnanctal statements. 000043 6 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

.t, 
CAN AD A 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the ear ended June 30 201 3 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities ~ 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the Y?Jr (6,757,863) s 12,307,655 
Items not involving cash ~ 

Amortization of property, plant and equipment 763,850 197,340 
Amortization of deferred capital contributions {) (816,294) 
Unrealized (gain) loss on market value of investment (2,378, 156) 1,514,566 
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property-, plant and equig n {1,1471314) 

() (8,372, 169) 12,0551953 

ctu,nges ;n non-ca,h worlcing capital bal•=o 
Accounts receivable (1,0 55~ 139) (1 ,191,946) 
Breakaway inventory 13,974 (69,203) 
Prepaid expenses (83,885) (1 ,432,016) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,224,085) 3,635,324 
Deferred coc:itribut(ons, operations 

\ 
1,107,487 (370,051) 

Other liabilities and reserves 2 ,150,000 100,000 

¾J v~~/4 ~ 
{91 ,648) 672,108 

(8,463,817) 12,728,061 

Ca,h flows from Investing r/J;es ~ 
Purchase of property, plant n equipment (667,952) (4,724,389) 
Proceeds on disposal of pr y, plant and equipment 2,650,624 
Purchase of lnvestmentl (3,177,468) (2,402,361 l 

tJ) ~ (3,845,420) (4,476,126) 

sh during the year (12,309,237) 8,251,935 

Cash, beginning o 17,713,957 9,462,022 

Cash, end of lear $ 5,404,720 s 17,713,957 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements. 
7 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

.t, 
CAHADI\. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2013 

1 . Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations The organization is a Canadi~ mateur Athletic Association 
Incorporated without share ~~l under the laws of Canada. 
The Association carries o~ erations for the express purpose 
of improving and enhanc· he growth and development of 
hockey in Canada. () 

The financial staf em ave been prepared using Canadian 
accountin~ standar r not-for-profit organizations (ASNPO). 

The Organizati otlows the restricted fund method of 

Basis of Accounting 

Fund Accounting 
accotJnting. 

The Ope · Fund accounts for the costs of programs, 
administrative and other operating expenditures of the (rd Associat ion funded by fees, funding agencies, sponsorships 

~<:::::f} ff and o er general income. 

~
\S The He Ith Benefit Trµst Fund was estabtished in 1988 to 

-1/) ~r. vide supplementary medical and dental coverage during 
M C sanctioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses 

· iewed regufarly by the Association to ensure financial 
ri is minimiz~d. 

0 The National Equity Fund balance has been accumulated as a ~ precaut ion against judgments that may be made against the 

g Associatlon as a result of current or future claims. The 
Assoc,la tion is currently involved in defending legal actions 
resulting from accidents and injuries involved In CHA play. 

() 

Provisi on has been made for estimated settlements and 
professional fees related to these actions. This provision is 
reviewed regularty by the Association throughout the year to 
ensure that financial risk is minimized. 

8 
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June 30 2013 

Canadian Hockey Association o/a. Hockey Canada 

~ 
CI\NADI\ 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The Pillars are internally restii d funds which include The 
Growth Fund, Facilities Fun ranch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabilization d, the International Event 
Hosting Support Fond and ~'l itiatives Support Fund. These 
funds are to be used as foll~ : 

sed, as- determined by the Board 
velopment of hockey in Canada. 

~ 
Facilities Fun i to be used to support current office r structures in nning and to review oth,er initiatives 

~ regarding · tties across the country. 

~ : Bran Su ort Fuhd is to be \J ed to ensure the 
~ ~· organi n can support Branches for initiatives that are 

nationa in scope, but require delivery at the Branch 
le et. 

~ Ins nee Rate Stabilization Ful'Td is to be used to ensure 
-~ <::::. future insurance rate increases are buffered by this fund . 

~ International Event Hosting Support Fund is to be used to 
E1)support ttie organization·s hosting of international 

1/) a events. 

M Initiatives Support Fund was approved by the Board of 
Dfrectors to support three initiatives identified as g importa9t to the Association. The fund was created 
through profits from the 2012 IIHF Wortd Junior 
Championship and is to be used to support the 

Inventory 

() 

Association's delivery of programs related to e-leaming, 
technology, and recruitment and retention for a three 
year period. At the end of the three year period, the 
Board will examine the need for further funding. 

Inventory is stated at the lower of ce>st and net realizable 
value. Cost is generally determined on the first-in, first-out 
basis. 

000046 



Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANAOA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2013 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment Property, plant and equipi are stated at cost less 

accumulated amortization. ortization based on the 
estimated useful life of th~~ is calculated as follows: 

Impairment of Long Lived 

Building 
Computer equipment 
leasehold improvemer 

·• 25 year straight line basis 
3 year straight line basis 
straight-line over the term of 
the tease 
5 year straight line basis 
5 year straight tine basis 

taken in the year of ac;:qutsition. 

Assets In the event that facts and circumstances indicate that the 
-....,.. )) ~ organ! tion·s long-lived assets may be impaired, an 

<:::::;::/ L evaluat of recoverability would be performed. Such an 

~ 
evaluati n entails comparing the estimated future 

~ unj'scounted cash flows associated with the asset to the 
M as rs carrying amount to determine if a write down to 

e t value or' discounted cash flow value is required. The 
r nization considers that no circumstances exist that would 

_M\ () equire such an evaluation. 

Revenue Recognition rt} 

() 
Restricted contributions related to general operations are 
recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year ln 
'Which the related expenses are incurred. All other restricted 
contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate 
restricted fund. 

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the 
Operating Fund in the year received or receivable if the 
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and 
collection is reasonably assured. In certain instances, the 
Association receives funds from the federal government and 
-other supporters to offset specific expenses. When these 
funds are received prior to Incurring the related expenses, 
they are shown as deferred contributions. 

10 

000047 



Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

-t, 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2013 

Contributed Materials & 
Services Volunteers contribute manyt s per year to assist the 

organization in carrying out service delivery activities. 

Income Taxes 

Because of the difficul~,,q_r- <1etermining their fair value, 
contributed services are Mt recognized in the financial 
statements. Contributitl:terials are not recognized in the 
financial statements un s they would normally be purchased 
by the organization their fair market value can be 
ascertained. n 
The organizationYaims an exemption for income tax 
purposes as Canadian Amateur Athle ic Association. 
Accordingly, o ovisio:, for income tax.es -has been made in 

(F ~ these finan al atements. ~ 

Foreign Currency ,:=di 
Translation ~ forelg currency accounts are translated into Canadian :::::;,, L d_ollars follows: 

~ ~ 
At the ransaction datf, each asset, liability, revenue and 

-1/) anse is translated into Canadian dollars by the use of the 
M ex ange rate in effect at that date. At the year end date, 

tary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian 
d ars by using the exchange rate in effect at that date. The 

~ (jesutting foreign ex.change gains and tosses are included in 
(( )) ~ income in the current period. 

Use of Estimates g The pteparation of financial statements in accordance with 
ASNPO requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

() 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
management"s best estimates as additional information 
becomes available in the future. Significant estimates were 
required in the valuation of other liabilities and reserves. 

11 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

June 30 201J 

Financial Instruments 

<., 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Financial instruments are l.ded at fair value when 
acquired or issued. In subse l periods, equities traded in 
an active market and deriva s are reported at fair value, 
with any unrealized gains?~ losses reported in operations. 
All other ffnancial -inst .uri'ents are reported at cost or 
amortized cost less imp ent, if applicable. Financial assets 
are tested for impair, t when changes in circumstances 
indicate the asset cou impaired. Transaction costs on the 
acquisition, sale issue of financial instruments are 
expensed for th e items remeasured at fair value and 
charged to the f ncial instrument for those measured at 
ammtized v 

1. First Time Adop ion of Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations 

Effective July 1, 2012, the organiz~ on adopted the requirements of the new accounting 
framework, Canadian Accounting Sta ards for Not-for-Profit Organi'Z.ations (ASNPO) or Part 
Ill of the requirements of the Canadia lnstitute of Chortered Accountants (CICA) Handbook -
Accountingf These are the orga zation·s first financial statements prepared in accordance 
with this frameworl<, and the t sitional provisions of Section 1501, First-time Adoption 
have been applied. Section requires re trospective application of the accounting 
standards With certain ele v exemptions and mandatory exceptions. The accounting 
policies $et out in Mote 1 e been applied in preparing the financial statements for the 
year -ended June 30, the comparative information presented in these financial 
statements for the year June 30, 2012 and in the preparation of an opening ASNPO 
balance sheet at the ~ of transit ion of July 1, 2011 . 

The organization is~ financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2012 using 
generally accip ccounting ptindples prescribed by the CICA Handbook • Accounting Part 
V · Pre-change er ccounting Standards. The adoption of ASNPO resulted in adjustments to 
the previous! e rted fund balances, excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for 
the year and flows of the organization. 

12 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<.I: 
C.I\Nl\01\ 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30 201 3 

2. First Time Adoption of Canadian Accounting Standards forl,fN or-Profit Organiratfons (Continued) 

A reconciliation or the excess (deficiency) of revenue eve penditures reported in the organization's June 30,. ·2012 financial 
statements to its excess (deficiency) of revenue over expi · res under ASNPO for the same period is .as follows: 

. ~ 
Exe. ess {deficiency) of revenue over expenditures(tf>fe}, _ _ ___________ _..__ ........ __ ..,.._ 

changeover Accounting Standards I/ S 
Unrealized loss on long-term fnvestments prev· 

Operating Health Benefit National 
Fund Trust 'Equity fund f illar5 Total 

(619,724) s 472,809 s 636,834 'S 13,332,302 S13,822,221 

recorded direcUy to fund balances (114,866) (234, 201 J (260,762) (844;737) (1,514,566) 

Excess {deficiency} of revenue over expe it s (794,590) s 238,608 'S :376,072 S 12,487, 565 $12,307 ,65,5 
ASNPO 

13 



Canadian Hoc~ey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

.ti 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2013 

3. Cash 

The organization's bank accounts are held at one chartered .lfZa and earn interest at a rate 
of bank prime less 2.05% with a certain account requirin(JPn'.i'inimum average balance of 
$3,000,000 be maintained. The prime rate at June ~OB was 3.00%. Bank balances 
include $70,979 denominated in U.S. dollars co~v ~¥ to $76,605 Canadian. The 
organization has a line of credit of $1 ,000,000 at a ra barik prime and it is secured by a 
general security agreement. At June 30, 2013, organization had undrawn credit 
capacity of $1 ,000,000 under this facility as wp ll letter of credit in the amount of 
$200,000. <::::::-' () 

. I, 

4. Receivable From Funds / Payable To Fu s 

The interfund l)alances are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

S. Long-Term Investments 

Cash and money market f (Effective rate 1%·2%) S 6,022,580 $ 
Bond funds 23,718,855 

2, 344,626 
27,847,584 
26,719,249 Equities g \\. \'\ 33,213,678 

Government bonds (J ~~ 915,251 
Corporate bonds ; ~ 1,622,54 3 3,025,824 

Market value() $6514921907 S 591937,283 

Corporate and government bonds have effective rates ranging from 3.18% to 6.02% and 
mature between January 2014 and December 2019. long-term investments had an average 
rate of return 9f 3.~0%. 

14 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<., 
CAN AD I\ 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2013 

6. Property, J>lant and Equipment 

2012 

Accumulated 
Cost Cost Amortization 

Building s 562,508 s s 562,508 s 
Computer equipment 1,548,669 1,139,845 346,706 
Leasehold improvements 2, 193,598 2,090,259 169,158 
Office equipment 1,432;734 1,306,166 ;)_ 21 ,853 
Training/medical equipment 482,858 453,864 ,,-

Net book value D s 6,220,3 1, 301,340 s 5, 552,642 s 537,717 

s 4,919,027 ,_ s 5,014,925 

J fr, ' ~ 
During the year, the organiza ·on recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
$763,850 (2012 -$197, 340). 

() 
7. Accounts Payable and A d Liabilities 

Accounts payable ~ccrued liabilities include $144,320 denominated in U.S. dollars 
converted to $150, anadian. Also included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
are eove,nme"'{) ances totallne.$412,900 (2012 • $182,003). 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANAOA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2013 

8. Deferred Contributions - Operations 

II 
Deferred contributions, operations. relate to restricte~ rating funding received in the 
current period that is related to expenses that will be;r})rred in the subsequent period. 

Changes in the deferred contributions balance re ed in the Operat~ng Fund are as 

follows: r!J 
Balance, b .. ;nnlng of year ~ ~ ()() 
Contributions received 

2013 2012 

$ 1,169,420 $. t ,539,471 
2,276,907 1,169,420 

Recognized to revenue t 
~ \) 

Balance, end of year 

3,.446,327 2,708,891 
p 1169,420} {1,539,471 l 

$ 2,276,907 $ 1,169,420 

9. lnterfund Transfers a d l j? 
During the year, the ~ of Directors authorized a transfer of $4,835,783 to the Operating 
Fund from the Pillar~ ds. 

10. Funding (J 
The general operating grants received from government funding agencies are recorded in 
the fiscal year to which they apply. Total funding received during the fiscal ·year was 
$4,422,600 (2012 - $3,815,200). 

16 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

~ 
CANP.0/\ 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2013 

11. Commitments I 
The organization has entered into a contract with the IIHJ Omitting to a hosting fee. The 
contract expires during the 2020/2021 season. ~ 

The organization has also entered into a contract wf change Solutions Inc. committing 
fees until 2017. 

The organization has entered into a ren al agr~ nt committing to incur the operating 
costs relating to the organization's rented premiy ntil 2031. 

The. expected outflow of funds relating t above commitments for the following five 
years are ~s fol~ows~ 

12, Related Party Tra11sactions 

$ 3,135, 120 
4,035,120 
3,135,120 
3,690,120 
2,235,120 

Hockey Cani!da exercises i ificant Influence over the Hockey Canada Foundation and the 
Canadian Hockey Founda · U.S. (th~ Foundations) by virtue of its sharing of premises and 
administrative supp~ The Foundations were established as registered charitable 
foundations to raise u els for the use of Hockey Canada and other organizations in the 
country wi th objecti similar to Hockey Canada. 

Transactions w· ckey Canada Foundation and Canadian Hockey Foundation U_. S. 

2013 2012 

Donations to the Foundations 
Hockey Canada Foundation $10,296,611 s 918,121 
Canadian Hockey Foundation U.S. 1,336 1,281 

$1 0,297,947 s 919,402 

17 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

-ti 
CANAD/\ 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2013 

12. Related Party Transactions (continued) 

Grants received from the Foundations 
Hockey Canada Foundation 

Amount included in Accounts payable and accrued 
Hockey Canada Foundation 
Canadian Hockey Foundation U.S. 

13. Marketing 

() 

(I 

g1 __ 2_0_13 ___ 2_0_12 

Q~ 

0 
$ 

s· 

s 

~ 

331,532 S 

94,674 $ 
(402) 

94,272 S 

108,561 

517,l69 
918 

518,187 

Sponso,ship revenue includes) in kind or S1 ,MO,n9 (ZOU· $1,402,813). 

15. Comparative Amou 

Comparative have been reclassified to conform to current year"s presentation. 

000055 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada .:, 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2013 

16. Financial Instrument Risks .if) 
C~t~k , 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instnf~flt wiU cause a financial loss for 
the other party by falling to discharge an obligation.ii ~ cial instruments which potentially 
subject the organization to concentrations of credit ri -~nsist of cash, accounts receivable 
and long term investments. The organization h eposited the cash and long-term 
investments with a reputable financial inst itution, m ich management believes the risk 
of loss to be remote. The credit risk on accounts ivable arises from reputable corporate 
partners and organizations in a simila not-for-p · sector. There have been no changes to 
the organization·s credit risk exposure from e or year. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the organiza encounters difficulty in ,meeting its obligations 
associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity risk Includes U1e risk that, as a result of 
operational liquidity requirements, t e organization will not have .sufficient funds to settle a 
transaction on the due date ; will be reed to seli financial asse ts at a value, which is less 
than what they are worth; or may be nable to settle or recover a financial asset. Liquidity 
risk a rises from acco.L.lnts payable and accrued liabilities. Due to the organization's current 
working capital, management Ueves the risk of loss to be remote. The exposure to 
liquidity risk is unchanged from t prior year. 

foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk i~risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuat ause of changes in foreign exchange rates. The organization·s 
financial instrument:p, re exposed to this risk include cash and accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities. T posur~ to foreign-,currency risk is unchanged from prior year. 

Mar1<et Risk 

Market risk is~ e k that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate as re t of market factors. Market factors include two types of risk: interest 
rate risk and risk. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The organization is exposed to 
interest rate risk arising from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the 
value of its equities and bonds. The exposure to interest rate risk is unchanged from the 
prior year. 

Equity Risk 

Equity risk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from changes in 
equity markets. The organization is exposed to this risk through its equity holdings within its 
investment portfolio. The exposure to equity risk is unchanged from the prior year. 
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Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

<., 
"CANAi[)/\ 

Schedule 1 - Balance Sheet 
{Shown only for .the purpose of adoption to ASNPO) 

June 30 2012 

Hnllh B~ntfit M•tlo"al 
f'und Trusl E ult Ful\Cf Pltlars Total 

AJHb 

Cunl!flt 
~Jh 

Q~ 
1,196,071 s 1,0U,09li :S 2, 049,«10& s \l,<IU,l85 s 17,713, 957 

Al:COU/lU rcuivable 2,642,309 )◄, 100 27,0◄l !26,UIJ ),529,631 
Recelvablc from l11nds a 2:,4U, QJ9 621 ,517 86,◄87 l,:191,043 
Breakaw~y lnvento,y 5.17,079 587,079 
Prepaid cApc1Ul!S 604,)7] 71 60◄·,4◄5, 

7,su,an 1,668,710 2.; Htl,010 1,4,_za 1 ! s6a Z.5,6 26, 1591 

Lona term pr~a[d expense, g 1, ◄ 12,959 1,4 1:2,959 
L°"g.term lnvestmenh. 8,769,181 ),376,969 1),579,156 l◄,211,975 59,937,2:U 
Prcperty, pt.nt 1nd equipment 5,014,925 5 ,014 925 

s l2 709 938 $ ! OU 679 \5 _H2 166 $ 48 493 54) 91 991 )26 

Llabilltln .and Fund Balancin 

Current 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 7,3 )◄1311 s 1,011,121 $ 3◄8,366 $ $ !,694,lZO 
Payable, lo lllflG 

\ 
l,19 \ ,041 3, 191 ,0 41 

Deferred contribution~. 0perati011s 1,1691,420 1,169,420 

M0◄,25 1 f,011,.121 3~!,366 l, 191/04J 1l,054,7U 
Other Jiabllltlc, and 11isrrve1 10,350,00Q 10, 350,000 

/4 S, $0.t,251 
~ 

1,011,IZJ 10,698,366 l , 191,043 23,404,783 

Fund balances 
Internally rtstrlcled :5,014,925' 4,0l•,Ss6 S,O◄l,5DQ 4S,l01,500 .59,195,791 
Unrestrlcled () 9,19D,76l 9,190,762 

14,205 ,687 ◄,03◄,556 s,o,o,aoo <15,302,500 61,586,543 

?l709 931 $ 5 045 619 s ,s 7◄2 16 6 -- $ ◄8 .◄~l S4l $ 91 991 326 

The accornpanyin~ note Integral part of these financial statements. 000057 20 



Jul 1 2011 

lfl'""""" .. ..,ts 

Cutr•nt 
<:a sh I Ml treasury bllts Q<::;, $ 

6, IJl,770 
A<<OU!lU retelv,1blc 2,]85,7&'1 
ltecelv1ble from l1mch 

tl 
1, JD0,559 

8rrakaway Inventory $17,876 
l>repild fxpfflSL'I SIS. JS& 

10,au,n1 
l..lm9-lfrm lrr,,CJlm,:nh l, 1 01,29◄ 
Propcny, plant ind cqulpmont () 1,991,116 

s 15 921 961 

Ll•bllltlos •nd tund 8al1nces () ,C11tr~nt 
AC<C111nu . p.iy.able and acaued llablllllc, s ◄,052.037 
P•~b!t! lo lun~ 
Ol'fNr~ contflbutlons. •Opcrallons l,SJ9,◄ 71 

\ S,Sh, 508 

Deferred caplt1I contrlllutlons fit 6,l9◄ 
Olhor llabllltlcs 1nd re1erv1!$ 

/4 <>,4-07,101 

Fund b1lances 
lnternail; reittlctcd l,1 7<1,891 
Unrestrl(tcd () a,l◄0,169 

9,515,()60 

$ 1S 9_1) llU 

Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

$ 

s 

s 

$ 

-ti 
CANAOI\. 

Schedule 2 - Balance Sheet 
(Shown only for the purpose of adoption to ASNPO) 

Hntth &enem. H.1t1ona1 
Tru!.t Eglllt)' F·und 

1,i◄9,247 s 1,0t,OOS 
]7,.945 13,955 

1,187,IU 1,192.960 
3,509,144 U, J◄l,◄ 32 

• 6'16 ))6 s 1S 541 3'12 

71◄,JSS, s 2JU0-4 
1 26, 0)Jl ]91,060 

900,) 88 623,66◄ 

10,2s0,000 

900,)18 1 0,873,66◄ 

3,795,948 4,667,728 

3,795,9◄8 ◄,(16-7,728 

◄ 696 ll6 15 5◄1 ]92 

Ir\ 
000058 

PIiiars 

s -

19,081,61 8 

$ 19 OBJ 618 

$ . 
783,466 

783,◄66 

783,◄66 

)8,300, 152 

38,300,152 

s 39 083 618 

$ 

_S 

.s 

s 

Tolll 

9,◄62,022 
2,3)7,{>89 
1,100,559 s,,,n, 

515, )11 

1<4, 201 ,Sl◄ 
59,0◄;9·,◄H 

1,991, 1811 

75 2◄◄ 201 

S·,OS&,9,6 
t, )00,!S\9 
t SJ!l,,411 

7, 899',026 

116, 294 
10,250,000 

11,965,)20 

47,9Jl, 719 
l ,!~0,169 

56,278,883 

75 144 208 

2.1 



for the year ended June 301 2012 

Revenue 
Funding 
Marketing 
Development 
Hoc.key re$wrce centre 
National e'tlents and camps 
High pertorrnance 
International event hosting 
1n11esunent and lnterest Income 
Administration 
Member set'Yicei 

Canadian Hockey Association o/a Hockey Canada 

Operating Health 
fund Benefit Trust 

-t, 
CANADA 

Schedule 3 - Statement of Operations 
(Shown only ror the purpose of adoption 10 ASl'IPOI 

Hattonal 
Equity Fund Pllh1rs TOtel 

$ 5,370, 164 S 
14,729,399 

1,307,551 
1,J45,728 

S93,651 

. s . $ 

j '·'"·"'. 
/lf'....._ 731,189 

133,373 575,050 
3 6,698,.0 54 

1,658,927 

Foundat.ion events 
Insurance premiums 
Other Income 

g 
() 

'-../ 3,361,00S 

a 1,472,029 

1,147,314 
◄,035,242 8 ,744,897 

4,168,615 9,319,947 1a,ss6,9a1 ~ 

5, J10,164 
14,719,399 

1,307,551 
1 ,l◄S,,72.$ 

593,657 
1,469,405 

36,698,054 
l ,5'7,350 

73S,789 
3,361,005 
1,472,029 

12,780,139 
1.,1 ◄7,314 

Expcndlwre, 
funding 
Marketing 
Oevelopment 
Hockey resource centre 
Natlona.l evef\U ,and camps 
High performance 
lntematlonat ,evet1l hosting 
OIYJ11pics 
Adm1n1matlon 
Custodial fees 
Metnl>er services 
Information seNlces 
foundation events 
Insurance premiums 
lilsurance claims 

Excess (deflcle:ncy) of rcvenu• over p dltures for the year 
beft>re other Item 

Other liem 
Unrealized loss on market va 

r e11 enditurf:j (of the ar 

Integral part or these financial statemenu. 

.(26,592 
2,760,576 
1,87B,5,54 

630,325 
2,019,115 
6,927,355 

B,829 
11,934, JSB 

2,758,'489 
382,542 

1,42.2,0JO 

32,148,765 

1619,724) 

(174,866) 

424,092 

1,,67?,826 
t ,5911,888 

,695,806 

472,809 

(234,201)_ 

73,748 

455,503 
61 ,771 

5,750,100 
2,341,991 

8,683,113 

636,834 

(260,761) 

23,948,?'0 

1, tOS,670 
*70,249 

25,214,.679 

13,332,302 

(844,737) 

426,592 
2,760,576 
1,952,302 

630,325 
2,019',115 
6,921, 355 

'll,94B,760 
81821i 

i4,919,623 
~32,020 

2,756,489 
382,541 

1,412,030 
7,422,926 
3,940,879 

13,822,211 

(1.,514,566) 

'$_ ~ 79_◄ 590 ~$ __ '238 60~ ~ _ 376 072 $ 11 487 565, $ 12 307. 6S5 

000059 22 



Growth Fund 

f'und balance ' t>ejln11lng or lh e year $ 10,97D,OO s 

(9,ZSl,716) 

4,066,230 

Excen (defldC!nc:y) of r 

1 
e ~panditvres f'or L ~Mues over 

ntcr•lund tra ., L .. o ~ar n,,erJ !Notr 9) 

·Fund 1>11anca ,c:•nd r • _ o 11\C! year $ 5,784,501 

11/4 

The accompanying note"(;/g a ntesral part of th ese financial stat ements . 

$ 

Canadian Hocke A y ssociation o/a Hockey Canada 

r1nch Support 
fund 

10,069,1&9 

619, IIT 

(J ,003) 

10,695 ,467 

Schedule 4 • . . 0 Act1v1ty for th . c:. AN Ao A. - e P1 liars Fund 

1nsur1nce R 
rn1ern1lion1I ·t 

:Stabll!iatl _ ate 
Hosting Sup vent 

on Fund 
port 

fund 

$ s,aa◄,574 s 9,3-61,lli 

551,211 (1,790, 1 15) 

(11,508) (<I, 107, 685) 

$ ~.01, H ~ s J ,469, SlS 

s 

$ 

2◄7,6 1' 5 

{3,476, 49<1} 

l ,61l, 921 

$ 

$ 

Tot.I 

45,302,500 

(◄,8l5,7&J) 

31,226,501 

23 
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24(1) 

To the Members of 
Hockey Canada 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statemin ockey Canada, which comprise the 
balance sheet as at June 30, 2014, the statements o o erations, changes in fund balances and 
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary ignificant accounting pp.licies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financia 
~~ 

Management is responsible for the pr!aration and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian counting standards for not-for-profit organizations, 
and for such int~rnat control as manageme t determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free fr m material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility r"\ 

Our responsibil ty is to expr~sst inion on t()ese financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accord with canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we co 1?1 ·th ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assuranc ,bout whether tt e· financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves p~or ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the f a ,al statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are . appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity"s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. · 

2 

24(1) 
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24(1) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Hockey Canada as at June 30, 2014 and the results of its operations and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit 
organizations. 

24(1) 

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Waterloo, Ontario 

24(1) 
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Hockey Canada 

.; 

.Ji 
CANADA 

Balance Sheet 

June 30 2014 2013 
Operating Health National 

Fund Benefit Trust Egui~ Fund Pillars Total Total 

Assets 

Current 
Cash (Note 2) s 5,610,351 $ . $ 628,920 $ 476 $ 6,239,747 s 5,404,720 
Accounts receivable 9,629, ]9& 31,581 954,600 650, 241 '11 ,265,120 ◄,5s4,n4, 
Recc.-ivable from funds (l'lote 3) 263,215 1,745,431 4,209, 110 6,217,756 2, 656,310 
Hockey Resource Centre lnvefltory 7◄◄, l7◄ 7◄4,374 573, 105 
Prepaid expenK'S 2,579,9 2,579,990 1, 749, 144 

1,777,012 5,792,630 650, 717 ,27,047,687 H ,%8,053 

Lon! term prepai d eJq>MWoi 3)2, 145 
Lq -term Investments !Note ◄) 4,394,078 17,220,979 28,805, 394 H , 39l,522 65,492,907 
Property, pl&nt and equipment (Note 5) 5,060,773 4,919,027 

$ 6 171 090 $ 23013609 29 456 J.1 I $ 100 501 982 $ 85 732 132 

Ltabillties and fund llalanc-es P . Current 
~ 

Bank lndebtednc!S~ (IIOle 2) $ 16,916 $ - $ s 16,9 16 s 
Accountli payable and ar;r;rlll!(! l iablliti5 (Note 2 and 6) 0 '·"'·'" U2, J77 876,980 75,000 IO,J97,6 U 6,375,963 
Payable to funds (Mote)) 5,954, 541 263,215 6,217, 756 2,656,310 
Deferred contribu1ions, ope,atlorl$ (Note 7) 2,O50,J15 2,OSO, 3 1S 2,276,907 
Ow to related panles (Note 11) 806,486 806,486 94,:m 

17,424,5911 849,193 876,980 338,215 19,4&9,016 11, 401, 452 
Other liabilities 4nd reserv,,s 14,875,000 14,875,000 12,500,000 

\ 17,◄24,S91 ,-; 849,:293 15,751,980 :na, 2 u 3'!,164,086 23,903,452 

Fund balances 
rntemaHv restricted 

~ 
5,060,771 5, 321,797' 7,261,629 29,1 17,696 <46., 762., 095 46,296,984 

Unr5tricted 19, J7!i,S01 19, 375,801 15,531 ,696 

24,436,574 5,32-1,797 7,261 ,629 29,117,896 66,137,196 61,828,680 

$ 41 861 172 s $ 23 013 6'19 s l'l ◄~6 111 s 100 ,01 _982 s 8,5 732 132 

19(1) and 24(1) 

The accompanying notes are an 71;7,i part or these financial 5fotements. 000064 4 
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Hockey Canada 

CANADA 

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances 

For the ear ended June 30 2014 2013 

Operatln National Pillars 
Fun E ult Fund Schedule 1 Total Total 

Fund balances, be!j.innln,g of the year $ $ 1 ,638, 527 $ 5,512,929 $ 31,226,501 $ 61 ,828,680 s 68,586,543 

Excess (deficiency) or revenue over expenditures 683,270 1,7◄8,700 2,205,247 4, 309,216 (6,757,863) 

5,321,797 7,261 ,629 33,431,748 66 ,137,896 61,828,680 

lnterfund! tfansfen; (Note 8) (4,313,852) 

Fund balances, end of the year $ 5,32.1 ,797 s 7,26 1,629 s 29,117,896 s 66,137,896 s 61 ,828,680 

integral part of these financial statements. 5 



- - - -Hockey Canada . .. 

~ 
CANADA 

Statement of Operations 
For the 'i.ear ended June 30 2014 2013 

Operating Health National 
Fund Benefit Trust Eguit'i. Fund Pillars Total Total 

Revenue 
Funding (Note 9 and 11 ) s 8,098,179 $ . $ . $ . s 8 ,098,179 $ 5,875,229 
Marketing {Note 12) 22,058,382 22,058,382 20,108,278 
Development 2,351 ,881 2, 351,881 1,549,432 
Hockey rewurce centre 1, 294,438 1,294 ,438 1,586,643 
National events and camps 845,932 845,9.32 1,106,051 
High perfonnance 1,285,.676 1,285,676 1,254,607 
International event tiostin11 , ..... , 7,940 7,940 4,370,62\ 
Olympics 1,918,082 
Investment and inter~t income 273,821 1,044,819 2,126. 148 3,-H<t,788 3,132,086 
Administrat ion 2,196, 2 , 196,480 1,100,385 
Member services 3,~8 3,810,848 3,612,695 
foundation events 3,0 8◄ 3,048,08◄ 366,198 
Insurance premiums ◄,021 ,038 8,507, 12◄ ~ 12,528,162 12,620,260 
Other income ,497 60,497 

4,294,859 9,551 ,943 2,134,088 62,949,369 56,682,485 

Expendltur~ 
/~ funding 1,238,120 1,238,120 209,506 

Marketins 

() 
4, ◄42,653 4,442,653 2,995,177 

Development 2,591,613 2,856,221 2,843,273 
Hockey resource centre (Note 13) 571 , 542 571 , 542 588,080 
National events and camps 2,516,377 

~ 
2,516,377 3,113,523 

High performance ·11, 105,611 11,105,611 7,967,312 
International event hostin!! 2,037,500 2,037,500 6, 142.,580 
Olympics 3,948,404 3 ,9◄8,-'10◄ 155,236 
Administration 

\ 
15,172,725 932,650 505,162 1,190,561 17,801,098 13,480,115 

Custodial fees 60,979 126,716 187,695 204,197 
Member services 3,355,629 3,355,629 s, 116,113 
Information services 703,473 ~ 703,473 840,827 
Foundation evenb 3,048,086 3,048,086 373,694 
Donations 10,000,000 
Insurance premiums 1,650,194 5,750,700 7,400,894 7,439,096 
Insurance claims 1,449,538 2,871. 102 4,320,640 4 ,349,775 

48,694,233 4,032,382 9,452,551 3,354,777 65 ,533,9◄3 65,818,504 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expen fot" the year 
before other item (1,725,754) 262,477 99,392 (1,220,689) (2, 58-4,574) (9,1 36,019) 

Other Item 
1,397,753 ◄20,793 1 ,649,308 3,425,936 6 ,893,790 2,378,156 

Exc•~S d'eflclen ear $ 328 001 s 683 270 s 1 7◄8 700 s 2 205 247 4 JO~ 216 6 7':17 863 

The accompanying notes are an al part of t~ financial statemenu. 000066 6 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended June 30 2014 2013 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year~ 
Items not involving cash 

4,309,21 6 S (6,757,863) 

Amortization of property, plant and equipment Q~ 
Unrealized gain on market value of investments n} 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment -B 

Changes in non-cash working capital balances (} 
Accounts receivable 
Hockey Resource Centre inventory () 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued liabiliti es 
Deferred contributions, operations 
Other liabilities and -reserves 

Cash flows from investing activt 
Purchase of property, plant an 
Proceeds on dlspo$al of pro 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds on sale of invest e 
Advance from related p 

Increase (decrease~ 

Cash, beginning of '/E 

Cash, end of year 

Represented by 

Cash 
Bank indebtedness 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

859,997 
(6,893,790) 

(60,655) 

(1,785,232) 

(6,681,046) 
(171 ,269) 
(478,70 1) 

4 ,021,650 
(226,592) 

2,375,000 
' 

(1 ,160,958) 

(2,946, 190) 

(1 ,095,835) 
154,747 

(4,006,825) 
8,000,000 

712 214 

3,764,301 

818, 111 

5,404,720 

763,850 
(2,378,156) 

(8,372,169) 

(1,055, 139) 
13,974 

(83,885) 
(2, 224,085) 
1,107,487 
2,150,000 

(91,648) 

(8,463,817) 

(667,952) 

(3,177,468) 

(3,845,420) 

(12, 309,237) 

17,713,957 

$ 6,222,831 $ 5,404,720 

$ 6,239,747 S 5,404,720 
(16,916) 

$ 6 222 831 $ 5 404 720 

7 
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Hockey Canada 

-ti 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2014 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations The organization is a Canad~·a ateur Athletic Association 
incorporated without share c I under the laws of Canada. 
The Association carries on o tions for the express purpose 
of improving and enhan g the growth and development of 
hockey in Canada. 

Basis of Accounting The financial statem have been prepared using Canadian 
accounting standard ~f ot·for·profit organizations (ASNPO). 

Fund Accounting The Organizatio t uows the restricted f und method of 
accounting. 

The Oper n Fund accounts for the costs of programs, 
administra · and other operating expenditures of the 

(F d Associat ion funded by fees, funding agencies, sponsorships 
~<:::::f} and o r general income. 

~ The He th Benefit Trust fund was established in 1988 to 
-1/) ~ ride supplementary medical and dental coverage during 
M C sanctioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses 

· viewed regularly by the Association to ensure financial 

ais is minimized. 

<f5J The National Equity Fund balance has been accumulated as a 
~ precaution against judgments that may be made against the 

,Ii} Association as a result of current or future claims. The 
{Y Association is currently involved in defending legal actions 

() 

resulting from accidents and injuries involved in CHA play. 
Provision has been made for estimated settlements and 
professional fees related to these actions. This provision is 
reviewed regularly by the Association throughout the year to 
ensure that financial risk is minimized. 

8 

000068 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

June 30 2014 

Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The Pillars are internally restricted funds which include The 
Growth Fund, Facilities Fund Branch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabilizatio~ d, the International Event 
Hosting Support Fund and th tiatives Support Fund. These 
funds are to be used as foj o . 

~ 
Growth Fund is to used, as determined by the Board 
of Directors, for t evelopment of hockey in Canada. 

facilifes Fui t be used to support current office 
structures i p nning and to review other initiatives 
regarding fa · ,es across the country. ~ 

~ : Branch u ort f und is to be used to ensure the 
~ ~· or-gani at" can support Branches for initiatives that are 

· natio n scope, but require delivery at the Branch 
(F_d level. 

~ <:::::f} P.:: In ranee Rate Stabilization Fund is to be used to ensure 
~ ~ fut re insurance rate increases are buffered by this fund . 

'VJ ~ <::::. ~ International Event Hosting Support Fund is to be used to 
~ · ~ support the organization·s hosting of international 

1/) a events. 

M V Initiatives Support Fund was approved by the Board of 
D rectors to support three initiatives identified as 

d important to the Association. The fund was created 
through profits from the 2012 IIHF World Junior 
Championship and is to be used to support the 

Inventory 

() 

Association's delivery of programs related to e-learning, 
technology, and recruitment and retention for a three 
year period. At the end of the three year period, the 
Board will examine the need for further funding. 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is generally determined on the first-in, first-out 
basis. 

9 

000069 



·1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Hockey Canada 

<I 
CA N ADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2014 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment Property, plant and equip1:t are stated at cost less 

Impairment of Long Lived 

accumulated amortization . ortization based on the 
estimated useful life of the is calculated as follows: 

Building Q(::) 25 year straight line basis 
Computer equipment 3 year straight line basis 
Leasehold improveme straight-line over the term of 

Amortizat io 

the lease 
S year straight line basis 
S year straight line basis 

t taken in the year of acqllisition. 

Assets In the event that facts and circumstances indicate that the 
~) organi~ tion's long-lived assets may be impaired, an 
~ <:;:3/ '<: evalua~n of recoverability would be performed. Such an 

~ evaluation entails comparing the estimated future 
scounted cash flows associated with the asset to the 
t's carrying amount to determine if a write down to 
et value or discounted cash flow value is required. The /it nization considers that no circumstances exist that would 

,,1/)) ~ -equire such an evaluation. 

Revenue Recognition(g Restricte;d contributions related to general operations are 
recognjzed as revenue of the Operating fund in the year in 
which the related expenses are incurred. All other restricted 

() 

contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate 
restricted fund. 

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the 
Operating fund in the year received or receivable if the 
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and 
collection is reasonably assured. In certain instances, the 
Association receives funds from the federal government and 
other supporters to offset specific expenses. When these 
funds are received prior to incurring the related expenses, 
t hey are shown as deferred contributions. 

10 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2014 

Contributed Materials & 
Services Volunteers contribute man~ h urs per year to assist the 

Income Taxes 

organization in carrying out service delivery activities. 
Because of the difficulty etermining their fair value, 
contributed services an~ recognized in the financial 
statements. Contributed ~ eriats are not recognized in the 
financial statements un they wotJld normally be purchased 
by the organization n their fair market value can be 
ascertained. 

'The org,anizatio ~ ims an exemption for income tax 
purposes as nadian Amateur Athletic Association. 
Accordingly, ovision for income taxes haS' been made in 

✓,;;:::> 

Foreign Currency J 
these finan tements. 

Translation currency accounts are translated into Canadian 
~ ;; follows: 

~ At the ansaction date, each asset, liability, revenue and 

ii
~ ense is translated into Canadian dollars by the use of the 

ex ange rate in effect at that date. At the year end date, 
tary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian 

o rs by using the exchange rate in effect at that date. The 
/-R\ o esultin~ foreign exchan~e gains and losses are included in 

<( )} ~ mcome m the current penod. 

Use of Estimates g The pteparation of financial statements in accordance with 
AS PO requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

() 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
management's best estimates as additional information 
becomes available in the future. Significant estimates were 
required in the valuation of other liabilities and reserves. 

11 
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Hockey Canada 

-ti 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2014 

Financial Instruments Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when 
acquired or issued. In addlli all guaranteed investment 
certificates have been desi ed to be in the fair value 
category, with gains and I s reported in operations. All 
other financia l instrumen~re reported at cost or amortized 
cost less impairment,i"f aoo"tfcable. Financial assets are tested 
for impairment when ges in circumstances indicate the 
asset could be impair , ransaction costs on the acquisition, 
sale or issue of i in ia instruments are expensed for those 
items remeasured fair value at each balance sheet date 
and charged to t ancial instrument for those measured at 

2. Cash 

amorUzed v 

3. 

The organization's bank accounts are:ttd at one chartered bank and earn interest at a rate 
of bank prime less 2,05% with a ce in account requiring a minimum average balance of 
$3,000,000 be maintained. The pn e rate at June 30, 2014 was 3.00%. Bank balances 
include $53,820 denominated in U.S. dollars converted to $59,380 Canadian. The 
organization has a line -of credl"t $1 ,000,000 at a rate of bank prime and it is secured by a 
general security agreement. June 30, 2014, the organization had undrawn credit 
capacity of $1,000,000 unde facility as well as a letter of credit in the amount of 
$200,000. 

() 
Included in cash is $1,82 
Host organizing commi 

of funds held in trust for the 2015 World Junior Championship 

Receivable Fro F ds / Payable To Funds 

The interfund balances are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

12 
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Hockey Canada 

<A 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2014 

4. Long-Term Investments 

5. 

~ __ 2_01_4 ___ 20_1_3 

Cash and money market funds (Effective rate 1%·2%}aQ~ 
Bond funds o 
Equities ~ 
Government bonds n 
Corporate bonds a () 
Market value V 

$ 1,335,393 S 
27,608,034 
37,272,803 

636, 629 
1,540,663 

6,022,580 
23,718,855 
33,213,678 

915,251 
1,622,543 

S 68,393,522 S 65,492,907 

Corporate and government bonds have ective rates rangin_g from 3.1 8% to 6.02% and 
mature between October 2014 and December 2019. Long·term investments had an average 
rate of return of 7.10%. \ 

I 

Property, Plant and Equipme~ 

~<r' 2014 2013 

~v /1 l 

Accumulated Accumulated 
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization 

BuUding g $ 562,508 $ 45,002 s 794,741 s 165,147 
Computer equ~ 2,494,980 1,040,164 1,548,669 658,297 
Leasehold impro m ts 1,983,174 184,659 1,961 ,365 107,591 
Office equipme 1,483,204 542,032 1,432,734 279,532 
Training/ medi uipment 536,108 187,344 482,858 90,n3 

$ 7,059,974 s 1,999,201 $ 6,220,367 s 1,301 ,340 

Net book value s 5,060,773 $ 4,919,027 

During the year, the organization recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
$859,997 (2013 -$763,850). 

13 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CA~ADA 

Notes to F;nancial Statements 
June 30 2014 

6 . Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

7. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $111,4~ enominated in U.S. dollars 
converted to $118,879 Canadian. Included as part of th payable is a receivable of 
$1 ,139,615 denominated in U.S. dollars converted to $1 ,969 Canadian and $861,418 
denominated in Swiss Francs converted to $1,037,061Q~ adian. The receivable has been 
included in accounts payable as it is settled on a net b · . 

() ~ 

Also included in accounts payable and 
totaling $519,008 (2013 - $412,.900). 

Deferred Contributions - Operations 

government remittances 

ff))_ 

Deferred cont ributions, operations late to restricted operating funding received in the 
current period that is related to expe es that will be incurred in the subsequent period . 

Changes in the deferred cont · utions balance reported in the Operating Fund are as 
follows: 

Balance, beginning of yea.!l ~~~ 2014 2013 

s 2,276,907 s 1,169,420 
Contributions receive<JIJ 2!050,315 212761907 

~ 4,327,222 3,446,327 
Recognized to V (2, 276,907) (1 1169,420) 

Balance, end o r s 2
1
050

1
315 s 2,216,907 

8. lnterfund Transfers 

During the year, the Board of Directors authorized a transfer of $4,313,852 from the Pillars 
Funds to the Ope rating Fund. 

14 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2014 

9. Funding 

The general operating grants received from government ..6J?,ng agencies are recorded in 
the fiscal year to which they apply. Total fund·ng ~~• during the fiscal year was 
$4,936,500 received from the Government of Canada~ the Province of Alberta (2013 · 

s •.• ,, .• oo,. a :::..:31 

10. Commitments ~ ,:::::7 (j 
The organization has entered into a contra h the IIHF committing to a hosting fee. The 
contract expires during the 2020/2021 se 

The organization has entered into a re nt agreement for warehouse space committing fees 
until 2017. 

The organization has ente red into a ntract with Exchange Solutions Inc. committing fees 
until 2017. 

The organization has entered · 
costs relating to the organizat 

a rental a_greement committing to incur the operating 
rented premises until 2031 . 

The expect ed outflow of u s relating to the above commitments for the following five 
years are as follows: 

$ 3,994,344 
3,095,344 
3,606,344 
2,149,344 
3,049,344 

15 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
C:ANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2014 

11. Related Party Transactions 

Hockey Canada exercises significant influence over the H-ff/JJ. Canada Foundation and the 
Canadian Hockey Foundation U.S. (the Foundations.) by virof its sharing of premises and 
administrative support. The Foundation,s were esf~shed as registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey C da and other organizations in the 
country with objectives similar to Hockey Canada. 

Transactions with Hockey Canada Foundation and 

J () 
Donations to the Foundat ions 

Hockey Canada Fo,.mdation 
Canadian Hockey Foundation U.S. 

~ 

2014 2013 

s 27,459 $ 10,296,611 
2,365 1,336 

s 29,824 $ 10,297,947 

2014 2013 

Grants received from the Four)d n (()) ~ 
Hockey Canada Foundaa_ (()). _{b? $ 1,707,747 S 331,532 

These transactions a~ae normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange 
value, which approxi.Y the arms length equivalent value. 

2014 2013 

Amounts due t (fr ) related parties are as follows: 
Hockey Cana oundation s 805,445 s 94,674 
Canadian Hockey Foundation U.S. 1,041 (402) 

$ 806,486 s 94,272 

12. Marketing 

Sponsorship revenue includes value in kind of $1,837,692 (2013 · $1 ,440,779). 

16 
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Hockey Canada 
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CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2014 

13. Hockey Resource Centre 

Total Hockey Resource Centre inventory sold during ear was $571,542 (2013 • 
$588,080) . 

II, 

14. Comparative Amounts 

Comparative amounts have been reclassified to c rm to current year's presentation. 

17 
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CANADA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 2014 

15. Financial Instrument Risks 

Credit Risk . ~ 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instru will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Fi~ ial instruments which potentially 
subject the organization to concentrations of credit~· onsist of cash, accounts receivable 
and long term investments. The org,mization h epositecl the cash and long-term 
investments with a reputable financjal institution, f. which management believes the risk 
of loss to be remote. The credit risk on accounts e1 able arises from reputable corporate 
partners and organizations in a similar not~for-pr i sector. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the organiza · n counters difficulty in meeting it~ obligations 
associated with financial liabilities. Li id. risk includes the risk that, as a result of 
operational liquidity requirements, the o~nization will not have sufficient funds to settle a 
transaction on the due date; will be forced to sell financial assets at a value, which is less 
than what they are worth; or may b unable to settle or recove r a financial asset. Liquidity 
risk arises from accounts payable an ccrued liabilities and amounts due to related parties. 
Due to the organization·s current work g capital, management believes the risk of loss to be 
remote. 

Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is~ h ·s that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate use of changes in foreign exchange rates. The organization·s 
financial instruments th e exposed to this risk include cash and accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities. /i) 
Market Risk O ( ) ~ 
Market risk is the s that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate as a r ul of market factors. Market factors include two types of risk: interest 
rate risk and e it isk. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The organization is exposed to 
interest rate risk arising from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the 
value of its equities and bonds. 

Equity Risk 

Equity risk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from changes in 
equity markets. The organization is exposed to this risk through its equity holdings within its 
investment portfolio. 

The organization's exposure to the above risks_ is unchanged from the prior year. 
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Auditor's Comments on Supplementary ancial Information . 

Q(:) 

~ gt! 
Hockey Canada tAQ.._(J} To the Membe,s of O a() 16k--o 

The audited financial statements of the organ~ ion are comprised of the ba(ance sheet as at 
June 30, 2014, and the statements of operat ions, changes in fund balances and cash flows for the 
year then ended ar-id a summary of sigl~·ticant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. We have issued our report t h n dated November 13, 2.014, which contained an 
unqualified opinion on those financial state ents. The audit was performed to form an opinion 
on the financial statements as a whil The Schedule of Activity for the Pillars Fund is present 
for the purposes of additional analysi nd is not a required part of the financial statements. 
Such supplementary information is esponsibility of management and was derived from the 
underlying accounting and other re rd used to prepare the financial statements. 

The supplementary inforrnatio s been $Ubjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial sta#.e ts and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such suppleme information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare th · ncial statements or to the financial statements themselves . 

./LA 

24(1) 

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Waterloo, Ontario 
24(1) 

24(1) 
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Schedule 1 - Activity for the Pillars Fund 

For the year ended June 30, 201 ◄ 

Fund balance, beginning of the year 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures '°' the year 

Inter-fund transfers (Nole 8) 

Fund balance, end of the year 

s 

$ 

0.-owth Fund 

5,7S<l, 507 

1 ,031,1◄5 

71 

6,117,723 

Jnternattonal Ev .. nt 
Branch Support lrtSuramc:e Rate Hosting Support 

Facm1ia fund Fund StabilizaUon Fund Fund 

$ ,,,,,,,,. '!)'·"'·"' 
571,0656(:) 1,2◄◄, 709 

$ 

g 
() 

( 100,736) 

S Ii ,839,◄◄0 

$ 

s 

6,◄Jl,3◄8 

1,1 ◄1,674 

80 

7,510,102 

$ 

$ 

3,◄69,538 

(2,016,665) 

(52◄,575) 

851,298 

$ 

$ 

Initiatives 
Pillar 

1,613,921 

287,319 

(1,901,2◄0) 

$ 

Total 

31,226,501 

2,205,247 

(◄, 313,852) 

$ 29, 117,896 

-
r 
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To the Members of 
Hockey Canada 

We have audited the accompanying financial slatem 
balance sheet as at June 30, 2015, the statements 
cash flows for the year then ended, and a sum 
explariatol)' information. 

Independent Auditor's Report 

of -Hockey Canada, which comprise the 
pe rations, changes In rund balances and 

f significant clccounting policies .1nd other 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the pr aration and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian a counting standards for not•for-profi t organizations, 
and for such inte rnal control as mana ement determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
or financial statements that' a re free f m material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error . 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibil ity is to expres opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accor with Canadian generally accepted auditing s tandards. Those 
standards require that we:r;ply wlttl ~thfcal requirements. and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable. assura about whether the financial statements are free from mat~rial 
misstatement. 

An audit involves:!{Jf ming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures In the In clal statements. The prclcedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgnient, includi e assessment of the risks of material misstatement or the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
tonsiders internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation or the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that a re appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness or accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness or accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

24(1) 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Hockey Canada as at June 30, 2015 and the results of its operations and its cash flows 
for the year then ended In accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit 
o·rganizations. 

24(1) II 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public.Accounnota~ )) 

Waterloo, Ontario ~ -::..:fl 

~~ ' ~ 
~~~~/4 ~ · 
~ 11 ~«ib~ d ,n1~ 

() ;(!f' 
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June 30 

Asseu 

Current 
Ca1/l(Nol1!2) 
Short-term l,,.,.1!1uncnts (Uot.e 31 
Al:(ounlS n>eelvabll' 
~telvable from lv:m (Note 4) 
Hot~ ~ce Centre inYO!ltO'Y (Note 5) 
Pre~lo expc!nscs 

Lons-t erm lrwestm.,nis (Nott' 6) 
Property, plant •!Id equlp-nt (Note 7) 

LlabflltlH 11\Cl Fund e.a11nces 

Current 
8.enk tndtbt~s (Nate 2) 
Aecounts pay.ible and accrued !laillllt_ies (Note 8) 
Payable to funds (Note 41 
Deferrl'd GClltribullons, operations (Note 9) 
Due to related par\li:.-s !Nole 1~) 

Otrn,r liabillth,s ■nd ,e.,.rves 

Fund haranccs 
Internally ,.,,t,kted 
Unll!Stric.ted 

On btl'la\l ol the Board: 

24(1) 

Operating 
Fund 

$ '4,660,611 

s 

p 
() 

1,,na.ae, 

1,1S9,211 
1, 06,515 

H>,60 <1, 613 

10,60<1,61) 

.C,S,26,766 
'il,61s,an 

t-',1.C2,648 

$ Z◄IT-47,161 

s 

$ 

s 

$ 

Healt h 
Benefit Trust 
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Balance Sheet 

2015 2014 

Total Totat 

20,979,710 s 6,239,1'<1 
676,8)3 

8, 147,'116 11 ,165,8?0 
S,012,310 6,217,756 

602,691 7~',374 
6◄1.895 2,579,990 

U,101,◄9S 27,047,687 

70.,81 5, 677 ~-m,m 
◄,, 516,766 S.060,n3 

111 4◄],9)8 s 100.501. 982 

)7,976 s 16,916 
12,553,658 10,397,613 

5,0 1 Z,380 6 ,217,7S6 
1,759,211 2,050,l-15 
1, 116,5,15 8ll6,~86 

20,-479,7◄0 1M8UM 
1 5,'l_l◄,609 ,, ,S;n,ooo 

35,89◄, 349 ~ .l&<l,066 

65,933,707 46,762,095 
9 ,6l5,a82 19,l75,BDI 

75,5◄9,589 66,131,896 

111,◄◄3,9)8 s 100,501,981 
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For the ear end d . . e JuneJ0 

Fund balances . • • beginning of th ,e year 

Excess {defiden cy) of revenu · 1 ures e over expend"t 

lnterfund· t · ransfe . rs (Note 10) 

fund balan ces, end of th e year 

/4 a 

Operatln 
Fund 

The accompanying '(Jg . notes a inte gral ,part of the . se financial st t a ements. 

Hockey Canada 

Statement of Ch ~ 
;:-- -::::;----an -g -e-s~in Fund Bal;~;;~ 

5, 321,797 s 7 , 26 1,629 

(86,8561 

Pilla.rs 
Seheduhl 1 

s 29, 1 i7 ,896 

9, 8'53,0 23 

38,970,9f9 

12,400,000 

s 51,370,919 

s 

201 5 2014 

Total Total 

66,137,896 $ 61,828,680 

9,411,693 ·4,309,216 

7 5 ,549,589 66,137,896 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
c:,i.NAOA 

Statement of Operations 
Far the rnr ended June 30 2015 2014 

Operatin9 Health National 
Total Fund Benefit Trust Eguit:t: Fund Pillars Total 

Revenue 
Fundifl'.s (Note 11 J $ 5,510,710 $ . s $ . $ 5,510,710 s 8,098,179 
Marlleting /Note 12J 22,026,358 22,026,358 22,066,322 
Development 4 ,281,404 4,281,404 3,646,318 
National events and camps (Note 12) 6,007,129 6,007, 129 ),894,017 
High perionnance 3,97,3,618 3,92),678 1,285.676 
International event hostlng (Note 11) 35,465,576 35,465,576 
Olympic, 

, ..... , l,918,082 
lnv~'tment and interest !ncome 251,063 1,028,460 '2, 128,792 3,408,31.5 3,444,788 
Admlnlstratfon 1,659,255 l ., 196,480 
Member services 3,423, 3,423,464 3,810,8-48 
lnwranc.e premiums Q~: 4 ,013,366 8,422,778 12,436,144 12,528,162 
Oth~income 60,497 

4,264,◄·29 9,◄51,238 37,594,368 98, 1◄2.033 62,9'19.369 

Expenditures 
Fundins (} "'·"' 177,782 , .ile. 1:io 
""911iet1ng 2,694,772 2,694,112 4,4'12,653 
Devetori,ment 3,915,444 248,073 ·◄, 163,517 3,427,763 
National events and camps 9,344,863 9,344,86'3 5,564.463 
Hish performance 

() 
12,416,449 12,416,449 11,105,612 

h1tematlanal event hosting 25,5?1,445 25,571,445 2,037,500 
Olympia 3,11i.404 
Administration 15,58.7,107 486,913 622, 720 1 ,242,◄95 17,939,235 18,SO<l,570 
Custodial fees 64,483 Hl ,970 206,453 1e7,69s 
Member servlc!S 3,l26,09S 3,326,095 j,J5S,t.i9 
Insurance premiums 

' 
1,61,2,°"25 6,150,380 7,767:,405 7,<00,894 

Insurance claims 1,540,766 2,094,183 3,634,949 4 ,320,640 

47,462,512 3,639,704 9,179, 839 26,955,910 87,237,965 65,533,943 

Excess (d(!ficll?ncy) of revenue over expenditures i . the year 
before other item (630,514) 624,7l5 271,)99 10,638,458 10,904,068 ll ,584, 574) 

Other Item 
Unrealized !lain Hoss} on m,uitet value of inv (263,412) (85,271) (358,257) {785,435) ~1,492,375) 6 ,893,790 

Exces$ defklen ear $ {893,926) s 539,◄54 s 86 858 s 9 853.023 s 9 ◄11,693 s 4,309, 216 
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Hockey Canada -r~ 
CI\N/\.OA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the :tear ended June 30 2015 2014 

Cash flows from operating activities 
/ , •• 11,693 Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year 

~ 
s 4,309,216 

Items not involving cash tl<::) 
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 1,002,671 859,997 
Uoc,,ali,ed lo« (gain) on m, .. et "'"' of tn,,,tmeots a 1,492,375 (6,893,790) 
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 221,667 !601655) 

g 12,128 ,406 {1 t785,232) 

Changes in non-cash working capital balances 
Accounts receivable 3,077,904 (6,681,046) 
Hockey Resource Centre inventory (/ 141 ,6B3 (171,269) 
Prepaid expenses 1,938,095 (478,701) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabili.ties 2, 156,045 4,021,650 
Deferred contributions, operatfons (291,104) (226,592) 
Other liabilitie$ and reserves 539,609 21375,000 

~<::!) ~ ' 
7,562,232 (1,160,958) 

~ 19,690,638 !2,9461190) 

Ca,h flow, from io,e<ting actt,kte~ 
Purchase of property, plant and eq · nt (690,331) (1,095,835) 
Proceeds on disposal of property, n nd equipment 154,747 
'""h"e of inw,strnent< ~ (4,591 ,363) (4,006,825) 
Proceeds on sale of Investment \) (fl 8,000,000 
Ad,ance from related parties ~ 310,029 712,214 

(4,971,665) 3/64.301 

ln<rease in mh d"rin, the() ~ 14,71 8,973 818,111 . 

6,2221831 5,404,720 

Cash, end of the e s 20,941,804 $ 6,222,831 

Represented by 

Cash s 20,979,780 s 6,239,747 
Bank indebtedness {37,976} {16,916) 

s 20 941 804 s 6 222 831 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of lhcse financial statements. 
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Hockey Canada 

<., 
CI\NI\ 01\ 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2015 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations Hockey Canada (the "organi-..#!J.") is a Canadian Amateur 
Athletic Association incorpor~~ithout share capital under 

· the laws of Canada. The o~tation carries on operations for 
the express purpose of i roving and enhancing the growth 
and development of ho itl .Canada. 

Basis of Accounting ave been prepared using Canadian 
r not-for-profit organizations (ASNPO). 

Fund Accounting otlows the . restricted rund method of 

The Opera Fund accounts for the costs of programs, 
administrative and other operating expenditures of the 

/"" organ! ation funded by fees, funding agencies, sponsorships 
~ and ot r general Income. 

~ 
The Health Benefit Ti'l!St Fund vas established in 1988 to 

-1/) J r ide supplementary medical and dental coverage during 
M sa tioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses is 

wed regular1y by the organization to ensure financial risk 

4
s inimized. · 

<f5) The National ~quity Fund balance has been accumulated as a 
~ g precaution against judgments that may be made against the 

or~anlzation as a result of current or future claims. The 
organfzaUon is -currently involved in defending legal actions 
resulting from accidents and injuries ir1volved in sanctioned 

() 

hockey activities. Provision has been made for estimated 
settlements and professional fees related to these actions. 
This provision is reviewed regularly by the organization 
throughout the year to ensure that financial risk is minimized. 

,8 
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June 30 2015 

Hockey Canada 

-ti 
CA.NAO/\ 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The Pillars are internally resiric d funds which include The 
Growth Fund, Facilities Fun ranch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabilization d, the International Event 
Hosting Support Fune;! and J,h echnology Fund. These funds 
are to be used as follows: Z::::, 

Growth Fund is to e sed, as determined by the Board 
of Directors, for t evelopment of hockey in Canada. 

Facilltfos Fun i to be used to support current office 
structures nning and to review other initiatives 
regarding 1ties across the country. 

Inventory is stated at the lower o f cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is ge nerally determined on the f irst-in, first-out 
basis. 

9 
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June 30 2015 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

Hockey Canada 

-t., 
CJ'\ N t-.DI\ 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Property, plant and equip~ are stated at cost less 
accumulated amortization. ~ ~rtization based on the 
estimated useful life of thq(:) t ls calculated as follows: 

Building 
Computer equiptnent 
Leasehold improveme • 

Office equipment (j • 
Software {Y • 
Trainlng/medi I qulpment • 

25 year straight line basis 
3 year straight line basis 
straight•line over the term of 
the lease 
5 year straight line basis 
2 year straight line basis 
S year straight tine b.isis 

Amortizati 
software. 

ot taken In the year of acquisition except for 

Impairment of Long Lived 
Assets In the ent that facts and circumstances indicate that lhe 

~ ~ 
organization's tong-lived assets may be impaired, an 

~ \ ~ ~ , v. luation of recoverability would be performed. Such an . 
~ ~~ ev uatlon entails comparing the estimated future 

~ scounted ca-sh flows associated with the asset to the 
as t's carrying amount to determine if a write down to 

~

arket value or discounted cash flow value Is required. The 
organization cllnsiders that no circumstances exist that would 

() 

require such an evaluation. 

Revenue Recognitio Restricted contributions related to geAeral operations are 

() 

recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year in 
which the related expenses are incurred. All other restricted 
contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate 
restricted fund . 

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the 
Operating Fund in the year received or rec;eiv.ible if the 
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and 
collection is reasonably assured. In certain instances, the 
organization receives funds from the governments and other 
supporters to offset specific expenses. When these funds are 
received prior to incurring the related expenses, they are 
shown as deferred contributions. 

10 
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Hockey Canada 

-t, 
C::/\NAD/\ 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2015 

Contributed Materials & 
Volunteers contribute manyis per year to assist the 
organization in carrying ou service delivery activities. 

Services 

Income Taxes 

Because of the difficult¥;>, o cfetermining their fair value, 
contributed services are Q recognized in the financial 
statements. Contributi:d terials are not recognized in the 
financial statements u s they would normally be purchased 
by the organization t heir fair market value can be 
ascertained. ,Ii} . 
The organizatio&,ims an exemption for income tax 
purposes as Registered Canildian Amilteur Athletic 
Association. cc dingly, no provision for income taxes has fP been made t se financial statements. 

Foreign Currency J :::::;., 
Translation currency accounts are translated into Canadian 

::::;:::/ 'C: follows: 

)) 

· ~ At the ransaction date , each asset, liability, revenue and 

i
x ense is translated into Canadian dollars by the use of the 

ex ange rate in effect at that date. At the year end date, 
tary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian 

do ars by using the exchange rate in effect at that date. The 
~ (j). esultin~ fo(e i!}n exchan~e gains and losses are included in 

<< )) ~ income in the current period. 

Use of Estimates g. Tl)e preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
ASNPO requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

Leases 

() 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
management's best estimates as additional information 
becomes available in the future. Significant estimates were 
required in the valuation of other liabilities and reserves. 

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. A lease 
that transfers substantially all of the bene fits and risks 
incidental to the ownership of property is classified as a 
capital lease. At the Inception of a capital ,lease, an asset 
and an obligation are recorded at an amount equal to the 
lesser of the present value of the minimum lease payments 
and the property's fair value at the beginning of the lease. All 
other leases are accounted for as operating leases wherein 
rental payments are expensed on a straight line basis. 

11 
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June 30. 2015 

Flnanclal Instruments 

2. Cash (Bank Indebtedness) 

Hockey Canada 

.J;, 
C/\NnO/\ 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Financial instruments are lded at fa ir value when 
acquired or issued. In addi all guaranteed investment 
certificates have been desi ed to be in the fair value 
category, with gains and?~es reported In operations. All 
other financial instrule ~ ate reported at cost or amortized 
cost less fmpairment, If licable. Financial assets are tested 
for impairment whe ges in circumstances indicate the 
asset could be im~ai . ransaction costs on the acquisi t ion, 
sale or issue of fi al instruments are expensed for those 
ftems remeasure fair value at each balance sheet date 
and charged to tnancial instrument for those measured at 
amortized co . ►. 

lV~~ 

The organization's bank accounts ar held at one chartered bank and earn inter:est at a rate 
of bank prime less 1. 90% per annu The prime rate at June 30, 2015 was 2. 85%. Bank 
balances include 52,328,554 denomln ed in U.S. dollars converted to $2,865,470 Canadian. 
The organization has a line o~cr dlt of $1,000,000 at a rate of bank plirne and it is secured 
by a generil l security ag,eeme At June 30, 2015, the organization had undrawn credit 
capacity of $1,000,000 under facility as well as a letter of credit in the amount of 
$200,000. The organization 24(1) up to a maximum of $1,250,000. At June 30, 
2015, the organization ha n rawn credit capacity of approximately $1 ,036,000 on this. 
facility. 

54 of funds related lo the World Junior Championship. 

3. Short-term in 

Guaranteed investment certificates, bearing interest at 
1.60% per annum, maturing February 2016 

2015 2014 

S 676,833 S 
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Hockey Canada 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2015 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Receivable From Funds/ Payable To Funds . I 
The interfund balances are interest free and have ne1 fixe~~ of repayment. 

Hockey Resource Centre Inventory ;fl 01 
Total Hockey Resource Centre iovent6ry :101 .... /.Jlng the year was $506, 179 (2014 
$571 , 542 ). v ii 
Long-Term Investments Cl 
Cash arid money market funds (Effecti rate 1%-2%) 
Bond funds 

Equities ~ 
Government bonds ') . en) ~ 
Corporate bonds:::;/" f ~~ 

/P_, 2015 

S 1,186,628 $ 
30,677,478 
37,363,042 

430,386 
1, 158, 143 

2014 

1,335,393 
27,608,03'1 
37,272,803 

636,629 
1,540.663 

$70,815,677 $ 68,393,522 Market value tl ~ «tJ) 
Corporate and gove n nt bonds have effective rates ranging from 4.00% to 6.02% and 
mature between S p~er 2015 and December 2019. Other long-term investments had an 
average rate of of 1.50%. 

13 
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June 30 2015 

7. Pro!)erty, Plant and Equipment 

Building $ 
Computer equipment 
Leasehold improvements 
Office equipment 
Software 
Training/medical equipment 

Hockey Canada 

.ti 
C.I\N/\0/\ 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Accu 
Cost Am 

562, 508 $ 
1,900,582 
1,973,955 
1,468,815 

94,091 

01 
8,328 
7,944 

11,488 
47,045 

563,68 294, 566 

s 

2014 

Accumulated 
Cost Amortization 

562,508 s 45,002 
2,494,980 1,040,164 
1,983,174 184,659 
1,483,204 ~ 542,032 

536,108 187,3-14 

During the year, the o(-ganiza n recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
s1,Qo2,671 (201 4 -$859,997). 

8. Accounts Payable an~ ~ d Llabllities~ · 

Accounts payable an crued liabilities include $1,423,557 payable to the IIHF denominated 
In Swiss francs c ted to $1 ,899,452 Canadian. Also included in accounts payable and 
accrued liabiliti government remittances totaling $48,563 (2014 • $519,008) . 

14 
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Hockey Canada 

-t, 
CI\NI\DI\ 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2015 

9. Deferred Contributions • Operations I 
Deferred contributions, operations relate to restricte~ R;trating funding received in t he 
current period that is related to expenses that will be i red in the subsequent period. 

Changes in the deferred contributions balance r 

follows: () 

Balance, beginning of lhe ye~ <::::tf(J() 
Contributions received 

Recognized t o re11enue 

Balance, end of the year 

ed in the Operating Fund are as 

2015- 2014 

$ 2,050, 15 $ 2,276,907 
1,759,21 1 2,050,315 

3,809,526 
(2,050,315) 

$ 1,759,211 

4,327,222 
(2,276,907) 

S 2,050,315 

1 O. lnterfund Transfers a ~~(b7 
During the year, th~ard of Directors- authorized a transfer of $9,400,000 from the 
Operating Fund, $1, ,000 from the Health Benefit Trust Fund and $2,000,000 from the 
National Equi"t) o the Pillars Funds. 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CI\NI\UI\ 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2015 

11 . Funding ~ 

The general operating grants received from government f ing agencies are recorded in 
the fiscal year to which they apply. Total funding rf~yed du1ing the fiscal year was 
$9,339,600 received from the Government of Canad , the Government of Ontario, the 
Government of Quebec, the City of Montreal a 1e Province of Alberta (Z014 • 
$8,348,179 ). 

12. Marketing 

Sponsorship revenue includes value in kin ,755,685 (Z014 · $1,837,692)'. 

13. Commitments 

The organization has enter~d int a contract with the IIHF committ ing to a hosting fee. The 
contract expires during the- 2020 021 season. 

The organization has enter two rental agreements for warehouse space committing 
fees until 4017. , 

n,e organization has e e into a contract with Exchange Solutions Inc. committing fees 
until 2017. () . 

The organization ha ntered into ~ rental agreement committing to Incur the operating 
costs relatingrto rganization's rented premises until 2031. 

The expecte ow of funds relating to the above commitments for the following years 
are as follows. 

2016 s 3,192,920 
2017 3,716,117 
2018 2,149,344 
2019 3,049,344 
2020 2, 149,344 
Thereafter 3,448,0 32 

s 17,705, 101 
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Hockey Canada 

.ti 
C:AN/\DA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2015 

14. Related Party Transactions 

Hockey Canada exercises significant influence over the Ho--~ Canada Foundation and the 
Hockey Canada Foundation U.S. (the Foundations) by virt~ its sharing of premises and 
administrative support. The Foundations were est · hed as registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey Car and other organizations in the 
country with objectives similar to Hockey Canada. () 

T,ansactlons with Hockey Canad~~=on ang 
Donations to the Foundations _-dJ () 

Hockey Canada Foundation 
Hockey Canada Foundation U.S. 

~~~~ ' 
Grants received from the Founda n 

Hockey Canada foundation 

Canada Foundation U.S. 

2015 

$ 1,533 085 S 
J,741 

2015 

2014 

27,459 
2,365 

29,824 

201 4 

$ 406,904 $ 1,707,747 

Donations to the Found s are displayed on a cash basis in this schedule. During 2014, 
one of the major fuidr. events f or donations was rescheduled to the 2015 fiscal year 
because of slgnifica oding fn the Calgary area, leading to a disproport ionate amount 
being shown betwee two fiscal years. 

e in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange 
imates the arms length equivalent value. 

io1s 2014 

Amounts due to (from) related parties are as follows: 
Hockey Canada Foundation $ 1,119,656 s 805,445 
Hockey Canada Foundation U.S. (3,141) 1,041 

s 1,116,515 s 806,486 

15. Comparative Amounts 

Comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year's presentation. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
Ju ne 30 2015 

16. financial Instrument Risks 

Credit Risk I 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instr~ t will cause a financial loss for 
the_ot~er party by f~lli~g to discharge an ~blfgationi Fi ~taci~\ instru~ents which potentially 
subJeCt the orgamzat1on to concentrations of er ch -nsk consist of cash, accounts 
receivable, short and long term investments. The or ation has deposited the cash, short• 
term and long-term Investments with a reiu financial institution, from Which 
management believes the risk of loss to be rem e The credit risk on accounts receivable 
arises from reputable corporate partners and or : atlons in a similar not·for-Aroftt sector. 

Liquidity Risk ~ 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the organiza n counters difficulty in meetfng Its obligations 
associated with financial liabilities. LI · · risk includes the risk that, as a result of 
operational liquidity requirements, the or nization will not have sufficient funds to settln 
transaction on the due date; will be forced to sell financial assets at a value, which is less 
than what they are worth; or may b unable to settle or recov~r a financial asset. Liquidity 
rlsl< arises from accounts payable an ccrued liabilities and amounts due to related parties. 
Due to the organization's current work ng capital, management believes the risk of loss to be 
remote. · 

Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is~ . is that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate e use of changes In ·foreign exchange rates. The organization's 
financial instruments th · e .exposed to this risk include cash, accounts receivable and 
accounts payable and a liabilities. 

Market Risk ·a . 
fluctuate as a su of market factors . Market factors include two types of risk: interest 
rate risk and ul risl<. 

Interest Rate · 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The organization is exposed to 
Interest rate risk arising from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the 
value of its equities and bonds. 

Equity Risk 

Equity risk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from changes In 
equity markets. The organization is exposed to this risk through Its equity holdings within its 
investme~t portfolio. 

The organization's exposure to the above risks is unchanged from the prior year. 
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24(1) 

Auditor's Comments on Supplement~ 

To the Members of 
Hockey Canada 

,= a 
inancial Information 

< 

The audited f inancial statements of the organization are comprised of the balance sheet as al 
June 30, 2015, and the statements of ope~!ions, changes in fund balances and cash flows for the 
year then ended and a summary of si ificant accounting policies and other explanatory 
informatfon. We have issued our r eport th reon dated October 22, 201 S, which contained an 
unqualified opinion on those financial tatements. The audit was performed to form an opinion 
on the financial statements as ct whol The Schedule of Activity for the Pillars Fund and Schedule 
of Sport Canada Funded Revenue a penses is pr~sent for the purposes of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the rn cial Statements. Such supplementary information is the 
responsibility of management a as derived from the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial s ents. 

The supplementary informlt has been ~ubjected to the auditing procedures applied in the .. 
audit of th~_ financial sta nts and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such supplem ary information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prep~ financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

24(1) 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Waterloo , Ontario 
24{1) 

24(1) 
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for the unc 30, 2015 year c,ndcd J 

Fund balance ' be!Jlnn!ns ol the! yNr s 6,a11,n3 

Excess (defl . . aer.cy) of c•p<!nditurt-,, r. revenues o-,er or the yc:it 285,1 70 

lnter•lund 1,;in1fers (t,1-• f ,,_,: 10) 

und balance, end f o thcyeu 

1,200,000 

s t0,)02 ,99) 

Hockey Canada 

Q 
Schedule 1 ~ Activity for the 

CANA 

Pillars Fu~d 

Fadlltfu Fund 

s 

Fund lnSuran<: Ra 

2,,0l2 ,ll3 tJ - ~Sl~•b::.:.ll~b.~•l~lo~: ~F~undt~o- ~::~~~~-- T 
S ,U9.~-'10 S 7',580,'101. 

7 t,6'2 Q~ 

Brand'I s1spport 
lnt11rrwillon1I E 

Ho,ting Sup;.r:: Technology 
Fund 

$ 851,291 

Fund 

s 
Total 

$ 29, I 17,896 

$ 

{j 
() 

(l56, 545J 268,639 9,363,◄68 120, 5 19 9,BSJ ,02l 

,.200.000 12,◄00,000 

s 12,712, 195 $ I0,'2.l_l,766 ~ !J,120, S1 9 $ 51,370 ,9 19 

0~ 
. ~u~~-.--...;i,,,./4, t\~~ 

~ 0001 o<S» ~ 

~ 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CA N AD A 

Schedule of Sport Canada Funded Revenue and Expenses 

For the year ended June 30 

Mainstream Athletes 

Non-core 
International Sport lni,tlatives 
Long term athlete development 
Of(fcial languages 

Deficienc 

Athletes with a Disability 

Revenue 

Expenses 
Core 
Administration cos 
Staff salaries 

ainstream ath let es 

Coaching salarle an rofess!onal development 
National team o ms 
Operations and gramming 

Non-core 
International Sport Initiatives 
Long term athlete development 
Offfclal languages 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses for athletes with a disability 

IR 201 5 

s 2,33 9,1 00 

564, 157 
8 ,485, 580 
1,186,894 
.S,997,861 

13,947,830 

33, 1a 2,p2 

476, 270 
142,061 

33, 800,653 

. $ 31 461 553 

s 

s 

625,500 

29,693 
160,000 
116,237 
764,417 

54, 218 

1,124,565 

96,771 
7,1 03 

1,228,439 

(602,939) 

21 
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24(1) 

· ------- -- ----------·· -- •·· --·- ·------- ---·Independent-Auditor's-Report- ···- · · 

I 
To the Members of ~ Q<:) 
Hockey Canada . ~ a ) 
We have audited the accompanying financial stater/:~ Hockey Canada, which comprise the 
balance sheet as at June 30, 2016 and June 30, 20 he statements of operations, changes in 
fund balances and cash flows for the years then e , and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financ ;5tatem~nts 

Management is responsible for the ; paration and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the acco ting policies described in Not e 1, and for such internal 
control as management determines ls nee sary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstate ent, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to expres 
conducted our audit in acco 
standards require that we 
obtain reasonable assura 
misstatement . 

,........ 

a opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
ce with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
y with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

about whet-her the financial statements are free from material 

An audit involves,s.rming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the fi cial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, includi e assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whettler due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

000103 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Hockey Canada as at June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015 and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for 

-·,rot=fc5r:proficorganizati'ons;------· ·· ···· - - -- - -·-----·· ·· - ·· ·-- - --· - ···--· ··· 

Basis of Accounting 

Without modifying our opinion we draw attention to Note 1 to the financia l statements which 
describes the basis of accounting. The financial statement~ e prepared to assist Hockey 
Canada in showing the results of their operations for the years ed June 30, 2016 and June 30, 
2015 without the World Junior Championship 2017 activi ties. result, the financial statements 
may not be suitable for another purpose. ~(:) 

Unaudited Information O )) 
We have not audited, reviewed or othecwise a ttempt ~ erify the accuracy or completeness of 
the schedule on page 20 of the Organization's Finan · l tatements. 

W;itPrloo Ontario 
24(1) 

24(1) --~-..._.......,,....,..._.......... ~-----" ~~ 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licen,ed~ t;c Accountants ~ ~ ' . ~~ 
~~~ ~ /4 w ~ 

--({!' ____ ·ua ~~ -
()() ~ 

3 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Balance Sheet 

June 30 2016 2015 
Operating Health National 

Fund Benefit Trust Egul~ Fund Pillars Total Total 

Assets 

Current l 
Cash (Note 2) $ 2,516,SSS $ 425, 151 s · 2,914,512 $ 1,996,514 $ 7,161,102 s 20,979,780 
Short •term investml'nts I - 676,an 
Accoo~ts rece!vable (Nole 3) 96,468 273,893 2,023,780 9,504, 155 8,187,916 
:Rcceivab1e from funds (Nole 4) 1,644,070 2,703,467 i!,41 3,)36 5,012,3110 
Hockey Resource unlre inventory (Note 5) I s1 2,299 602,691 
Prepaid expenses 1,061 ,195 641,895 

117~ 562 2,165,689 5,891,872 4,020, 364 
I 

lS,35-4,◄87 36,101,495 
I 

lo"!-lerm investments (Note 6) 68, 251 ],642, 180 16,277,804 54,9]9,76-4 1p, 127,999 70,815,677 
Tan1ible capltll assets (Note 7) 4 01 ,103 :4, 101, 203 4,526,766 

s $ 5 107 869 s 22 169 676 s $ ' 58 960 128 10 7 SU 689 s 11 1 «l 938 

Liabilities ,nd f und Balances g ~ I 
Current I 

bank Indebtedness (Note 2) 

() 
$ $ $ $ $ I s 37,976 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 8) 5,3411, 761 6711,981 104, 137 1,205,331 7,337,212 12,55),658 
Payable to funds (Note -4) 6 ,413, 336 .,.413,336 5,Cl12,l80 
Deferred contributions, operations (Note 9) 2,508,958 ~,508,958 1,759,211 
Due to related parties (Note· 14) 1,472,667 1,472,667 1,116,515 

I 
9 ,330,387 678,981 104,137 7,618 ,668 17,132, H l 21l, '479,7'40 

Olher liabilitie$ and re$,erves (Note 16) 

\ 
6,'112,000 ~,-411,000 6,414,609 

I 
9,330,357 671l, 9111 6,516,137 7,618, 668 2~.144, \ 7.3 26,89-4,349 , 

F'und b■1ances i 
Internally reuncted 4,101 , 203 5, 128,888 15,653,539 51,341:,460 7r.,12S,090 7-4,933,707 
Unrntrk ted 7,21◄,◄l6 7,21◄,426 9,615,882 

11, 315, 629 5,118,,883 15,453,539 51,)41,4(>0 83,◄ 39, 516 M ,549,5/19 

s 20 646 0 16 $ 22 169 676 $ 58 960 1211 $ 
I 

107 583 619 s 111 441 938 

,..... 

19(1) and 24(1) 

: oca,mpaaying "'"" '" U,, part of th,se fiOaecial statemeo~. 000105 4 



For the ear ended June 30 

Fund balances, beginning of the year (Note 16) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expendi tures 
for the year 

lnterfund tr.lnsfers. (Note 10) 

Fund balances, end. ot the year 

$ 

s 

Oper a Health 
F Benefit Trust 

u(::;, 
,6,j8 s 4 ,86T ,251 

267,637 

5,128,888 

(1,419, f 17) 

11 ,3 15,629 $ 5, f28,888 

' I 
Hockey Canada 
i 
I 

! 

I CA NA.D A 

Statement of Changes i~ Fund Balances 
! 

2016 2015 

National Pillars 
Eguit;t Fund (Schedule 1} Total Total 

i 

I s 14,174,771 s 51 ,370,919 $ 84,549,589 s 73,637,896 
I 
i 
I 
I 

1,478,768 (1,448,576) (1,110,073) 10,911 ,693 

15,653,539 49,922, 343 
+ 

83,43«},516 84,549,589 

1,419,117 

$ 15,653,539 s 51,341,460 s 
I 

83, .. 39,516 s 84,549,589 

5 



for the year ended June 30 

Revenue 
Funding (Note 11) 
Marketing (Note 12) 
Development 
National events and camps (Note 11) 
High performance 
International event hosting (Note 11) 
Investment and interest income 
Administrat ion 
Member ser.iices 
Insurance premiums 

Expenditures 
Funding 
Marketing 
Development 
National events and camps 
High performance 
International event hostin!I 
Administration 
Custodial f~s 
Member services 
Insurance premiums 
Insurance claims (Note 16) 

Excess (deftclency) of revenue over expenditure5 for th year 
before other Item 

Other Item ~ 
Unrealized gain (loss) Oil marl<et value of inv · nts 

Exceu deflcien of revenue over ex ·end s or the· ear 

g 

$ 

s 

The a=mpooyio, ootes a,c a , t P"t of """ floanciat ~a,emeot>. 

Operating Health 
Fund Benefit Trust 

5,951 ,370 $ 
20,958,361 

4,034, 100 
2,777,057 
2,413, 897 

2, 18e&l! 
3,4~ ~ 

204,826 
,350,783 

'1,360,302 
4,963,786 

11,978,1ll1 

15,791',586 

3,276,389 

42,925,773 

(1,154,252) 

(253,650} 

212,259 

.3,886,172 

4 ,098,431 

525,315 

1,748,063 
1,◄72,739 

3,746,1 17 

352,314 

(84,677) 

s 

1,407 ,902 S 267 637 $ 

National 
Equity Fund 

- $ 

916,872 

8,3 i 3,352 

9,230,224 

336,802 

616,9 51 
sa,,603 

6, 170,620 
190,045 

7,373,021 

1,857 ,203 

(378,435) 

1 471! ,768 $ 

Hockey Canada 

1 -tif 
I ' <:A N -AD A 

Statement of Operations 

I 201 6 201s 

Pillars . 

- s 

4,34 7,148 
2,558,609 

6,905,757 

6,031,535 
1,268,861 

165,-407 

7,465,803 

(S60,046) 

(888,530) 

1 448 576 $ 

Total 

5,951 ,370 S 
zp,958,361 
;.i,0H, 100 
~,777,057 
2,.413,897 
~,347,148 
~,687,740 
2,1 16,396 
~,448,340 

12,199,524 

I .. .. 
61 ,005,933 

I 
j 204,826 
·c ,3sa.1n 
:4 ,697, 104 
4,963,786 

11,978,101 
:6,03:t,535 

18,202,713 
I 214,010 
3,276,3119 
•7 ,918,683 
;1,662,784 

J 1,s10,114 

~ 495,219 

I 

(1,605,292) 

I 
1110073 $ 

Total 

5,510,710 
22,026,167 . ◄,281, 613 

6,007,129 
3,923,678 

35,465,576 
3,4{)8,315 · 
1,657,727 
3,42◄,97◄ 

12,436,14'1 

98,142,033 

177,782 
2,694,772 
4,163,517 
9,344,863 

12,416,449 
25,571,445 
17,939,235 

206,453 
3,326,095 
7 ,762:,405 
2 ,134,949 

85,737,965 

12,404,068 

(1 ,492,375) 

10 911 693 

6 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CANADA 

Statement of Cash _Flows 
- - - . - -·· - ·- --- - ·---

For the year ended June 30 2016 2015 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year Ii 

(1,110,073) s 10,911,693 

Items not involving cash . 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 

~ 
1,151,806 1,002,671 

-Unrealized loss on market value of investments Q~ 
1,605,292 1,492,375 

Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets a 
Changes in non-cash working capital balances 

Accounts receivable 
Hocke y Resource Centre inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred contributions, operations 
Other liabilities and reserves 

~ 
Cash flows frorri investing activities 

Pu,chase of tang;ble capR"1 , .,.~ 
Purchase of investments 
Advance from related parties 

'""ease ;, m h dunag .,,.g,!l 
Cash, beginning of the year {) 

Cash, end of the year 

Represented by 

Cash 
Bank Indebtedness 

g 
(/ 

~ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

~ 

p 1796l 2211667 

116451229 1316281406 

(1,316,239) 3,077,904 
90,392 141,683 

(420,000) 1,938,095 
(5,2161 46) 2,156,045 

749, 47 (291,104) 
(7160,9) (9601391) 

(611151155) 6,062,232 

(4,469,926) 19,690,638 

(724,447) (690,331) 
(8,240,781) (4,591 ,363) 

356,152 3101029 

(816091076) (4,971,665) 

(13,079,002) 14,718,973 

20,941,804 6,222,831 

$ 7,862,802 s 20,941,804 

$ 7,862,802 $ 20,979,780 
(37,976) 

$ 7 862 802 $ 20 941,804 

7 
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Hockey Canada 

<I 
CANAD.O. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
. - ·- ·---··· June30 201r-· ---- --- -·-- - --

1 . Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 

Basis of Accounting 

Hockey Canada (the -"organization") is a Canadian Amateur 
Athletic Association incorp~r without share capital und~r 
the laws of Canada. The or ation carries on operations for 
the express purpose of im ing and enhancing the growth 
and development of hoc~ ·n Canada. 

The financial statem have been prepared using Canadian 
accounting standard not-for-profit organizations (ASNPO) 
except for the p~ le effects from the activities to date of 
the World Junia ampionship 2017. The results from the 
Worlc~ Junior Ch ionship 2017 will be shoy.,n in the financial 
statements the event has been completed in January 

/r 
Fund Accounting J 

2017. Asp ·a audited statement on the re~ults will also be 
prepared c he event is complete. 

The organization follows the restricted fund method of 
acco ting. 

<:;:::/ . 

~ 
The Operating Fund accounts for the costs of programs, 

~ < 4inistrative and other operating expenditures of the 
o anization funded by fees, funding agencies, sponsorships 

other genera( revenue. 

0 The Health Bene(it Trust Fund was established in 1988 to 
~ provide supplementary medical and dental coverage during 

d 
sanctioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses is 
reviewed regularly by the organization to ensure financial risk 
is minimized. 

() The National Equity fund balance has been accumulated as a 
precaution against judgments that may be made against the 
organization as a result of current or future claims. The 
organization is currently involved in defending legal actions 
resulting from accidents and injuries involved in sanctioned 
hockey activities. A provision has been made for estimated 
settlements and professional fees related to these actions. 
This provision is reviewed regularly by the organization 
throughout the year to ensure that financial risk is minimized. 

8 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CANADA 

. Notes to the Financial Statements --- ------- - -- --- ------ - - ------- - -- --- - --- - - -
June 30 2016 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Inventory 

The Pillars are internally ri!.t · ed funds which include The 
Growth Fund, Facilities F Branch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabilizati und, the International Event 
Hosting Support Fund ana,-tfi"e Technology Fund. These funds 
are to be used as follows· 'v 

e used, as determined by the Board 
development of hockey in Canada. 

is to be used to support current office 
planning and to review other initiatives 

ilities across the country. 

pport Fund is to be used to ensure the 
orgam tion can support Branches for initiatives that are 

tional in scope, but require delivery at the Branch 
~ 1 el. · 

k <::d} Insurance Rate Stabilization Fund is to be used to ensure 
?" ~ future insurance rate increases are buffered. 

~ International Event Hosting Support Fund is to be used to 
• n} support the organization's hosting of international 
~ events. 

h} Technology Fund is to be used to fund future 
{) technologies that the organization will utilize. 

() Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is generally determined on the first-in, first-out 
basis. 

000110
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
- June 30 2016 --- --- -·---- - -- --·-·- - · 

1. - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Tangible Capital Assets 

Contributed a 
Services 

Tangible capital assets ari s ed at cost less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization cl on the estimated useful life 
of the asset is calculated a ows: 
Building !Jf'-...... • 2.5 year straight line basis 
Computer equipment '--7 - 3 year straight line basis 
Leasehold improveme straight-line over the term of 

Office equipment 
Software 
Training/medic 

the lease 
5 year straight line basis 

- 2 year straight line basis 
5 year straight line basis 

When a ta~e capital asset no longer ha~ any long-term 
service pEen ,1 to the organization, the excess of its net 
carrying nt over any residual value is recognized as an 
eJ<Pense i e statement of operations. 

Volunteers contribute many hours per year to assist the 
organization in carrying out its service delivery activities. 
Because of the difficulty of determining their fair value, 
contributed services are not recognized in the financial 
statements. Contributed materials are not recognized in the 
financial statements unless they would normally be purchased 
by the organization and their fair market value can be 
ascertained. 

10 
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Hockey Canada 

<., 
CA N ADA 

Notes to the Financial Stateme·nts 
- - - ·-- June 30 2016 ·· 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Income Taxes 

Foreign Currency 
Translation 

The organization claims an exemption for income tax 
purposes as a Registe~ anadian Amateur Athletic 
Association. Accordingly, ovision for income taxes has 
been made in these financi tatements. 

~~ 

Foreign currency c nts are translated into Canadian 
'-" . 

doltars as follows: 
At the t ransact~· ate, each asset, liability, revenue and 
expense is tra n ci into Canadian dollars by the use of the 
exchange rate , ffect at that date. At ~he year end date, 
monetary and liabflities are translated 1nto Canadian 

((J 
dollars by si the exchange rate in eff¢ct at t hat date. The 
resulting O[ gn exchange gains and losses are included in 

e current period. 

Use of Estimat es ;;=- eparation of financial statements in · accordance with 
\.8' requires management to make estimates and 

~ ~ <: l billties at the date of the financial statements, and the 
~ , ~ assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

orted amount,s o'f revenues and expenses during the 
orting period. Actual results could differ from 

Leases 

. ~ management's best estimates as additional information 
becomes available in the future. Significant estimates were 
required in the valuation of other liabilities and reserves. 

hJ Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. A lease 
(Y' that transfers substantially all of the benefits and risks 

() 

incidental to the ownership of property is classified as a 
capital lease. At the inception of a capital lease, an asset 
and an obligation are recorded at an amount equal to the 
lesser of the present value of the minimum lease payments 
and the property·s fair value at the beginning of the lease. All 
other leases are accounted for as operating leases wherein 
rental payments are expensed on a straight line basis . 

11 
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Hockey Canada 

~ " CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2016 

-- -- -- --1:- -summary·of-Significant ·Accounting Pollcles-(contfnued)--- --

Financial Instruments 

2. Cash (Bank Indebtedness) 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when 
acquired or issued. In addition, all guaranteed investment 
certificates have been designated to be in the fair value 
category, with gains and lfo reported in operatio_ns. All 
other financial instruments reported at cost or amortized 
cost less impairment , if ap ble. Financial assets are tested 
for impairment when c~es in circumstances indicate the 
asset could be impai·re. J"ransact ion costs on the acquisition, 
sale or issue of finan instruments are expensed for those 
items remeasured ~ ir value at each balance sheet date 
and charged to th · cial instrument for those measured at 
amortized cost. (J 

The organization's bank accounts are h one chartered bank and earn interest at a rate 
of bank prime less 1. 90% per annum. e prime rate ai: June 30, 2016 was 2. 70%. Bank 
balances include ,S1, 136,622 deno~·nated in U.S. dollars converted to $1,467,001 Canadian. 
The organization has a $1,000,000 :-.,olving demand facility at a rate of bank prime and it is 
secured by a general security agree ent. At June 30, 2016, the organization had undrawn 
credit capacity of S1 ,000,.000. The organization has a 241TI up to a maximum of 
$1,250,000_ At June 30, 2 6, the organization had undrawn credit capacity of 
approximately $1 ,026,000 on facility. 

3. Accounts Receivab \) 

Accounts rec · ab includes $1,~74,01 9 due from the 24(1)denominated in U.S. dollars 
converted to 2, 3, 160 Canadian. 

4. Receivable From Funds/ Payable To Funds 

The interfund balances are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

5. Hockey Resource Centre Inventory 

Total Hockey Resource Centre inventory sold during the year was $451,730 (2015 -
$506, 179). 

000.11. 3
12 



Hockey Canada 

.Ji 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 ·2016 

- 6.- L:ong-Term· lnvestmer:its-- - - - ·- - --- -

7. 

2016 2015 

Cash and money market funds (Effective rate 1%-2%) 
Bond funds 

993,521 
36,636,812 
39,521,041 

s 1,186,628 
30,677,478 

Equities 
Government bonds 
Corporate bonds 

Market value 

Corporate and government bonds have effe 
mature between June 2017 and Decem 
average rate of return of 5.20%. 

Tangible Capital Assets 

~~ 
Cost 

Building a S 562,S-08 
Computer equipment 2,672,075 

Leasehold improve~e 1,973,955 
Office equipment a 1,477,549 
Software 94,091 
Training/medica 1pment 563,687 

$ 7,343,865 

Net book value 

37,363,042 
b'"'-. 220,694 
"v 755,931 

430,386 
1,158,143 

s 70,815,677 

e rates ranging from 4.00% to 6.02% and 
019. Other long-term investments had an 

201 6 2015 

Accumulated Accumulated 
Amortization Cost Amortization 

s 92,251 s 562,508 s 67,501 
1,211 ,693 1,900,582 588,328 

314,447 1,973,955 227,944 
1, 122,876 1,468,815 811 ,488 

94,091 94,091 47,045 
407,304 563,687 294,566 

s 3,242,662 s 6,563,638 s 2,036,872 

s 4,101 , 203 s 4,526,766 

During the year, the organizat ion recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
$1,151,806 (2015 -$1,002,671). 

00.0.11.4° 

--·-- · 



Hockey Canada 

.Ji 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30 2016 

__ 8::...:._ . Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities ______ _ 

9. 

10. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $1,559,538 payable to the IIHF denominated 
in Swiss Francs converted to $2,071,846 Canadian. 

Deferred Contributions - Operations ti 
~ (!!I 

Deferred contributions, operations relate to restric Q~ perating funding received in the 
current period that is related to expenses that will b i urred in the subsequent period. 

Changes in the deferred contributions batancy{f p rted 
follows: · g 
Balance, beginning of the ye:--» () 
Contributions received 

in the Operating Fund are as 

2016- 2015 

$ 1,75CJ,211 $ 2,050,315 
2,508,958 1,759,211 

.4,268, 169 3,809,526 
Recognized to revenue (1,759,211) (2,050,315) 

Balance, end of the year ~ 

t1 
lnterfund Transfers h} ..-::--.. 

$ 21sos,958 s 1i7s91211 

During the year, u{Vsoard of Directors authorized 
Operating Fu"Oe Pillars Funds. 

a transfer of $1,419,117 from the 

0001.J 5
14 



Hockey Canada 

<I 
CA NA DA 

. - - ------·---------------- - -- -----Notes-to-the-Finandal-Statements- - · 
June 30 2016 

11. Funding 

The general operating grants received from governmen~ ing agencies are recorded in 
the fiscal year to which they apply. Total funding re during the fiscal year was 
$5, 189,000 received frorn the Government of Canada, e Province of Ontario, Tourism 
Niagara, Niagara Sport Commission, Tourism Kamloops',< ~ Province of BC and the Province 

of Alberta (2015 • $9,339,600). ,,;; a ~ 
~~J (j . 

12. Marketing // ,\~ {Y 
Sponsorship revenue includes value in Kin 1,298,727 (201 5 · $1,755,685) . 

13. Commitments 

The organization has entered into a ontract with the IIHF committing to a hosting fee. The 
contract expires during the 202 2021 season. 

The organization has enter o two rental agreements for warehouse space committing 
fees until 2017. 

The organization has e d into a contract with Exchange ·solutions Inc. committing fees 
until 2017. hJ 
The organization h~ ntered into a rental agreement committing to incur the operating 
costs relating to organization's rented premises until 2031. 

low of funds relating to the above commitments for the following years 

2017 s 4,520,946 
2018 2,623,344 
2019 3,421,344 
2020 2,419,344 
2021 3,319,344 
Thereafter 598,032 

s 16,902,354 

15 
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14. Related Party Transactions 

Hockey Canada exercises significant influence over the Hockey Canada Foundation and the 
Hockey Canada Foundation U.S. (the Foundations) by virt!f its sharing of premises and 
administrative support. The Foundations were esta d as registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey Cana nd other organizations in the 
country with objectives similar to Hockey Canada. ~(:) 

Transactions with Hockey Canada Foundation and Ho Canada Foundation U.S. 

~ 
2016 2015 

Donations to the Foundations 
() 

Hockey Canada Foundatioti $ 891,071 s 1,533,085 
Hockey Canada Foundation U.S. 3,741 

~V! $ 891 ,071 s 1,536,826 

\ 2016 2015 

Grants received from t he Found tion 
Hockey Canada Foundation 

r"\ ~ 
s 450,~91 s 406,904 

These transc1ctions are in 
value, which approxima 

normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange 
e arms length equivalent value. 

(} n--= 
Amounts due~o) related parties are as follows: 

Hockey Can a undation 
Hockey Ca d oundation U.S. 

2016 

$ 1,474,863 S 
(2,196) 

2015 

1,119,656 
(3,141) 

$ 1,472,667 $ 1,116,515 

The amounts due to (from) related parties are non-interest bearing, unsecured, and have no 
fixed terms of repayment. 

16 
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June 30 2016 

15. Financial Instrument Risks 

Credit Risk 

Hockey Canada 

.ti 
CANADA 

--Notes-to-the-FinanGial-Statements- - ---

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instru will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. '?Jl~ll al instruments which potentially 
subject the organization to concentrations of cre'ew risk consist of cash, accounts 
receivable, short and long term investment$. The oization has deposited the cash, short­
term and long-term investments with a repu fihandal institution, from which 
management believes the risk of loss to be remo . he credit risk on accounts receivable 
arises from reputable corporate partners and or ·za ions-in a similar not-for-profit sector. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the 6rganiz5tteh ncounters difficulty in meeting its obligations 
associated with financial liabilities. Li ~i~ risk includes the risl< that> as a result of 
operational liquidity requirements, the r ization Will not have sufficier)t funds to settle a 
transaction on the due date; will be fo d to sell financial assets at a value, which is less 
than what they are worth; or may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset. Liquidity 
risk arises from accounts payable ae~ accrued liabilities and amounts due to related parties. 
Due to the. organization's current w~ing capital, management believes the risk of loss to be 
remote. 

Market Risk 
~<;;;:_ 

Market risk is the risk that 
fluctuate because of cha 
currency rlsk, interest r 
three. 

e ir value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: 

·sk and other price risk. The Hockey Canada is exposed to all 

The organization's ( anagement strategies are described below. 

Currency Risk 

Foreign curfie sk is the risk that the fair value of futur~ cash flows of a financial 
instrument l f ctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The organization's 
financial ins ents that are exposed to this risk include cash, accounts receivable and 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The organization considers this risk to be 
acceptable and therefore does not use derivatives to hedge its foreign exchange rate risks. 

17 
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. June 30 2016 

15. Financial Instrument Risks (continued) 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future lows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest }#t . The organization is exposed to 
interest rate risk arising from the possibility that cha~ in interest rates will affect the 
value of its equities and bonds. {j 
Other Price Risk ~ ::::..3/ 
Other price risk is the uncertainty associated h the valuation of assets arising from 
changes in equity markets. The organizatio i exposed to this risk through its equity 
holdings within its investment portfolio. 

The organization's exposure to the above s unchanged from the prior year. 

16. Reclassification of General Equity Reserve Balances (?,. 

General equity reserves have been classified to the National Equity fund balance instead 
of as a liability within the fund as this better reflects the nature of the reserve. The 
comparative amounts for the ar ended June 30, 2015 have been restated accordingly. 
Below are the line items in the ancial statements that are impacted by this change. 

ffYJV a ~«ib 
Previously Restated 
Reported Amount 

s 3,634,949 s 2,134,949 Insurance claims • ~ 

Excess of revenue o xpense-s s 9,411 ,693 s 10,911,693 

Opening Nat~ uity Fund s 5,174,771 s 14,174,771 

Total Fund b n , beginning of year s 66,137,896 s 73,637,896 

Other liabilit1 and reserves s 15,414,609 s 6,414,609 

18 
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For the year ended June 30, 2016 

Branch Support 
Growth Fund Fadlltl!!s Fund Fund 

Fund balance, beglnnln& of the year $ f0, )02,993 $ 2,094,005 12,782,895 

Excess (dericlency) of revenues over 
62,7~ expenditures for the year 501 ,025 (2◄'1,88 1 ) 

Inter-fund t ransfets (Note 10) 4, 697,007 2,11 7,105 

Fund balance, end of t he year $ 15,501,025 $ 2, s 14,755,119 

' I 
Hockey Canada ·.r, 
j CANADA 

Schedule 1 - Activity for the Pillars Fund 
I 

lntematiol\11 Event 
!Technology Insurance Rate Hostlnc Support 

Stabilization Fund Fund Fund Total 

$ 7,848,7◄ 1 s 10,221,766 $ 
I 
,8,120,5 19 $ 51 ,370,919 

235,2.8) (2. 282,954) ' 280,182 (1,4411,576) 

(6,◄94,995) 
i 11,000,000 1,419,117 
I 

$ 8,084,0 24 s 1.◄◄J,817 $ l 9,◄00,101 $ 51,3-41,460 

: 
I 
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. . -· ·--··-- - - ·- -- Schedule of Sport Canada Funded Revenue and Expenses 
(Unaudited) 

For the year ended June 30 

Mainstream Athletes 

Revenue 

Expenses 
Core 
Administration costs 

Coaching salaries and professional development 
National team programs 
Ope,atlons aod programml~ (/ 

Non-core 
International Sport lmt iatives 
Long term athlete development 
Official languages 

. II 

Deficienc of revenue over ex mainstream att)letes 

Ath~::":h • Di>•~llty a ~ ~ 
Expeo,es g ,())~ 

;~~inistrationrlo # ~ 
Staff salaries 
Coaching salari s a professtonat development 
National team rams 
Operations and programming 

Non-core 
International Sport Initiatives 
Long term athlete development 
Official languages 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses for athletes with a disability 

2016 

$ . 2,627,100 

6, 172,005 
5,649 

9, 161 ,862 
1,435,239 
9,831,631. 

10,812,502 

37,418,888 

560,451 
269,180 

38,248,519 

S 35 621 419 

s 

s 

856,875 

324,842 
187,000 
160,214 
781 ,756 

91,307 

1,545,119 

13,954 
14,167 

1,573,240 

(716,365) 
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24(1) 

TotM~rsof 
Hockey Canada 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statem'- f Hockey Canada, whfch comprise the 
balance sheet as at June 30, 2017, the statements dU>peratfons, changes in fund balances and 
caSh flows tor the year then ended, .and a sum f sfgnlflcant accounting pollcles and other 
explanatory lnfonnatlon. 

Manaaement's Responsfbflfty for the Anand 

Management 1s responstble for the ~paratlon- and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with Cana,dta ccountlng standards for not-for-profit organizations, 
and for such lnterOill control as manag t determines Is necessary to enable the preparation 
of flnanclal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Respons,lbtlity 

Our responsibility fs to expre5$iO Ion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit In accor n 

I 
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 

standards require that we c y with ethlcal requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assuranc t whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

Ing procedures to obtain audit evidence abo\Jt the amounts and 
cial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 

judgment, tncludl assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whe er ue to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers lnte ntrol relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial state ts ln order to des1gn aud1t procedures that are appropriate In the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
eotlty's fntemal control. All aud1t also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements, 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ls sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our qualified audit opinion. 

2 
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24(1) 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the figures for the year ended June 30, 2016 
were prepared In accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations 
(ASNPO) except for the possible effects from the activities and balances related to the World 
Junior Championship 2017. The balance sheet for the year ended June 30, 2016 therefore also 
excludes these results. 

Qualified Opinion ~ 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described i Basis for Qualified Opinion 
para11raph, the financial statements present fairly, in alt mat~respects, the financial position 
of Hockey Canada as at June 30, 2017 and the results of fts rations and its cash flows for the 
years then ended in accordance with Canadian ac ng standards for not•for-profit 
oraantzatfons. 

Unaudited Information 

We have not audited, reviewed or otherwise att ~ to verify the accuracy or completeness of 
the schedule on page 20 of the Organtzatlon·s f' an ·at Statements. 

24(1) 
t:\'lQ) 

Publl·c Accountants ~ e Chartered Professional Accountants, llcen ~ 

24(1) 
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Balance Sheet 

Jurw JO 2017 2016 
Operatfng Health Mattonal 

Fund !leflefl1: Tn,$t Eg!!f~ Fund PRlai, Total Total 

Aneb 

tutrent 
Udt,('-2) ~ 1,647,306 $ . $ 1,146.,IIO $ 6,lJ6,333 $, , . 130,919 $ 7,162,atlZ 
Aca>llntJ r ecre!Yatile (Note ll 5,473,942 ll,118 6·,710 Z,9Z6,7◄J 1,041,0U 9,504,155 
~Mlble from funds (Miu◄) l.tlM,370 s.,451,:591 7,64Z,t62 11,413,)3' 
Hockey Resource centre fn'fflltory (Note 5) TTZ.'71 S12,2.99 -
Prn,;i!ld- 6'503] l,061,895 

2,217,"8 1 ,612,182 8,163,076 21,272,504 1$,15'4.~ 

Lont--tnm 1 ....... tmrnts {Nole ·6) 4,024,748 l,1Ji,U1 66,75P,617 16,281,1111 111,·121,999 
T•,w!M capbl - (Nctr: 71 J,367,14] ◄.101,ZOl 

HS Ii 2,4 7)6, 1, 1,,0t.J 15 621 763 1,1:; 1 .. , 107 689 

U.blUU.. and fund a.lanca g o.nmt 
!lank lndebtfllnl!Ss (~e·21 $ U,46' $ $ $ 62,,f66 $ 
Accwnts payabi~ arid actnied llab«it~ (Note 8) 5,95'-6-37 761,741 531,144 1,'971,◄79 9,ZlT,001 7,)17,21? 
Plyabl• to funds tNOte ◄) 

() 
l,669,091 .. ,,r,,1114 T,MZ:.962 6,◄IJ,])6 

Deferred cootributlons, O!)erations (Note 91 827,766 127,76' 2,508,958 
OU.,to relat..:I pmtlM (Not• 14) ~ ...... 44.444 1;,m.661 

9,497,M' ,1]1,207 5ll, 14'11 6,947,3◄.J ir,a,..,,,, l7,73Z,173 

)) Otlwr liabllitln and ·reoerv~ !,4JJ.,1-D!l !5-,.Jl.,ZDO 6,<tl2_.roo 

\ 
9, 497;'45 33l ,Vl1 ~.971,344, G,,9◄7,J◄J ZJ ,1,4 T ,939 Z◄,1#,17) 

flftllNl!anail 
lntc,r1'1311y rest,~ 3,367,143 S,4tl,S?9 l,T77,7f9 61.675,,zo 16,Ut, l t,1 76,U!>,O'lO 
Ul'lrfltr1cttd 6,441,807 6,4◄1,I07 1,Zl◄,-426 

9 ,808,9'0 5,411.51.9 e.1n. 119' 61,675,420 92,6'13,611 BJ,419,516' 

19 306 895 . I 2◄2 73' ' ' 14't06J 75 6Z2 74-l 115 921 ◄!7 107 58] 689 

19(1) and 24(1) 

'-../ y 
· ~I pan of these financial statements. 4 



For the ftrR"idRdJune!O 

FLITl•U>illancn . • beiinn1fli of the yeltf 

Exces ·(deft f ctency)of 0/' thl} ~ ,._,lie Off!' 

lnterfund tr W6fen INote 10) 

Fundbal ~nces end ' oftheye;i.r 

e,cpendltures 
S) 

,8-44 

2,319,106 

9 ,aoa,11,o $ 

Hockey Canada 

Statement of .;/;,, Changes in F CANADA 

~--:--==------· ~zoun,d Balances 

Na:t!ornil 
E ui Fund 

PfllaB 
Schedule 1 

2017 2016 

Tout Total 

5• 128,818 $ i!ii,6!ii3 , 539 $ 5 1,141,◄60 $ 83,439,516 $ !-4,549 ,589 

182,641 1,651,180 10,126,066 9 ,234,10 2. c1,1i0,013I 

5,411,529 18,304,719 61,467 ,511i 9Z., li73,6'18 lll,439,516 

{9,527,000) 7,207,894 

5,411,529 $ l.777,719 $ 61,675,42.0 $ 92,673,618 s 
~ ~-:-.:" 

8

3.'439,516 

~VJ~~ /4 . [\~~ 

Theaccom . panymg notes 1'f 

(I 
ntegral part of th . ese fmanclal statements. 

~ 000126'~ 
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For the y:ar ended June JO 

Reftl1Ue 
Fl.lldtng (Notes 11 and 1-4) 
Market1r11 (Hote 12} 
Development ('40te-14) 
National evwnts and camps ( Note 11) 
High periOfTNlllCe ("'1te 14) 
lnterMtional IN'1!nthastlng (Note 11) 
Investment ancl lnt:el'l!St income 
AdmlnlStratlOn 
Member WMCIIS 
lmunlnce pn!fflio,rms 

E.l'.f-ndltu•es 
,FUldlng 
Marir.!tl111 
De-,elopm~t (Note 14) 
Hattonal events end camps 
Hflh pmomtilflCe (tlote 14) 
International ewnt host! ng 
Administration 
~Lodlal fees 
Membff WMC·l!S 
Insurance prernturnsc 
IIISUl'llllCII claims 

Excess (cleffd fflty} of l't!'\lenu• Dffl' expen.ditutes for 
beivre othw Item 

Other· ttem 
un~allzed 11aio {IO!.$l 011 market value or 1~ 

Excess deffc of rvvenue l:lffr • 

t1 
tJ 

... ts 

the 

Operatlns 
Fund 

s 6,148,146 
21,771,380 

4,869,956 
2,315,764 
4,156. 802 

... , 
3,348 
~ . 

.. ~ :u 

0 32,316 
7,56' tJ ,,,,., .. , 

4,173,991 
U,851,700 

() 
16,948,052 

2.113.1Ot 

48,115,2,U 

year 
(3,941,619) 

121,834 

NJ" $ l 825 785 

The 1ccompanytn9 notes are nil p11r1: of these tlnandal statements. 

s 

Health 
Benefit Trust 

. s 

2.54,4]8 

3,967,234 

◄,221,672 

559,749 

1,119,343 
1,706,H6 

4,085,958 

135,714 

1◄6,927 

281641 

Hockey Canada 

-t, 
CA ,N A OA 

Statement of Operations 

National 
Egut~Fund PilllB 

. $ . $ 

2, ,m,913 
791,208 4,044,142 

8,321,141 

9,10,049 30,111,12! 

313,16◄ 

655,105 
21,159,946 

1 ,41◄,1U 
44,l76 227, 141· 

S,135,3416 
261,U O 

7,.117,361 22,901,216< 

1,995,618 7,916,909 

655,492 2,209~157 

2 651 180 10 126 066 $ 

fr))~ 
00012i~ 

w 

2017 2016 

T!Kill ToUII 

6,1◄a,.1◄6 $ 5,951,370 
21,n1, J10 20,958,361 
4,169,956 4,034,100 
2,385,TM 2,m,01 
4,856,802 2.,413,897 

U ,773,913 4,347, 1-41 
5,049,718 3,687,740 

786,398 2,188,3% 
3,348.177 3,448,340 

12,189,075 , 12,199,524 

81,319,4'9 62,005,933 

2.32,316 204,826 
4,847,561 2,350,783 
5,492,315 ◄,697,104 
4 ,173,991 4,963,786 

13,1.51,700 11,978, lOl 
11,2.59,946 6,031,535 
1,.,n,02, 18,202,713 

271,523 224,010 
Z,183, 101 3,276,3!9 
7, 6S4,H9 7,9111,,(,0 
1,975,536 1,662,784 

62,219,777 6t,51O,7t◄ 

6,099,692 495,219 

3,134,410 (1,605,292) 

9 234 102 1110073 

6 



Hockey Canada 

-ti 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the ear ended June 30 

Cash flows from operattng actfvft1es 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year 
Items not Involving cash 

Amortization of tangible capital assets a 
Unrealized (gain) loss on market value of Investments 
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capita! assets 

Changes In non-cash wor1dl!i capital balances 
Accounts receivable 
Hockey Resource Centre inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred contributions, operations 
Other liabilltie and- reserves 

Cash flows from Investing actMtfes 

g 
() 

Purchase of tang!bte capital assets n 
Purchase of Investments (()) ~ 
Advances from (repayments too t parties V ))v ~~ 

'"'- In = h d,rlnt thon !()~)I.ff" 
Cash, beiinnina of the yea,{) \) I( 
Cash end of the year 

Represented by 

Cash 
Bank Indebtedness 

The acoompanylne notes are ao Integral part of these financial statements. 

2017 

9,23-4,102 $ 

1,282,338 
(3,,l34,410) 

7,382.030 

1 ,◄63, 142 
(260,678) 
376~862 

1,899,789 
(1,681,192) 

(978,800) 

81 9.123 

8,201,153 

(5◄8,279) 
(5,019,◄00) 
(1,428.223) 

(6,995,902) 

1,205,251 

7.862.802 

$ 9,068,053 S 

2016 

11, 110,on> 

1,151,806 
1,605,292 

(1,796) 

1.645,229 

(1,316,239) 
90,392 

('120,000) 
(5,216,446) 

71//9,747 
(2,609) 

(6.115. 155) 

tn◄,447) 
· (8,240,781) 

356.152 

(8;609,076) 

(13,079,002) 

20,941.804 

7,862,802 

$ 9,130,519 $ 7,862,802 
(62,466) 
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Hockey Canada 

0. 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2017 

1. Summary of S91tflcant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations Hockey Canada (the ·organ! ") Is a Canadian Amateur 
Athletic Association tncor·nn1r,u,>t] without share capital under 
the laws of Canada. The izatfon carrfes on operations 
for the express purp Improving and enhancing the 
growth and (fevelopmen f ockey in -Canada. 

Basis of Accounting The financial stater have been prepared using Canadian 
accounting standar i not-for-profit organizations (ASNPO). 

Fund Accountina The organfzat· allows the restricted funCi!_ method of 
accounting. 

The Opera Fund accounts for the cost$ of programs, 
admlnlstra e and other operating expenditures of the (rd organ tion funded by f~s, funding agencies, sponsorships 

~ <:::::f} and o r general revenue. 

~ 'The He Ith Benefit Trust Fund was established In 1988 to 
-1/) J r vtde supplementary m~cal and dental coverage during 
~ /'"" sa loned hockey activities. The provision for expenses is 
~ wed regularly by the organization to ensore financial risk 

s lnlml2ed. 

0 The Natlona Equity fund balance has been accumulated as a 
~ precautfon against judgments that may be made against the 

g organization as a result of current or future claims. The 
organlzat on Is currently Involved 1n defending legal actions 
resulting from accidents and injuries involved 1n sanctioned 
hockey activities. A provision has been made for estimated 

() 

settlements and professional fees related to these actions. 
This provision is reviewed regularly by the organization 
throughout the year to ensure that financial rfsk Is mfnlmfzed. 

8 

000129 



Hockey Canada 
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Notes to the financial Statements 
June 30 2017 

1. Summary of Significant Accountfns Policies (continued) 

The Pillars are Internally ~n ed funds which include The 
Growth Fund, Facilities Foo.(t1 Br<\flch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabil~·za Fund, tt)e International Event 
Hosting Support Fund a Technology Fund. These funds 
are to be used as folio . 

Growth Fund f be used, as determined by the Board 
.of Directors, r e development of hockey in Canada. 

u • is to be used to suppon current office 
planning and to review other initiatives 

cllltles across the country. 

(rd !~f ~~:::C~.!~~rt15B~~ci~ f~~it:t1:S~:t ~~ 
~ <:::::f) ~ ~e~ fal In scope, but requlr~ d~lvery at the Branch 

«)'£ ~/4 Insurance Rate Stabilization Fund is to be used to ensure 
~ · future insurance rate Increases are buffered. 

n}. lnternat1ona Event Hosting Support Fund Is to be used to <t}) ~ :~~ the organization's hosting of international 

~ {j Technology Fl.fld is to be used to fund future 
(Y technologies that the organization will utfllze. 

Inventory {) Inventory Is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost Is generally determined on the first·in, flrst•out 
basis. 

9 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Notes to the Ftnanctal Statements 
June 30 2017 

1. Summary of Stgntflcant Account1n1 PoHctes (continued) ' 

Tangible Capital Assets Tangible capital assets are t at cost less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization on the estimated useful life 
of the asset Is calculated l ows: 
Building () 25 year straight line basis 
Computer equipment • 3 year straight line basis 
Leasehold lmproveme stralght-lfne over the term of 

the lease 
5 year straight line basis 
5 year straight line- bi',!sls 

pltal asset no longer t,as any tong-term 
to the organization, the c:ess of its net 

{\ carrying a <YVer any residual value Is recognized as an 
l / expense in e statement of operations. 

Revenue Recoar,ltlon Restrf~ ~d _ contributions related tel general operations are 
recognl~ as revenue of the Operatl:ig Fund In the year In 

» ~ 
Which ttie related expenses are Incurred. All other restricted 

~ tributlons are recogntted as revenue of the appropriate 
~ /'"" cted fund when received. 

~ trlcted cootrtbutlons are recognized as revenue of the aOperating Fund in the year received or receivable if the 
1/) amount to be received can be reasonably measured and 
M collection fs reasonably assured. In certain instances, the 

organization receives funds from the governments and other g supporters to offset specific expenses. When these funds are 
received prior to Incurring the related expenses, they are 
shown as deferred contributions. 

Volunteers contribute many hours per year to assist the 
organization In carrying out fts service delivery activities. 
Because of the difficulty of determining their fair value, 
contributed services are not recognized in the financial 
statements. Contributed materials are not recognized In the 
financial statements unless they would normally be purchased 
by the organization and their fair market value can be 
ascertained. 

10 
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.fl 
CANAOA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2017 

1. Summary of Slgntflcant Accountina Polkles (continued) ~ 

Income Taxes The organization claims an emption for Income tax 
purposes as a Register~ Canadian Amateur Athletic 
Association. Accordingly, )Q. provision for income taxes has 
been made in these fl statements. 

Forelsn Currency 
Translation Foreign currencydunts are translated Into Canadian 

dollars as follows: 

rrSJ 
At the transact te, each asset, liability, revenue and 
expense ts tr·aMtatE!d Into Canadian dollars by the use of the 
exchange ra ect at that date. At the \tear end date, 
monetary se and liabilities are translate{! into Canadian 
dollars by the exchange rate 1n effect at that date. The 
resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are Included in 
tncom fn the current period. 

Use of Estimates ~ The pr aration of financial statements in accordance with 
~ -: j PO requires management to make estimates and 
;;:::::.:,. mptlons that affect the reported amounts of assets and M lfa llties at the date of the financial statements, and the 

rted amounts of revenues and expenses during the 

~ become5 available in the future. Significant estimates were 4
re orting pen_o<l. Actual results could differ from 
management's best estimates as additional Information 

~ required in the valuation of other liabilities and reserves. 

Leases n Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. A lease 
{Y that transfers substantially all of the benefits and risks 

() 

incidental to the ownership of praperty Is classified as a 
capital lease. At the Inception of a capital lease, an asset 
and an obligation are recorded at an amount equal to the 
lesser of the present value of the minimum lease payments 
and the property's fair value at the beginning of the lease. All 
other leases are accounted for as operating leases wherein 
rental payments are expensed on a straight line basis. 

11 
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C&NADA 

Notes to the Ff nancial Statements 
June 30 2017 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Financial Instruments 

2. Cash (Bank lndebtedneu) 

Financial Instruments are rr,: at fair value when 
acquired or ls.sued. In addltio l guaranteed Investment 
certificates have been destg to be 1n the fair value 
category, with gains and ~ reported in operations. All 
other flna. nclal fnstrume?t3ts Wreported at cost or amortized 
cost less Impairment, I pltcable. financial assets are 
tested for lmpa1rmen changes In circumstances 
indicate the asset co Impaired. Transaction costs on 
the acquis1tfon, sal sue of financial Instruments are 
t::xl)ensed for tho t s remeasured at fair value at each 
balance sheet dat d charged to the fin~I instrument 
for those meas t amortized cost. 

I 

The organization's bank accounts are held at one chartered bank and earn interest at a rate 
of bank prime less 1. 90% per annu~. The prime rate at June 30, 2_017 was 2. 70%. Bank 
balances Include $558,818 denomln in U.S, dollars converted to $693,963 Canadian. 
The organlzat1ol'I has a $1,000,000 re lving demand facility at a rate of bank prime and it 
ts secured by a aeneral security agreement. At June 30, 2017, the organization had undrawn 
credit capacity of $1 ,000,000~ organization has a 24(1) up to a maximum of 
$2,500,000. At June 30-, 201 the organization had undrawn credit capacity of 
approximately $2,338,000 on actlfty. 

3. Accounts Recetvab~I• tl {( 
Accounts recelvabl ludes $2.,767,519 due from the 24(1)' denominated In U.S. dollars 
converted to ;7) • Canadian. 

◄• Rl!Cffilble d .... ,._.,, ti> Fund< 

The interfund balances are Interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

5. Hockey Resource Centre Inventory 

Total Hockey Resource Centre Inventory sold during the year was $221,666 (2016 -
$451 ,730). 

12 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2017 

6, Long-Term Investments 

7. 

2017 2016 

Cash and money market funds (Effective rate 1%-2%) 11, , 307,015 $ 993,521 
40,S09,S« 36,636,812 Bond funds 

Equities 
Government bonds 
Corporate bonds 

Market value 

41,995,000 39,521,041 
213,068 220,694 
257,183 755,931 

() 
Corporate and government bonds have e ec e rates ranging from 4.00% to 6.02% and 
mature between May 2018 and Decem r 19. Other long-tenn investments had an 
average rate of return of 3.3oi. 

Tangible Capital Assets 
,,,,-... ~ 

2017 2016 

Accumulated Accumulated 
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization 

Building 562, 50& $ 117,002 s 562,508 $ 92,251 
Computer equipment 3,220,3~• 1,965,591 2,672,075 1,211,693 

leasehold lmp,~ 1,973,955 400,951 1,973,955 314,447 
Office equ1pment 1,477,549 1,427,325 1,◄n,549 1,122,876 
Training/medical nt 563,687 520,041 563,687 407,304 

$ 7,798,053 $ 4,430,910 s 1,1◄9,n◄ s 3,148,571 

Net book va $ 3,367,143 S 4,101,203 

During the year, the organization recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
$1 ,282,338 (2016 -$1 ,151 ,806). 
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Hockey Canada 

0: 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2017 

8. Accounts Payable and Ace~ Ltabllttf~ 

Accounts payable and accrued llab1lltfes fnclude $1 , 7 
denominated In Swiss Francs converted to $2,353,554 ca~n. 

4 payable to the IIHF 

9. Deferred Contributions - Operatfol)S 

Deferred contributions, operations relate to 
current period that Is related to expenses th 

Changes in the deferred contributions 
follows: 

Balance, beginning of the year 
Conlrihut.lons receiVed 

Recognized to ....... /4 
Balance, end of the year,/} 

t1 
ed operating funding received in the 

be incurred In the subsequent period. 

2017 

$ 1,508,958 S 
827,766 

l,336,72◄ 
(2,508,958) 

2016 

1,759,21 1 
2,508,958 

4,268,169 
(1 ,759,211) 

$ 827,766 $ 2,508,958 

10. lnterfund T~g 
DlJ'ing the ar the Board of Directors authorized a transfer of $10,250,000 from the 
National Eq und to the Pillars Funds. 

DlJ'ing the year, the Board of Directors authorized a transfer of $3,042,106 from the Pillars 
Funds of which $2,319, 106 was transferred to the Operating Fund and $723,000 was 
transferred to the National Equity Fund. 
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Hockey Canada 

0. 
CAHADA 

Notes to the Ftnandal Statements 
June 30 2017 

11. Funding . I 
The general operating grants rece1ved from govemmentttilnding agencies are recorded In 
the fiscal year to which they apply. Total funding r ;e1v'6d during the fiscal year was 
$7,299,000 received from the Government of Canad e Province of Ontario, Tourism 
Montreal, Tourism Toronto, the Pr()V!nce of Queb (I the City of Montreal. (2016 -
$5, 189,000). 

12. Marketing ~ 
Sponsorship revenue includes value in ki ,330,335 (2016 . $1,298,727). v 

13. Commitments 

The organtzatton has entered in a contract with the II F committing to a hosting fee. The 
contract expires dur1ng th~ 2020 021 season. 

The organization nas enter 
and support services agr 
2020. 

Int a software licensing agreement and an IT management 
nt. The contracts expire between December 2018 and July 

The organization h~~ ered Into a rental agreement committing to Incur the operating 
costs relating to they nlzatlon's re11ted premises until 2031. 

The expected f w of funds relating to the above commitments for the following years 
are as follows· 

2018 s 2,623,344 
2019 3,421 ,344 
2020 2,419,344 
2021 3,319,344 
2022 199,344 

s 11,982,720 
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CANADA 

Notes to the· Financial Statements 
June 30 2017 

14. Related Party Transactions ,,jj/d 
Hockey Canada exercises significant influence CNer the ~nada Foundation and the 
Hockey Canada Foun·datfon U.S. (the Foundattons) by vl~~of its sharlng of premises and 
administrative support. The Foundations were establfsRed as registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey Ca and other organizations In the 
country wtth objectives similar to Hockey Canada. 

Transactions wtth Hockey Canada Founda ion and Canada Foundation U.S. 

} () 2017 ~ 2016 

Donations given 
Hockey Canada Foundation $ 965,796 s 891,071 . 

~Y 2017 2016 

Grants received \ Hockey Canada Foundation $ 796,563 $ 450,491 

These transactions are In the al course of operations and are measured at the 
exchange value, which appr tes the arms length equivalent value. 

0 2017 2016 

Amounts due to (f~~ ed parties are ~ follows: 
Hockey Canada f: tlon $ 48,194 $ 1,474,863 
Hockey Canada datlon U.S. (3,750) (2,196) 

$ 44,444 $ 1,472,667 

The amoun to (from) related parties are non-Interest bearing, unsecured, and have no 
fixed terms epayment. 

15, _World Junior Championship 2017 

The results from the Wortd Jlllfor Championship 2017 are included in the financial 
statements In the year the event has been completed. The event was completed In January 
2017, and as such, the comparative amounts for the year ended June 30, 2016 as shown In 
these financial statements do not include the actMtles related to the 2017 World Junior 
Championship. 
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Hockey Canada 

-ti. 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2017 

16. Flnancial Instrument Risks 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial lnstru n will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by falling to discharge an obligation. fl al Instruments which potentially 
subject the organtzation to concentrations of er I risk consist of cash, accounts 
receivable, and Investments. The organization has de ~d the cash and Investments with 
a reputable financial institution, from which ma ment believes the risk of loss to be 
remote. The credit risk on accounts receivable a · rom reputable corporate partners and 
organizations In a similar not-for-profit sector. 

Liquidity Risk 
\,,./,...._ 

liquidity risk Is the risk that tile organiza n counters difficulty in meeting lts obligations 
associated with ,ffnandal llabHltles. Uq, risk Includes the risk that, as a result of 
operational liquidity requ1rements, the organization will not have sufficient funds to settle 
a transaction on the due date; will~forced to sell financial assets at a vc,lue, which Is less 
than what they are worth; or may nable to settle or recover a financial asset. Liquidity 
risk arises from.accounts payable an crued llablllt1es, other liabilities and reserves and 
amounts . due to related partfes. Due to the organization's current worl(lng capital, 
manage~nt believes the k of ss to be remote. 

Market Risk 

Market risk is tile risk thit f r value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of cha In market p ices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: 
currency risk, interest r e sk and other price rtsk. The Hockey Canada is exposed to all 
three risks. 

The organization's r1 

Currency Risk 

nagement strategies are described below. 

Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
fl tuate because of changes In foreign e,cchange rates. The organization's 

nts that are exposed to this risk Include cash, accounts receivable and 
accolfflts pa le and accrued liabilities. The organization considers this risk to be 
acceptable and therefore does not use derivatives to hedge Its foreign exchange rate risks. 

17 
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Hockey Canada 

0. 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2017 

16. Rnanclal Instruments Risks (continued) ti 
~ (!!I 

Interest Rate Risk Q<:::) 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fut~re flows of a financial instrument 
will flucwate because of changes tn market interest t . The organization is exposed to 
interest rate risk arisfng from the po>Stblllty that c tn Interest rates will affect the 
value of its equities and bonds within tts fnvestm«n 0110. 

Other Price Risk {) 

Other price risk Is the uncertainty assocrjat h the valuation of assets arising from 
changes 1n equtty markets. The organlza s exposed to this rtsk through its equity 
holdings within Its Investment portfolio. . 

The organizatlorfs exJ)O$lJre to the above rn . ts unchanged from the prtor year. 
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for the y,,ar &nded June 30, 2017 

Fund~n c:e, beginning oft ..... ,...- yNr 

Exceu(def t'Xl)lll(!1tlJ tdHcy) of r,m,ru6 
rn for I.he year ov~ 

lnter.fu!'ld tr . ·· lll!lif~ (liote 10) 

Fund bala nca, ~nd of the Y"111 

Grow1hFund 

s 

1,64S,UT 

$ 17,166,292 

Fldlttlfi Fund 

$ Z,196, 774 

$ 2,313, 

g 
(J 

The accompan"' , ,ng 110t es ntcgral part of these financial stat ements. 

(J 

Bnnich 

705.ffl 

$ 15,460,2 17 

Schedule 1 

$ 

1• t 71,814 

9,527,000 

11, 713,140 

Hockey Canada 

-Act·· 0. 1v1ty for th CANADA e Pillars Fund 

5,404.271 

(1,800.000) 

5 ,CMl,Cl9-C . $ 

952,091 

(519, 1061 

9,BJJ, 686 

$ 

Total 

51,341,460 

10, 126,066 

68, 675,420 
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Schedule of Sport Canada Funded Revenue and Expenses 

Fo, U,e year ended June 30 f!JJ._ 

Non-core 
Lona tenn athlete development 
Offtclal languag~ 

Deflden of revenue over e alnstream athlcti'S 

.. :::··•-.. ey t1 ~lbw 
~:nnttoo , .. ~ d fiJ f;j 

Staff salaries, 
Coach1ng sala a professfonal development 
National team ms 
Operations a p rammtna 

Non-core 
Offtdal lanauages 

Defldency of revenue over expenses for athletes wtth a dfsabfttty 

(Unaudited) 

2017 

$ 2,838,100 

5,263,361 
818,513 

10,452,068 
1,401,659 
9,385,153 
8,757,◄06 

36,078,860 

596,937 
258,837 

36,934,63◄ 

$ 34 096 534 

$ 875,000 

zn.019 
152,850 
144,790 
808,278 
105,473 

1,488,410 

13,623 

1,502,033 

$ (627,033) 
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24(1) 

Independent Auditor's Report 

I 
~ Q(:) 

To the Members of / n~ {j )\ 
Hockey Canada ~... ~ -::...::f/ 

We have audited the accompanying financial stateme~f Hockey Canada, which comprise the 
balance sheet as at June 30, 2018, the statements o rations, changes in fund balances and 
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summa significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financia 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian ~ounting standards for not-for-profi t organizations, 
and for such internal control as manageme determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free fro material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. ~ 

Auditor's Responsibility ~ /R\ ~ 

Our responsibility is to expresstinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accord with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that weuo 'th ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assuran out whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves ~ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the t a ial sta~ements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, includin t assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, wheth clue to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to p.rovide a 
basis for our qualified audit opinion. 

2 
24(1) 
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24(1) 

Basts for Qualtfled Opinion 

As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, the figures for the year ended June 30, 
2017 were prepared In accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit 
organizations (ASHPO) except for the possible effects from the activities and balances related 
to the World Junior Championship 2017. All revenue and expenditures related to this event 
were recorded In fiscal 2017, therefore the opening fund balances for the year ended June 30, 
2017 exclude any transactions that would have occurred In fiscal 2016. 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter descr1bed ~n Basts for Qualffted Opinion 
paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, In all al respects, the financial 
position of Hockey Canada as at June 30, 2018 and the r~ of Its operations and its cash 
flows for the year then ended In accordance with Canadian'aa:ounting standards for not-for. 
profit organizations. o 
Unaudfted Information ~ ~ ~ 
We have not audited, reviewed or otherwise ~ttempt~ o verify the accuracy or completeness 
of the schedule on pa~ 21 of the Organization's f'i~ l Statements. 

24(1) -:f ? ~~~ 
Chartered Professional Accol.l'ltants, Lie 

Waterloo. Ontario 
24(1) 

© 
\ /4 ~~ 

~~r:J ~~ 

24(1) 

p ,())~ 
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Hockey Canada 

<I 
CANADA 

Balance Sheet 

June 30 2018 2017 
Operattna Health National 

Fund Benefit Trust Eguit;i: Fund Pillars Total Total 
Assets 

Current 
Cash {Note l ) $ 1,980,547 $ 239,7◄6 s 883,125 .$ 6,106, 206 s 9,209,6.''4 s 9,130,519 
Short-t erm Invest ment (Note l) 7, 500,000 7,500,000 
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 89,116 39,756 133,D81 3 ,023,82◄ 8,041,013 
ltecelvable from funds (Note 5) 1,698,450 4,409,499 6 , 107,9◄9 7,6◄2,962 
Hockey Resource Centre Inventories (Note 6) 830,958 nZ,977 
Pr~ ald expenses 287,232 1,632,720 2,364, 195 685,033 
Due from related t)<lr\les (Note 7) 1,207, 137 

2,027,322 5,619,612 15,37.2,007 30,2.43,6117 26,272,504 

Long-term i nvestments (Nole 8) 4,222,913 6,808,64◄ 69,211,◄79 90,541,490 86,281,810 
T,11nglbl e capfi.,I anet-s (Not e 9) 2,383,683 3,367,143 

s 6 250 235 s 12 428 2,6 s 84 58'.f 486 $ _ 1_23 168 860 s 115 921 457 

Llabtlitles and Fund Balances fr' 
Current 

()' Bank Indebtedness (Note 2) s s $ s s 62,466 
Ai;wunt s payable and accrued liabil I ties (Note 10) 3,458,082 696,007 113,55.ii 532,908 4,800,551 9 ,237,001 
Payable to funds (Note 5) 2,701, 105 

~ 
J,406, 84◄ 6, 107,9◄9 7,642,962 

Deferred cont r~utfons, operations (Note 11) 2,891,851 2,891,851 8'1::7,766 
Due to related parties (Note 7) 

} 
44,444 

Deferr~ revenue, International event hosting (Note 12) 13,268, 1l7 13,,263, 137 

\ 
9,051,038 696,007 113,554 17,207,BH 27,068,488 1?.814,639 

Other llabUltles and reserves 5, 125,68 3 5, 125,6&3 ,433,200 

e 9,051,0311 696,II07 5,239,237 17,207,889 32. 1 ~◄. 171 23 ,247,839 

Fund balances 
Internally restricted 2,383,611) 5 ,554,228 7, 189,019 67 ,376,.597 82,503,527 86,231,811 
Unrestricted 8,◄71.162 8,-471 , 162 6 ,◄◄ f ,807 

10,85.C,8,4~ s.ss4,i2s 7,189,019 67,376,597 90,974,689 92,673,618 

$ 19 905 883 $ 6 250 235 $ 12 428 256 84 584 4116 s 123 1611 1160 s 115 921 ◄57 

On behalf of 1.h<! Board: I) On behalf of M,ir111sement: 

24(1) 

The accompanying notes are an t al part of t hese financial statemenu. 4 
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Forthe e.ir ende" Ju "' ne 30 

Fund balances . ' beginning of th eyear 

Excess (defic' for the Y~:~cy) of revenue over 

lnterfund •. ,ransfers (Note 13) 

Fund bala.nc es, end of the year 

$ 

expenditures 

aJ» 
The accompanyl -ttg rig notes are an . m ra rt ofth . - f inancial statements. 

10,85'4,8'45 $ 

Hockey Canada 

U2,699 

S,554,228 

Statement of Ch anges in 

2018 

National Pillars 
E uit Fund Schedule 1 Total 

8,n7,719 s 68,675,420 s 92,673,618 

1,062,480 294,064 (1,698,929) 

9,840,1 99 68,969,'484 90,974,689 

(2,651, 180) (f ,592,887) 

5,554,228 $ 7,189,019 s 67,376,597 $ 

s 83,439,516 

9,234,102 

92,673,618 

5 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
C. AN AD O.. 

Statement of Operations 

For the :z:ear ended Ju ne 30 201 B 2017 

Operatlna Health Benefit National 
Fund Trust Egui!:z: Fund Pillars Total Total 

Revenue 
Funding (Notes 7 and 14) s 7,626,4 71 s s s - $ 7,626,471 s 6,148,146 
Marketing (Note 15) 22,171 ,373 22, 171 ,373 21,771,380 
Development (Note 7} 4,153,520 4, 153,520 4,869,956 
National events and camps (Note 14) 2,6S1 ,900 2,651,900 2,385,764 
High performance (Note 7) 3,560, 3,560,521 4,856,802 
Internat ional event hosting {Note 14) 2,777,500 2,777,500 26,773,983 
Investment and interest Income 206, 158 333,005 3,388,175 3,927,338 5,089,788 
Administration 110 110,637 786,398 
Member services 3, 21 3, 226,221 3,34B,1n 
Insurance premiums 3,894,044 8, 175,◄1◄ 1.2,069,458 12,289,075 

◄, 100,202 8, 508,◄ 1 9 6,165, 675 62,274;939 88,319,469 
-

Elq>endltu res 
Funding tJ ,. ..... 146,848 232,386 
Marketing 2,876,890 2,876,890 4,847,561 
Development (Note 7) 4, 183,\168 337,190 4,521 , 158 5,492,315 
National events and camps Cl ._,,,_,., 4,239,297 4,173,991 
High performance (Note 71 n,977,n~ 350,000 17,327,775 13,851 ,700 
International event hosting 3,690,227 3,690,227 21 ,259,946 
Administ ration 16,511 ,479 594,4 11 608,849 2,188, 501 19,903,240 19,577,029 
Custodial fees 23,368 249,,50 27),018 271-,523 
Member services 1,828,321 1,828,321 2,883,101 
Insurance premiums 1,888,760 6, 110, 556 7,999,316 " 7,654,681) 
Insurance claims 

\ 
1,490,198 66,888 1,557,08'6 1,975,536 

4 6,764,578 3,973,369 7,496,851 6,128,378 64,363, 176 s2,219,n7 

Excen (deftctl'ncy) of ,re11enue over expenditures for 
before other Item (3,263,935) 126,833' 1,011,568 37,297 (2,088,237) 6,099,692 

Othe-r lte-m 
Unrealized gain on market value, of investmen 65,763 15,866 50,912 256,767 389, 308 3,134,410 

EJ\cess deficienc $ 3 198 172 $ 142 699 s 1 062 480 s 294 064 s 1 69'8 929 s 9 234 102 
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Hockey Canada 

<I 
CANADA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended June 30 2018 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year / (, .•• , .• ,.) s 9,234,102 

Items not involving cash 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Unrealized gain on market value of investments 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Q<:::, 786,682 
n) (389,308) 
~ (142,472) 

1,282,338 
(3,134,410) 

Changes in non-cash working capital balances 
Accounts receivable 
Hockey Resource Centre inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred contributions, opefations 

() 
() 

Deferred revenue, international event hosting (Note 12) 
Other liabilities and reserves ~ \ 

c,mfl~~ nv~~:/4 ~ 
Purchase of tangible capital asse 
Proceeds on disposal of t anglbl c 
Purchase of investments 

Cash, beginning of th 

Cash, end of the year 

Represented by 

Cash 
Bank indebtedness 

ear ~ 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements. 

$ 

(1,444,027) 

5,017, 189 
(57,981) 

(1,679, 162) 
(4,436,450) 
2,064,085 

13,268, 137 
(307,517) 

13,868.301 

12,424,274 

(305,750) 
645,000 

(11,370,372) 
(1,251,581) 

(12,282,703) 

141,571 

9,068,053 

9,209,624 $ 

7,382,030 

1,463,142 
(260,678) 
376,862 

1,899,789 
(1 ,681 ,192) 

(978,800) 

819,123 

81201, 153 

(548,279) 

(5,019,400) 
(1,428,223) 

(6,995, 902! 

1,205,251 

7,862,802 

9,068,053 

$ 9,209,624 $ 9,1 30,519 
(62,466) 
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Hockey Canada 

0. 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations Hockey Canada (the "organii") is a Canadian Amateur 
Athletic Association incorpora,{li without share capital under 
the laws of Canada. The f/Fia1 ization carries on operations 
for the express purpose bOimproving and enhancing the 
growth and development ockey ii) Canada. 

Basis of Accounting The financial stateme ve been prepared using Canadian 
accou_nting stand~ for not-for-profit organizations 
(ASNPO). y 

Fund Accounting The organizaf i.11 follows the restricted fuhd method of 
accounting. 

(F; The Opera · Fund accounts for the cost5 of programs, 
~ administrative and other operating expenditures of the 

organi tion funded by fees, funding agencies, sponsorships 
~ and oth general revenue. 

~ 
The Health Benefit Trust Fund was established in 1988 to 

M pro de supplementary medical and dental coverage during 
sa ioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses is 

1 ed regularly by the organization to ensure financial 
/5)sk is minimized. 

~ The National Equity Fund balance has been accumulated as a 

P 
precau~ion against judgments that may be made against the 
organizat1on as a result of current or future claims. The 
organization is currently involved in defending legal actions 

() 

resulting from accidents and injuries involved in sanctioned 
hockey activities. A provision has been made for estimated 
settlements and professional fees related to these actions. 
This provision is reviewed regularly by the organization 
throughout the year to ensure that financial risk is 
minimized. 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CAN A DA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fund Accounting 
(continued) The Pillars are internally re ed funds which include The 

Growth fund, Facilities , Branch Support fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabilizatio Fund, the International Event 
Hosting Support Fund a e Technology Fund. These funds 
are to be used as folio 

Technology Fund is to be used to fund future 
technologies that the organization will utilize. 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is generally determined on the first-in, first -out 
basis. 
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Hockey Canada 

<I 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Tangible Capital Assets 

Revenue Recognition 

Tangible capital assets are stl at cost less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization b on the estimated useful 
life of the asset is calculated ollows: 

Building $~ 25 year straight line basis 
Computer equipment • 3 year straight line basis 
Leasehold improveme straight -line over the term of 

Office equipment 
t raining/ medical 

the lease 
· 5 year straight line basis 

5 year straight line basis 

When a tangi apital asset no longer has any long-term 
service pote ia o the organization, the e-xcess of its net 
carrying a u over any residual value is recognized as an 
expense in statement of operations. 

Restric; contributions related to general operations are 
recognl d as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year in 
wh jch th related expenses are incurred. All other restricted 
con ributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate 
res ·cted f und when received. 

tricted cont ributions and sponsorship (marketing) 
venue are recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in 
e year received or receivable if the amount to be received 

can be reasona_bly measured and collection is reasonably 
assured. 1{1 certain instances, the organization receives funds 
fro,n the governments and other supporters to offset specific 
expenses. When these funds are received prior to incurring 
the related expenses, they are shown as deferred 
contributions. 

Event revenue is recognized as revenue in the year in which 
the event occurred and performance has been achieved if 
the amount received can be reasonably measured and 
collection is reasonably assured. 

High performance, Member services and insurance premium 
revenues are recognized in the year received or receivable if 
the amount can be reasonably measured and collection is 
reasonably assured. 

Investment revenue is recognized as revenue in the year in 
which the income was earned and realized. These amounts 
are reasonably measurable and collection is reasonably 
assured. 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CA NADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounti ng Policies (continued) 

Cont ributed Materials &. 
Services 

Income Taxe s 

(c_J 

Volunteers contribute man urs per year to assist the 
organization in carrying ~its service delivery activit ies. 
Because of the difficultv of determining their fair value, 
contributed services a ot recognized in the financial 
statements. Contribut aterials are not recognized in the 
financial statements less they would normally be 
purchased 'by the nization and their fair market value 
can be -ascertain 

The organ~·z claims an exemption fo income tax 
purposes Registered Canadian Amateur Athletic 
Association A ordingly, no provision for income taxes has 
been madel~ hese financial statements. 

Foreign Currency 
Translation currency accounts are translated into Canadian 

follows: « 
~ ~ At ·he transaction date, each asset, liability, revenue and 

e nse is translat_ed into Canadian dollars by the use of the 
ex ange rate in effect at that date. At the year end date, 

() 
onetary assets and liabilit ies are translated into Canadian 

clollars by using the exchange rate in effect at that date. The 
resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are included in o income in the current period. 

Use of Estimates (Y' The preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

() 

ASNPO requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
management's best estimates as additional information 
becomes available in the future. Significant estimates were 
required in the valuation of other liabilities and reserves. 
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Hockey Canada 
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CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Leases Leases are classified as capitt?:operating leases. A lease 
that transfers substantially of the benefits and risks 
incidental to the ownerst:wl '1: property is classified as a 
capital lease. At the incef>tto n of a capital lease, an asset 
and an obligation areided at an amount equal to the 
lesser of the present v .u of the minimum tease payments 
and the property's fai e at the beginning of the lease. 
All other leases a accounted for as operating leases 
wherein rental pa ts are expensed on a straight line 
basis. 
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Hockey Canada 

<I 
C AN A DA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

2. Cash (Bank Indebtedness) 

The organization's bank accounts are held at one chartei ank and earn interest at a 
rate of bank prime less 1. 90% per annum. The prime rate ne 30, 2018 was 3.45% (2017 
• 2.70%). Bank balances include $657,716 (2017 , $55JA .t ) denominated in U.S. dollars 
converted to $849,741 (2017 · $693,963) Canadian. iheiorganization has a $1 ,000,000 
revolving demand facility at a rate of bank prime a · is secured by a general security 
agreement. At June 30, 2018, the organization had n aWn credit capacity of $1 ,000,000 
(2017 • $1 ,000,000). The organizat ion has c 24t1) p to a maximum of $1 ,250,000. At 
June 30, 2018, the organization had undrawn ir capacity of approximately $1 ,126,000 
(2017 • $2,338,000) on this facility. The-0rgani r n has an available credit card limit of 
$890,000. At June 30, 2018, t he organization h ndrawn credit capacity of approximately 
$554,000 (2017 · $436,000) . 

3. Short-Term Investment 

The short-term investment consists a guaranteed investment ce rtificate bearing interest 
at 1.70%, maturing October 2018. 

4. Accounts Receivable 

5. 

Accounts receivable includes <t5 , 151 {2017 • $nil) due from the 24(1) denominated in Swiss 
Francs converted to $5981 5 anadian . Accounts receivable includes $13,500 (2017 · $nil) 
due from the IIHF den · ated in Euros converted to $17,931 Canadian. Accounts 
receivable includes $75, (2017 · $2,767,519) due from the 24(1 )fonominated in U.S. 
dollars converted to $1 9 (2017 - $3,591,409) Canadian. 

The interfund es are inte rest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

6. Hockey Resource Centre Inventories 

Total Hockey Resource Cent re inventory sold during the year was $147,970 (2017 • 
$221 ,666). 
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Hockey Canada 
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CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

7. Related Party Transactions and Due From/To Related Parties 

Hockey Canada exercises significant influence over the Hoc,anada Foundation and the 
Hockey Canada Foundation U.S. (the Foundations} by virtu its sharing of premises and 
administrative support. The Foundations were est~)lsh d as registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey Cana~ nd other organizations in the 
country with objectives similar to Hockey Canada. (} 

Transactions with Hockey Canada foundat ion and ey Canada Foundation U.S are as 

:~~:i:n, gi,en O ~(Jg 
Hockey Canada Foundation 

2018 

$1 , 171,554 S 

\ Grants received 
Hockey Canada Foundation 

2018 

$ 522,492 $ 

These transactions are in the r r l course of operations and are measured at the 
exchange value, which appr · ates the arms length equivalent value. 

r-..;;, 

Amounts due to (froma ted parties are as follows: 
Hockey Canada Fou{(":lfi'on 
Hockey Canada dation U.S. 

2018 

$ (1,203,457) $ 
(3,680) 

$ (1,207,137) $ 

2017 

965,796 

2017 

796,563 

2017 

48,194 
(3,750) 

44,444 

The amounts due to (from) related parties are non-interest bearing, unsecured, and have 
no fixed terms of repayment. 
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Hockey Canada 
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CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

8. Long-Term Investments 

9. 

Cash and money market funds 
Bond funds 
Equities 
Government bonds 
Corporate bonds 

Market value 

Corporate and government bonds have 
mature December 2019. Other long-ter 
5.00%. 

Tangible Ca~ ,. ~ 

<6) 4 Cost 

Building a $ -
Computer equipment 3,525,453 
Leasehold improvem s 1,893,207 
Office equipmen 1,470,767 
Training/ medic e ipment 563,687 

I ,o,. 
Q(:) $ 3,417, 192 $ 

41 ,904,990 
45,013,113 

206,195 

2017 

3,307,015 
40,509,544 
41 ,995,000 

213,068 
257 183 

$90,541,490 $ 86,281,810 

tive rates ranging from 4.00% to 4.50% and 
investments had an average rate of return of 

2018 2017 

Accumulated Accumulated 
Amortization Cost Amortization 

s - s 562,508 s 117,002 
2,586,812 3,220,354 1,965,591 

471 ,127 1,973,955 400,951 
1,469,486 1,477,549 1,427,325 

542 ,006 563,687 520,041 

$ 7,453, 114 $ 5,069,431 $ 7,798,053 $ 4,430,910 

Net book value $ 2,383,683 $ 3,367,143 

During the year, the organization recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
$786,682 (201 7 -$ 1,282,338). 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilit ies include $260,6~ 3 • $1 ,749,724) payable to 
the IIHF denominated in Swiss Francs converted to $346,21 17 - $2,353,554) Canadian. 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $69,4 17 - $19,383) in government 
remittances. 

11 . Deferred Contributions, Operations 

12. 

Deferred contributions, operat:jons relate to re<-a ed operating funding received in the 
current period that is related to expenses that~ incurred in the subsequent period. 

Changes in the deferred contributions b n reported in the Operat ing Fund are as 
follows: 

Balance, beginning Qf the year 
Contributions received 

Recogn;,ed to revenue ~ ~ 
Balance, end of the year ,!j 

g 

2018 2017 

$ 81.7,766 $ 2,508,958 
2,891,851 827,766 

3,719,617 
(827,766) 

$ 2,891,851 $ 

3,336,724 
(2,508,958) 

827,766 

Deferred Reve~ u, I ternatlonal Event Hosting 

Deferred reve e ternational event hosting relates to ticket sales for the World Junior 
Championship , in which the event will occur December 2018 and January 2019 and 
the revenue will then be recognized. 

13. lnterfund Transfers 

During the year, the Board of Directors authorized a transfer of $2,651 ,180 (2017 -
$10,250,000) from the National Equity Fund to the Pillars Funds. 

During the year, the Board of Directors authorized a transfer of $4,244,067 (2017 
$2,319,106) from the Pillars Funds to the Operating Fund and $nil (2017 - $723,000) from 
the Pillars Funds to the National Equity Fund. 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

14. Funding 

15. 

The general operating grants received from government fig agencies are recorded in 
the fiscal year to which they apply. Total funding rece· during the fiscal year was 
$4,190,850 received from the Government of Car,adJ~ 50,000 from the Province of 

::.~:i::d $2,300,000 from the Province of British a a (2017 · $7,299,000). 

Sponsorship revenue includes value tn kind of ~ 385,660 (2017 · $1 ,330,335) including 
products and contributed services i n exchang r sponsorship rights. These transactions 
have been measured at the fair value of th tributed products and services. 

16. Commitments 

The organization has entered into a ontract with the IIHF committing to event fees. The 
contract expires during the 2030/203 season. 

The organitation has enter.eij· to a software licensing agreement, office equipment 
agreement Qnd an IT managem t and support services agreement. The contracts expire 
between December 2018 and er 2021. 

The organization has ente into two rental agreements committing to incur the rental 
and operating costs retar o the orgahiz&tion's rented premises expiring between April 
2023 and October 2031 . 

The expected outtto4 funds relating to the above commitments for the next five years 
are as follows: 'f:J' 

V 
s 3,827,092 

2,690,542 
3,829,222 
2,453,022 
2,408,342 

s 15,208,220 
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Hockey Canada 

<I 
C AN ADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

17. Comparative Information 

The results from the World Junior Championship 2017 i included in the financial 
statements in the year the event was completed. The e was completed in January 
2017, and as such, all revenue and expenditur'es relat%l_ ~ this event were recorded in 
fiscal 2017, therefore the opening fund balances for the-~r encfed June 30, 2017 exclude 
any transactions that would have occurred in fiscal 201 

18. ::::::~nstrument Risks ~ ~ p = 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a f~-n · l instrument will causE: a f in~ncial loss for 
the other party by failing to dischar obligation. Financial instruments which 
potentially subject the organization to centrations of credit risk consist of cash, 
accounts receivable, and investments. he organization has deposited the cash and 
investments with a reputable financi· l institution, from which management believes the 
risk of loss to be remote. The cred· risk on accounts receivable arises from reputable 
corporate partners and organizations i a similar not-for-profit sector. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk t e organizatio encounters difficulty in meeting its 
obligations associated wiih · n ial liabili ties. Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a 
result of operatior,a{ liquid' equirements, the organization will not have sufficient funds 
to settle a transaction o due date; will be forced to sell financial assets at a value, 
which is less than wh~t e are worth; or may be unable to settle or recover a financial 
asset. Liquidity risk a · e from accounts payable and accrued liabilities, other liabilities 
and reserves and c itments. Due to the organization's current working capital , 
management belie s e risk of loss t o be remote. 

Market Risk 

Market risk is t risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: 
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The is exposed to all three risks. 
The organization's risk management strategies are described below. 

Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The organization's 
financial instruments that are exposed to this risk include cash, accounts receivable and 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The organization considers this risk to be 
acceptable and therefore does not use derivatives to hedge its foreign exchange rate 
risks. 
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Hockey Canada 

0. 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2018 

18. Financial Instrument Risks (continued) 

Interest Rate Risk II 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value o/ ~ re cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in mark nterest rates. The organization is 
exposed to interest rate risk arising from the possib' t that changes in interest rates will 
affect the value of i t s equities and bonds within its tment portfolio. 

Other Price Risk {}_ 
Other price risk is the uncertainty associ with the valuation of assets arising from 
changes in equity markets. The organiz on~1s exposed to this risk through i'ts equity 
holdings within its ·nvestment port folio Bo cl funds hold a diversif ied' mjx of Canadian 
government bonds, and Canadian and U. . gh yield and pooled corpor.ate bonds with an 
average duration of 5·10 years. Equity funds consist of a diversified portfolio of large cap 
Canadian, U.S. and IAternational eq i ies. 

The organization's exposure to the ab e risks is unchanged from the prior year. 
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For the year ended J une 30, 2018 

Fund balance • beglnnins or the year 

Excess (derlci expe d ency) of re-,,e n ilure1 lo nues over r the year 

Inter-fund 1 ,ansfers (Nole 111 

Fund balanc e, end of the year 

__G .• ,,rowth Fund 

17,166,292 

797,-425 

__ _1(1,, ,,0827 ,479) 

16• 136,238 s 

s 

s 

FadHti•~ Fund 

2,383,291 

120,609 

3;1 ◄8, 

g 
{) 

aJ» 
The accom . (Jg panymg notes a ntegral manaal state rnents. part of these f . 

$ 

Hockey Canada 

.fl 
Schedule 1 - Activity for the 

CANA 

Pillars Fu~d 

lnlematlonal E 
i'lmln1 Sup;:~ lnS11ranc R 

-
_ S.;;ta;;;b.:.::Hi:!.:za~tl·~ nil' : ate on fund 

s 18,783,840 

(263,025) 1,029,259 

15,177,192 22,464,279 

$ 

$ 

_F_u.;;n=.d -~ T echnolotr1 Fund 

5,048,094 

(1,838,648) 

12,452,40 ) 

757,045 

$ 

s 

9,833,686 $ 

468,44◄ 

(608,536) 

9,693,594 $ 

- Tot.11 

68, 675, 420 

294,064 

(1 , 592,887) 

67, 376,597 
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Schedule of Sport Canada Funded Revenue and Expenses 
(Unaudited) 

For the year ended June 30 

Mainstream Athletes 

:;.;;: 0@ a~ J 
Governance ~ 
Administration costs g 
Staff salaries 

National team programs 
Operations and programming 

Coaching salaries and professional devetopme~t 

IP.~ 
~:::;::rT ..... ,., l ~ 

/2R)-
Deficienc of revenue over ex 

Athletes with a Disability 

Revenue 

Expenses 
Core 
Administration costs 
Governance 
Staff salaries 

ainstream athletes 

Coaching salarie an professional development 
National team ms 
Operations and programming 

Non-core 
Official languages 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses for athletes with a disability 

s 

2018 

3,737,850 

4,469,259 
839, 587 

10,544,154 
751,608 

10,369,095 
9,564,833 

36,538,536 

224,200 

36,762,736 

S 33 024 886 

$ 303,000 

235,224 
44,189 

187,000 
155,737 

1,015,815 
55,420 

1,693,385 

11 ,800 

1,705,185 

S (1,402,185) 
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24(1) 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Hockey Canada 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Hockey Cani he organization), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at June 30, 2019, and the sta nt of changes in fund balances, 
operations, and cash flows for the year then ended, a otes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting ,policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial stateme resent fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the organization as at J i\ , 2019, and its results of operations and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in acco a e with Canadian accounting standards for 
not-for-profit organizations. -Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance ith Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Our responsibilities under those standards re further described in the A1.:1ditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statement' section of our report. We are independent of the 
organization in accordance with the ethic,a requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Canada. an we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provi asis for our opinion. 

Responstbflitles of M.anageme Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

Management is responsib~e o the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance t Canaoian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, 
and for such Internal cont s management determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statement t a are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the in cial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
organization's abili continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's financial 
reporting process. 
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Auditor's Responsibflttfes for the Audit of the Ftnandal Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an 
auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but 
fs not a guarantee that an audft conducted In accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can 

' arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, lndfvfdually or In the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit In accordance with canadlan generally accepted auditing standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional ske7lti throughout the audit. We 

~= ~ 
• Identify and assess the risks of material missta~e«1 of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perfonn ~ procedures responsive to those 

• 

• 

• 

• 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that fs sufficienijapproprtate to provide a basts for 
our opinion. The risk of not detectins a materi sstatement resulting from fraud ts 
higher than for one resulting from error, as may Involve collusion, forgery, 
Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, o~errlde of Internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of lntema( control nt to the audit In order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate In~ mstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiven the organization's lntetna) CQntrol. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of ac u ng policies used and the reasonableness of 
aceotmtfng estimates and related disc res made by management. 

Conclude on the approprlatenes~f management's use of the going concern basis of 
accOW"ltlng and, based on the a t evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or c ditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
organization's ability toin lnue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are •~ uired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures In the fitli dal statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our nc} sions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our audltor'f ort. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
organization to cease ntlnue a a Joins concern. 

Evaluate the ove~r tatton, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disc es, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and ts in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communfcate~ose charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and m· of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant 
deficiencies In Int ontrol that we Identify during our audit. 

24(1) 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Waterioo, Ontario 
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The accompanying notos are an Integral part of th<!se financial stateme,,ts. 
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t ,144,56] t ,144,SU 1,!500,000 

11,426 J,176,011 J,02),914 
(2.516, 167) 

l,01S,JU IJO,OSI 
40),Jlt l , J64,19S 

t ,107,1)7 

tl.4M,660 25,7◄) , 15) v . ssi,9JO 

6',579,06) 9),45),))4 17.12 .. ,29. 
1,909,7U 2,)IJ,611 

111011.721 12,.,0,1209 11710601911 

,u.u, 7,0,6, 54) ◄,I00,551 
106,9)6 2,191,151 
115,• n 

u.:ua. n1 

912.139 7,• 11,956 10,960,539 
◄,U♦,169 5 125,613 

9U,ll9 12,0'5, US 26,016,lll 

11,ot◄,114 t7,4H , 292 ll,SOJ,527 
11,562,'91 1.471,161 

11,0,4,114 10,,0,0,, ... 90,974,619 

12 017 723 121 106 209 117 060 911 
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For the ear ended June 30 

<>p•r•t1ns Pillar-. 
fund Sctiedul& Tc,tal Total 

Fund balanc .. , belinnnti of the year 1 0,15◄,1◄5 s 7, 119,019 $ 67,l76,S97 $ 90,97◄,689 92,673,611 

Exe .. , fc»flcfoncy) or ,e...nue oVff expenditurfl 
ror tl1e Yff' 4~3.676 2,l◄9,2◄l 15,U1,4'5 11,076,295 (1,698,929) 

6,007, 90-4 9 ,538,262 83,lSl,092 109,050,91◄ 90,97◄,689 

lnt@rlund transfol'\ fNote 12) 11 ,062,-4801 (2,163,208) 

Fund balances, end of the year $ ll,4n,◄I◄ S 6,007,90-4 1,475,782 S 81 ,09◄,884 $109,050,984 S 90,97◄,689 

d fi~i 
() ;(!f' 

The accompanying notes are an lnt~r•I part of these financial statements. 5 
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Hockey Canada 

<I 
CI\ NI\DA 

~ Statement of Operations 

For the ~ear ended June 30 2019 2018 

operatlna Health Benefit 
Fund Trust Pt llus TOUI Total 

Ar,..,u• 
Fundtn1 (HotH 7 and Ill $ 7,◄21,209 $ $ 7,◄Zl,209 7,626,◄71 
Mari<etfn1 (Hote 141 20,760,113 20,760, 1 tl 22,171,373 
Development (Note 7) 1,661,122 2,6'1,112 ◄. 153,520 
National tMnls and c.arrc,s (Note 131 

~ 
2,355,5.98 2,355,598 2,651 ,900 

Hl1h perlonnana, (Note 7) 2,79?,202 t ,799,202 l,560,521 
lntcmatlonal l'Yfflt hostlne (,'jote 13 and 1◄1 36,417,937 36,417,937 2.m.soo 
Investment and Interest Income 368,278 3,688,470 4,]08,459 l ,927,JJI 
Admfnfstrlltion 911,918 9\8,918 110,6)7 
MC!mber servta,, 

~v~ 
] ,100,911 ], 100,911 3,226,211 

Grow the 1amc, 1,645,751 1 ,6◄5,751 
lnsur1nce ~mlums 9,◄36, 167 15,493,891 12,069,45& 

◄1 ,66◄,894 9,804,445' 40,106,407 97,885,181 62,274,939 

ElcpendfturH 
fundtnt 

6~ 3 -;!,I 67l,793 146,a◄a 
MMi<etlns 1, 12 55 2,111,355 2,876,S'JO 
Oev\!\opment (Nole 7) 2,966, 6 344,612. 3,31 1,071 ◄,521 , 158 
National events and CM"QS 

~~~ 
3,935, 6 3,935,216 4,239,297 

Hl1h performance (Hote 71 11,649,141 11,649,141 17,327,n5 
International event hosting 23,131,044 23,138,044 3,690,217 
Admlnlst~tlon ,929,on 6'1,0U 1,064,059 1,337,182 11,991 ,3-46 19,903,240 
Custodial lee$ 22,164 252,231 274,395 273,011 
MelT'ber services 7 16,294 l,71 6,29◄ 1,828,321 
Grow the game ,30),949 1,303,949 
Memberenga~ment 96,197 96,197 
lnsur1nce ~ lums {) a m,8◄0,10, 6 ,056,751 9,897,460 7,999,316 
Insurance c\alms 1,427,7l0 73,019 1,500,749 1,557,086 

42,392,258 5, 929,467 7,560,605 25,427,457 11,309,717 6◄,363 ,176 

b<= <•-~•-•~---•= <w<M y 
brio,e other Ite m (727,]6◄) ]79,968 2,24],8,4() 14,671,950 16,575,394 (2,088,237) 

OthH Item 
UnrHllud 11ln on marlcet value of ln~tmenls 11,,2◄5 73,701 105,,4()] 1,202,545 1,500,901 389,308 

Excess cltflc\en of rey,enu. over e H r s 608 119 ◄53 676 2 349 243 15 181 495 18076 295 1 698 929 

The accompanylnt notes are an lntea,1I plrt of l 6 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended June 30 

Cash flows from operating activttfes 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year 

Items not involving cash 
111:::::i Amortization of tangible capital assets 

Unrealized gain on market value of investments 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 11 

Changes in non-cash working capltat balances (} 
Accounts receivable {Y 
Hockey Resource Centre inventories (J 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred contributions, operations 
Deferred revenue, international event hosting 
Other liabilities and ~rves 

~...,....::;;.,~ 

'' '' ~ ~ 
Cash flows from Investing activitie~ 

Purchase of tangible capital asse 
Proceeds on disposal of tangib?le fta assets 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds on disposal of inves 
Advan= from (repaym•g ated parties 

Increase (decrease) in uring the year 

Cash, beginning of th 

Cash, end of the year 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements . . . 

2019 

18,076,295 S 

653,204 
(1,500,901) 

17,228,598 

(752,194) 
(194, 307} 

1,960,874 
2,295,992 

{2,684,915} 
(13,268,137) 

(489,414) 

(13,132,101) 

4,096,497 

(179,243) 

(14,672,698) 
7,500,000 
1,322,614 

(1,932,830) 

12,626,816 

$ 10,693,986 $ 

2018 

(1,698,929) 

786,682 
(389,308) 
(142,472) 

(1,444,027) 

5,017,189 
(57,981) 

(1,679,162) 
(4,436,450) 
2,064,085 

13,268,137 
(307,517) 

13,868,301 

12,424,274 

(305,750) 
645,000 

(7,953,180) 

(1,251,581) 

(8,865,511) 

3,558,763 

9,068,053 

12,626,816 
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Hockey Canada 

0. 
CANA D A 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2019 

1. Summary of Significant Accounti ng Policies 

Nature of Operat ions 

Basis of Accounting 

Fund Accounting 

Hockey Canada (the "organi;laf ") is a Canadian Amateur 
Athletic Association incorpora lhout share capital under 
the laws of Cana(j_a. The or · ation carries on operations 
for the express purpose ~ "- proving and enhancing the 
growth and development o~ ckey in Canada. 

The financial statemen 
accounting- standard 
(ASNPO). 

ve been prepared using Canadian 
or not-for-profit organizations 

lows the restricted fund method of 

The Operaf g und accounts for the co~ts of programs, 
administrat and other operating expenditures of the 
organization funded by fees, funding agencies, sponsorships 
and ot r general revenue. 

The Hea h Benefit Trust Fund was established in 1988 to 
provide supplementary medical and dental coverage during 

~

n ioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses is 
re · ed regularly by the organization to ensure financial 

minimized. 

e Nationat Equity Fund balance has been accumulated as a 
recauti()n against judgments that may be made against the 

organ1iation as a result of current or future claims. The 
organiz.ation (s currently involved in defending legal actions 
resulting from accidents and injuries involved in sanctioned 
hockey activities. A provision has been made for all 
set tlements, deductibles and professional fees related to 
these actions. 

8 
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Hockey Canada 

0-
C AN A D A 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2019 

1. Summary of Slgniffcant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fund Accounting 
(continued) The Pillars are internally res~ ed funds which include The 

Growth Fund, Facilities F~6f'Branch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabiliza~ Fund, the International Event 
Hosting Support Fund an Hll'e Technology Fund. These funds 
are to be used as folio 

Growth Funda·s used, as determined by the Board 
(( o( Directors, f e development of hockey in Canada. 

{ . Facili ties Fu is to be used to support current office 
~ : i planning and to review other Init iatives 
~ ~- f ilities across the country. 

Branc to ensure the 
(r .d, organization can support Branches for initiatives that 
~<:::::f} ~ ~ ~-ational in scope, but require delivery at the Branch 

~ ~ Insurance Rate Stabilization Fund is to be used to ensure 
~ vT fut ure insurance rate increases are buffered. 

International Event Hosting Support Fund is to be used (a) (j to support the organization·s hosting of international 

~ ~ events. 

h) Technology Fund is to be used to fund future 0 technologies that the organization will utilize. 

Inventories () Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is generally determined on the first-in, first-out 
basis. 

9 



Hockey Canada 

.fl 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30 2019 

1. Summary of Significant Account ing Policies (continued) 

Tangible Capital Assets Tangible capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization b~ on the estimated useful 
life of the asset is calculated ~ llows: 

Computer equipment Q<:::) 3 year straight line basis 

Revenue Recognition 

Leasehold lmprovemenats · straight-line over the term of 
r) the lease 

Office-equipment lJI • 5 year straight line basis 
Software • 1 year straight line basis 
Training/medical ~ent · 5 year straight line basis 

Amortization is U ed in the year following the year of 
acquisition a amortization is taken in the year of 
disposal . 

When a ta e capital asset no longer has any long-term 
service potential to the organization, the excess of its net 
carryin amount over any residual value is recognized as an 
ex-pens the statement of operations. 

Resi·cted contributions related to general operations are 
rec nized as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year in 
~!!~ the related expenses are incurred. All other restricted 
91n_iYibutions -are recognized as revenue of the appropriate 

.fi stricted fvnd when received. 

U nrestricted contributions and sponsorship (marketing) 
revenue are recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in 
the year received or receivable if the amount to be received 
can be reasonably measured and collection is reasonably 
assured. In certain instances, the organization receives funds 
from the governments and other supporters to offset specific 
expenses. When these funds are received prior to incurring 
the related expenses, they are shown as deferred 
contributions. 

Event revenue is recognized as revenue when performance 
has been achieved if the amount received can be reasonably 
measured and collection is reasonably assured. 

10 
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Hockey Canada 

.ti 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2019 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Revenue Recognition 
(continued) 

Contributed Materials & 
Services 

~ 
~m~ 

High performance, Member, ces and insurance premium 
revenues are recognized in ear received or receivable if 
the amount can be reaSOAaf ly n:ieasured and collection is 
reasonably assured. 'J 

Investment revenue i 
which the income wa 
are reasonably 
assured. 

r ognized as revenue in the year in 
rned and realized. These amounts 

rable and collection is reasonably 

Volunteers n bute many hours per y~ar to assist the 
organizatio i carrying out i ts service delivery activities. 
Because o e difficulty of determining their fair value, 
contributed services are not f'7ognized in the financial 
stateni, nts. Cont ributed materials are not recognized in the 
financ1~ statements unless they would normally be 
purchasEkl by the organization and their fair market value 
ca be ascertained. ,, '\) ~ 

Income Taxes j~ organization claims an exemption for income tax 
~ r oses as a Registered Canadian Amateur Athletic 

if"\\ ~ {J ssociation. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has 
~ JJ een made in these financial statements. 

Foreign Currency {j 
Translation (Y' 

() 
Forei~n currency accounts are translated into Canadian 
dollars as follows: 

At the transaction date, each asset, liability, revenue and 
expense ts translated into Canadian dollars by the use of the 
exchange rate in effect at that date. At the year end date, 
monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian 
dollars by using the exchange rate in effect at that date. The 
resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are Included in 
income in the current period. 

11 
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Hockey Canada 

0 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30 2019 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Use of Estimates 

Financial Instruments 

tJ 
() 

The preparation of financial I t ents in accordance with 
ASNPO may require manage to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the rted amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of ~ '- mancial statements, and the 
reported amounts of rev~es and expenses during the 
reporting period. A:i.t results could differ from 
mana~ment's best · tes as additional information 
becomes available in ture. Significant estimates were 
required in the valuPf/1 of other liabilities and reserves. 

Financial instrumY are recorded at fair value when 
acquired or iss In subsequent periods, equities t raded in 
an active ma et nd derivatives are repprted at fair value, 
with any ch ge fair value reported in income. In addition, 
all guarc~nt vestment certificates have been designated 
to be in tt'ie fair value category, with gains and losses 
r~porte~·n operations. All other financial instruments are 
reporte at cost or amortized cost less impairment, if 
applicab . Financial assets are tested for impairment when 
changes in circumstances indicate the asset could be 

~

m ired. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issue 
of nancial Instruments are expensed for those items 

ri , sured at fair value at each balance sheet date and 
ai,ed to the financial instrument for those measured at 
ortized cost. 

12 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2019 

2. Cash 

The organization's bank accounts are held at one charter~ nk and earn interest at a 
rate of bank prime less 1.90% per annum. The prime rate a e 30, 2019 was 3.95% (2018 
- 3.45%). Bank balances include $926,636 (2018 - $657,7 denominated in U.S. dollars 
converted to $1 ,211 ,947 (2018 - $849,741) Canadia :ash l!nd money market funds 
totaling $3,067,291 (2018 - $3,417,192) are held in~n ·A-v stment portfolio that is grouped 
with the organizations bank balance. The organizati as a $1 ,000,000 revolving demand 
facility at a rate of bank prime and it is secured b~ neral security agreement. At June 
30, 2019, the organization had undrawn ,crediti aP, · of $1 ,000,000 (2018 - $1,000,000) . 
The organization has a 24 1) up to 9 maxi of $1 ,250,000. At June 30, 2019, the 
organization had undrawn credit capacity of aP. rr ·mately $1,052,000 (201 8 . $1 ,126,000) 
on this facility. The organization h~s an availa credit card limit of $890,000. At June 30, 
2019, the organization had undrawn cred· pacity of approximately $358,000 (2018 -
$554,000). 

3. Short-term Investments 

Short-term i nvestments consist of gu anteed investment certificates bearing interest at 
2.00% and 1. 95%, maturing October 2 9 and November 2019 respectively. 

4. Accounts Receivable /4 tR.. ,ti) 

Accounts rei:eivab1e ini l $237,383 (2018 - S450, 151) due from third parties 
denomi nated in Swiss Fr c converted to $319,637 (2018 - $598,538) Canadian. Accounts 
receivable includes $142, (2018 - $75,000) due from third parties denominated In U.S. 
dollars converted to , 54 (2018 • $113,947) Canadian. Accounts receivable Includes 
$194,447 (2018 - $11 ) in government remittances. 

5. Receivable Fro F ds / Payable to Funds 

The interfund nces are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

6. Hockey Resource Centre Inventories 

Total Hockey Resource Centre inventory expensed during the year was $1 ,048,334 (2018 -
$1,021,511 ). 

13 



Hockey Canada 

.t, 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30 2019 

7. Related Party Transactions 

Hockey Canada exercises significant influence over the Hocl'.e anada Foundation and the 
Hockey Canada Foundation U.S. (the Foundations) by virtue ts sharing of premises and 
administrative support. The Foundations were establi as registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey Can nd other organizations in the 
country with objectives similar to Hockey Canada. 

Transactions with Hockey Canada Foundation and 
follows: 

Donations given O ~(Ju Hockey Can: ;::;" 
Grants received 

Hockey Canada Foundation 

y Canada Foundation U.S are as 

2019 2018 

S 935,221 $ 1,171 ,554 

2019 2018 

$ 709,727 $ 522,492 

These transactions are measure the exchange value, which approximates the arms 
length equivalent value . a ,...._\SI I/?' 201• 201a 

Amounts due to (from#r: tee! parties ate ~s follows: 
Hockey Canada Fou a on $ 113,777 S (1 ,203,457) 
Hockey Canada Fo ion U.S. 1,700 (3,680) 0 $ 115,477 s (1 ,207,137) 

The amounts due to (from) related parties are non-interest bearing, unsecured, and have 
no fixed terms of repayment. 

14 

000176 



--------- -

Hockey Canada 

0. 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2019 

8. Long-term Investments 

2019 

Bond funds 

~ q~ 
47,919,534 

Equities 45 ,533,800 
Government bonds 

Market value ~ () $93,453,334 

Long-term investments had an average rate of 

9. Tangible Capital Assets 

~ \ Accumulated 
~ - Cost Amortization 

2019 

Cost 

Computer equipment 535, 645 $ 3, 137,299 · S 3,525,453 
Leasehold improvements 893,207 554,400 1,893,207 
Office equipment ,481 , 738 1,438,256 1,470,767 
Software 123~57 1 
Training/medical equip s6J,6e1 558,171 563,687 

$ 7,597,848 $ 5,688,126 s 7,453,114 

Net book value $ 1,909,722 

2018 

s 41,904,990 
45,013,113 

206 195 

s 87,124,298 

2018 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

s 2,586,812 
471 ,127 

1,469,486 

542,006 

s 5,069,431 

S 2,383,683 

Software wit carrying value of $123,571 is not ready for use at year end. No 
amortization h s been recorded as the asset is not ready for use. 

During the year, the organization recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
$653,204 (2018 - $786,682). 

15 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30 2019 

1 O. Accounts Payable and Accrued Llabtlitles 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include Snit (2018,,663) payable to the IIHF 
denominated in Swiss Francs converted to $nil (2018 - ,212) Canadian. Accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities also include $1,020,450 d inated in U.S. dollars and 
$182,388 denominated in Euros converted to $1, , 9 and $269,424 Canadian 
respectively. 

11. Deferred Contributions, Operation$ 

12. 

Deferred contributions, operations relate to recr,,fp}ed operating funding received in the 
current period that is related to expenses that ~ incurred in the subsequent period. 

Changes in the deferred contributions 
follows: 

reported in the Operating Fund are as 

Balance, beginning of the year 
Contributions received \ 

-...: 

Recognized t o revenue /4 w 
Balance, end of tt,e year a 18::,.. <fif) 
lnterfund Transfer, () 

During the yea~ t Board of Directors authorized a 
$2,651, 180) fro t Equity Fund to the Pillars Fund. 

During the ye , the Board of Directors authorized a 
$4,244,067) from the Pillars Funds to the Operating Fund. 

f?. 2019 2018 

$ 2,891,851 s 827,766 
206,936 2,891,851 

3,098,787 3,719,617 
(2,891,851) (827,766) 

$ 206,936 s 21891 1851 

transfer of $1,062,480 (2018 -

transfer of $3,225,688 (2018 -

13. Funding 

The general operating grants received from government funding agencies are recorded in 
the fiscal year to which they apply. Total funding received during the fiscal year was 
$4,147,137 received from the Government of Canada, $2,250,000 from the Province of 
Alberta, $125,000 from the City of Edmonton and $125,000 from Tourism Edmonton (2018 -
$6, 740,850). 

16 
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·Hockey Canada 

<, 
CA N ADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2019 

14. Non-Monetary Transactions 

Marketing revenue includes value in kind of S1,848,2TT'IJ;8 - S1 ,385,660) including 
products and contributed services in exchange for sponsor rights. International events 
hosting includes complimentary ticket sales of $1,904,478 uding tickets in exchange for 
event hosting services. These transactions have been sured at the fair value of the 
contributed products and services. 

15. Commitments 

16. 

The organization has entered into a contract 
fees. The contract expires during the 2030/203 

the IIHF committing to event hosting 

The organization Ila entered into a s tw e licensing agreement, office equipment 
agreement and an fT management and p rt services agreement. The contracts expire 
between February 2020 and October 202 

The organization has entered into f ur rental agreements committing to incur the rental 
and operating costs relating to t organization's rented premises expiring between 
December 2021 and October 2031. 

The expected outflow of funds latlng to the above commitments for the next five years 
are as follows: 

~ 
2020 () s 2,875,643 
2021 

t 
3,729,148 

2022 2,568,323 
2 2,523,643 
2 7,934,645 

() 
s 19,631,402 

Comparative Information 

The comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year's 
presentation. 

17 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30 2019 

17. Financial Instrument Risks 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrume ·ll cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an obtigat~ ""' f inancial instruments which 
potentially subject the organization to concentrations'-of credi t risk consist of cash, 
accounts receivable, and investments. The orga~iz n has deposited the cash and 
investments with a reputable financial institutron, f which management believes the 
risk of loss to be remote. The credit 1isk on ace receivable arises from reputable 
corporate partners and organizations in a similar n , - or-profit sector. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the orga za on encounters difficulty in meeting its 
obligations associated with financial liab· t i . Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a 
result of operational liquidity requiremen e organization will not have sufficient funds 
to settle a transaction on the due date; will be forced to sell financial assets at a value, 
which is less than what they are wo h; or may be unable to sett(e or recover a financial 
asset. Liquidity risk arises from accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and 
commitments. Due to the organizatio current working capital, management believes the 
risk of loss to be remote. 

Market Risk 

Market risk js the risk tha~ t fa value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of chan s n market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: 
currency risk, interest r sk and other price risk. The organization is exposed to all 
three risks. 
The organization's ris agement st rategies are described below. 

Currency Risk v 

Foreign curren~· is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument wil uate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The organization's 
financial instru nts that are exposed to this risk include cash, accounts receivable and 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The organization considers this risk to be 
acceptable and therefore does not use derivatives to hedge its foreign exchange rate 
risks. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The organization is 
exposed to interest rate risk arising from the possibility that changes in interest rates will 
affect the value of its equities and bonds within its investment portfolio. 

18 
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Hockey Canada 

0. 
CANADA 

Schedule of Sport Canada Funded Revenue and Expenses 
(Unaudited) 

For the ear ended June 30 

Ma;::: Athlete, <f ,}0 q~ J 
Ex~:tcatloo costs ~ ~ ,(j 

Governance rr ,~ (j 
Staff salaries {Y 
Coaching salaries and professional developme~t 
National team programs 
Operations and programming 

IP.~ 
Non-core ~ p _'\ 
Official languages I/ ~, 

.A\ 
Deficien alnstream athletes 

Athletes with a Disability 

::::: J ~bw 
Core (j W 
Administration costs {Y 
Governance i 
Staff salaries 
Coaching salarie an rofessiona\ development 
National team ms 
Operations and ramming 

Non-core 
Official languages 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses for athletes with a disability 

s 

2019 

956,126 

3,971,053 
670,886 

10, 121,561 
807,172 

8,037,579 
10,226,286 

33,834,537 

231 ,135 

34,065,672 

$ 33 109 546 

s 874,974 

209,003 
35,310 

139,600 
148,951 
930,292 

60,334 

1,523,490 

12, 165 

1,535,655 

s (660,681) 
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Hockey Canada 

-t# 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2019 

17. Financial Instrument Risks (continued) 

Other Price Risk 

Other price risk is the uncertainty associated with the ation of assets arising from 
changes in equity markets. The organization is expo~<Cto this risk through its equity 
holdings within its investment portfolio. Bond funds ho1ttla diversified mix Canadian and 
U.S. high yield and pooled corporate bonds with an a ge duration of 5-10 years. Equity 
funds consist of a diversified portfolio of large Canadian, U.S. and International 
equities. 

The organization's exposure to the above risks i 
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For the yo,or ended June JO, 2019 

Hockey Canada 

~ D~II ~ If,; Sche le 1 • Activity for the Pillars Fund 

(F;;f_. 
fnternatk>Ml EY.,,t 

Ho<t1na Support Technoh>IY 
G<-U.f....S facffltlH fund Fund fund Totol 

fund b4ilance, bqinnfn1 of the yew- 16,116,131 l , 1◄-,1◄t 757,0,45 f,,6tJ, 5'◄ 67,176, 597 

U tc11 of r~ un over e.,:pcinchturn 

'"''"" ~., l ,02hCM. 206,lll 1,5n, 167 12,085,6]5 -.599 15,111,495 

ln<«•fund .,.,,.,.,. (Holt Ill (1, 194,2]6) (7,0 25) ,.on ,..o (1,8!2,995) 629,96] (2, 163, 208) 

F""dbli.r.ce , ...Sol •~ - , ,.20,04 3,Hl,OU 25, l 0] ,926 $' 11,009,685 10,770,156 11,094,114 
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24(1) 

To the Members of Hockey Canada 

Opinion 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the financial statements of Hockey Ca (the organization), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at June 30, 2020, and thep ent of changes in fund balances, 
operations, and cash flows for the year then ende , nd notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant account ng polici 

In our opinion, the accompanying financ al sta nts present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the organizat ion as a Ju 30, 2020, and its results of operations and 
its cash flows for the year then ended In a or nee with Canadian accounting standards for 
not-for-profit organi~ations. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audi t in accordance ·th Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Our responsibilities under those standards re furthe r described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Sta if nts section of our report. We are independent of the 
organization in accordance with the thical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Canada, ,a!lQ we have f1,Milled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requit}eme7lfsJ e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to pr • · e a basis for -0ur opinion. 

Responsibillties of Manage and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements · 

Management is responsi e for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordanc ith Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, 
and for such internal rol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statem ts hat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the inancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
organization's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's financ ial 
reporting process. 

000185 2 
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24(1) 

Auditor's Responstbtllties for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i f, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepti · throughout the audit. We 
also: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstat~ n of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform a-U'dil procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficien~ appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materl ssta ement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as d may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentatiqns, or override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal cont r elevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate i circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effective ss f the organization's internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of ac ing policies used and t he reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disc osures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriatenes of management's use of t he going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the au ~, evidence obt ained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or coXditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
organizat ion's ability to ,e~n nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are r uired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
rela~ed disclo~u~es in the c~al statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. O~r c s1ons are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's rt. Howeyer, future events or conditions may cause the 
organization to cease ontinue ,as a going concern. 

Evaluate the ove~ resentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the d ' c sures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying tran ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate w. 
planned scope and 
deficiencies in int 

ose charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
g of the audtt and significant audit findings, including any significant 

control that we identify during our audit. 

24(1) 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Waterloo, Ontario 
24(1) 

000186 
3 

24(1) 



June 30 

Assets 

Cur rent 
Cash (Note 2) 
Short-term Investments (Note 3} 
Al:counts receivable (Hole ◄) 
Receivable from (payable to) funds (Note 5) 
Hockey Resource Centr~ inventories (Note 6) 
Pre pa Id eitpenses 
Due from related panles (Note 7) 

Lor11•term Investments ftlot e 8) 
nnglble a pttal usets (Note 9 ) 

Lfal>Hltles and rund Balances 

Currant 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 10) 
Def erred contributi011s, operations (Not e 11) 
Deferred re,,enue , International event hosting (Note 12) 
Due to related parties (Note 71 

Other llabllltles and provisions 

Fund balances 
Internally restricted 
unrestrkled 

Oo beha11 of t he soa,d: 

19(1) and 24(1) 

The accompanyin!l not e~ are an 

$ 

()' 
\ 

Operating Health 
Fund Be nefit Trust 

6 ,704,659 s 211 ,037 s 
)00,000 

l ,808,88l 117,611 
()5, (◄ ,◄53) 

1,000,3 
206,6 73 

324,268 

7,008, 3◄8 

s 7 332 ,616 

4,399,903 $ 968,508 $ 
4 , 339, 591 

a ,739,494 968, SOS 

8,739,494 968,S0S 

1,601,188 6,36◄,'108 
13,47S,6fl 

15,076,800 6,36◄, 108 

23 1116 294 $ 7 332 6 16 s 

On be~na.iement: 

Hockey Canada 

0 
CA NAD A 

Balance Sheet 

2 0 20 2019 
Nationa l 

Equity Fund Pillars Tot al Total 

2,848,.564 $ 10,410,826 s 20,175,086 s 10,693,986 
4,500,000 4,800,000 9,844,563 

922,183 119,795, J ,968,471 3,776,018 
190, 191 (150,698) 

1,000,355 1,025,265 
7,205 139,271 353,164 403,321 

711,299 

3 ,968,143 1'5-,019, 19'5- 31,008,375 25,7◄3, 153 

8 ,154,199 74,783,367 100,◄6◄,251 93,◄53, 33◄ 
1,601, 18& 1,909,722 

12 122 342 s 89 802 562 s UJ 073 Bf◄ s 121 101, 209 

u-
26,9311 $ 22◄,6110 s 5,620,029 s 7,096,543 

◄ ,339,591 206,936 
T2,H9, l l 1 12,749,231 

tl!i,~77 

26,938 12,973,9 11 22,708, 851 7, •118,956 
A,470,078 4 ,470,078 ~.636,269 

4,497,016 H ,971,9 11 27, 113,929 12,055,225 

7,625,326 76,828,651 '92,41 9,273 97,488,292 
13, 47~·,612 11,562,692 

7,625,326 76,828,651 10'5-,89◄,885 109,050,984 

12 122 342 $ 89 1102 562 s tll 073 111 4 s 121 106,209 

----
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Forthe __ e_a"-r ~en:.:!d!!.!e!!!d~J!_!!u!!!ne~ll.Q.O ______ _ 

Fund balances . ' beginning of t'" ,,,e year 

Excess ,(deftctl!flc for the year YI or ,evenut-over e xpenditures 

lnterfund t r;msfe rs (Note 13) 

Fund balanc es, end of tne , year 

The accom . panymg notes a re an i e financial stat ements. part of thes . 

$ $ 

, 106) 

,308 

1,912,49'2 

s 15,076,800 s 

Hockey Canada 

Statement of Ch ~ anges in F CANADA ~-~~=-----~ und Balances 2019 

National 

2020 

E ul Fund 
PIiiars 

Schedule 1 Total Total 

6,007,904 $ 8 ,475,782 $ 81 ,094,&84 $ 109,050,984 s 90,974,689 

356,204 

6,364,108 ;
--~1,4:9~a~,,;8 =8~-~~~~L _ _g, 1 5. (4,702,985) 

9,974,570 {J, 
1

56,099) ?6, 391,899 -----'--____;
1
!..!:
8

'.!..!,0~7~6,~29~5i 

(2,349,244) 105,894,885 
436,752 

109,050,984 

6,364, 108 s 



Hockey Canada 

-t., 
CANADA 

Statement of Operations 
For the :r'.ear ended June 30 W20 2019 

Operatilli Health Benefit National 
Fund Trust Eguit:r'. Fund Pillars Total Total 

Revenue 
Funding (Notes 7 and 14) $ 6,990,416 $ $ $ $ 6,990,416 s 7,423,209 
Marketing (Note 15) 19,512,956 19,512,956 20,760,113 
Development (Note 7) 2,111,316 2,111 ,316 2,661,122 
Nat ional events and camps (Note 14) 800,465 800,46'5 2,355,598 
High performance (Note 7) 540,6 540,659 2,7~,202 
lntetnational event hosting (Note 14 and 15) 1,934,431 1,93-4,431 36,417,937 
Investment and interest income 801,252 1,594,717 9,423, 167 11,819,136 4,308,459 
Administration 1,453,748 918,918 
Member services 2,819,946 3,100,981 
Grow the game 1,865,486 1,645,751 
Insurance premiums 5,883,039 9,314,053 15,197,092 15,493;891 

94,992 6,684,291 10,908,770 11,357,598 65,045,651 97,885,181 

Expenditure,; 
Fundini p 522,001 522,001 673,793 
Marketing 2,113,380 2,113,380 2,121,355 
Development (Note 7) 

() 
1,629,233 325,743 1,954,976 3,311,078 

National events and c.amps 2,073,821 2,073,821 3,935,286 
High performance (Note 7) 8,876,28-4 8,876,.284 11,,649,841 
International event hosting 2,950 ,562 2,950,562 23,838,044 
Administration 16, 1:60,304 589,383 1,160,629 3,602,832 21,513,148 Hl,991,~ 
Custodial fees 35,963 252,163 288, 12,6 274,395 
Member services 

\ 
2,78-4,406 r 2,784,-406 3,716,294 

Grow the same 2, 104,625 2,. 104,625 1,303,949 
.Member enga!lement 131 ,128 131,128 96,197 
Insurance premiums 3,616,549 6,018,337 9,(,j~,886 9,697,460 
(Rever~l of) Insurance claims 1,400,389 (15,240) 1, 385, 14~ 1,500,749 

''"'" ,,.,,,~"'" ,...,,.., ,~, .,,.,,nm,,..J. ,.., 
36,395,182 5,606,321 7,525,432 6,805,557 56,332,-492 81,309,787 .. ,,. ... ,~,.- a (300,190) 1,077,970 3,383,338 4,552,041 8,713, i.59 16,575,394 

Other Item 
Unrealized (loss) on market value of inves (7,916) (721,766) (1 ,884,550) (9,255,026) (11,869,258) 1,500,901 

ExcMs deficienc of revenue over e n ures for the ear s 308 106 356204 $ 1 498 788 s 4 702 985 s 3 156099 18 076 295 

The accompanying notes are an i 4w 6 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended June 30 2020 2019 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year , (3, 156,099) S 18,076,295 

Items not involving cash 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Unrealized (loss) on market value of investments 

Q() 500, 545 0 11,869,258 

~ 9,213,704 

653,204 
(1,500,901) 

Changes in non-cash working capital balances_ 
Accounts receivable 

g 
Hockey Resource Centre inventories 0 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ~ 
Deferred contributions, operations 
Deferred revenue, international event hosting 

o~., ::.,:;•~ \ 

// ,\ ~ 

Cash flows from Investing activities ~ 
Purchase of tangible capi tal asse 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds on disposal of l nvest 
Advances from related partie ~ 

Repaymeot, lo ,elated g {f;) ,Q; 
Increase (decrease) i~~during the year 

Cash, beginning oft~ 

Cash1 end of the year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

$ 

(192,453) 
24,910 
50, f57 

(1 ,476,514) 
4,132,655 

12,749,231 
j166, 191) 

t s, 121.795 

24,335,499 

(192,011) 
(23,680,175) 

9,844,563 

(826,776) 

(14,854,399) 

9,481 , 100 

10,693,986 

20
1
11s

1
oe6 s 

17,228,598 

(752,194) 
(194,307) 

1,960,874 
2,295,992 

(2,684,915) 
(13,268,137) 

(489,414) 

(13,132,101) 

4,096,497 

(179,243) 
(14,6n,698) 

7,500,000 
1,322,614 

(6,029,327) 

(1,932,830) 

12,626,816 

10,693,986 

7 
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Hockey Canada 

~ 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations Hockey Canada (the "organi n") is a Canadian Amateur 

Basis of Accounting 

Fund Accounting 

Athletic Association incorpo without share capital under 
the laws of Canada. Th aniz.ation carries on operations 
for the express purpose f improving and enhancing the 
growth and developme hockey in Canada. 

The financial statemeh 
accounting stand 
(ASNPO). 

have been prepared using Canadian 
for not-for-profit organizations 

follows t he restricted fund method of The organiz 
accounting/ 

The OperJ~ Fund accounts for the costs of programs, 
administrative and other operating expenditures of the 
organi ation funded by fees, ft.mding agencies, sponsorships 
and ot r general revenue. 

(Fi(i 
~J) « 
~ ah Health Benefit Trust Fund was established in 1988 to 
~./"" pr ide supplementary medical and dental coverage during 
~ tioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses is 

e ewed regulai::ly by the organization to ensure financial 
sk is minimized. 

he National Equity Fund balance has been accumulated as a 

g precaut ion a_ftafnst judgments that may be made against the 
organization as a result of current or future claims. The 
organfzation is currently involved in defending legal actions 

() 

resulting from accidents and injuries involved in sanctioned 
hockey activities. A provision has been made for all 
settlements, deductibles and professional fees related to 
these actions. 

8 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fund Accounting 
(continued) The Pillars are internally re · ted funds which include The 

Growth Fund, Faciliti es nd, Branch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabili;za ·o Fund, the International Event 
Hosting Support Fund he Technology Fund. These funds 
are to be used as foll 

Growth Fund · be used, as determined by the Board 
{ of O:rectors, o he development of hockey in Canada. 

~ Facili~~-e d is to be used to support current office 
~ ~ struct s planning and to review other initiatives 

(F ~ regar cilities across the count ry. 

~ Branch Support Fund is to be used to ensure the 
o anization can support Branches for initiatives that 

~ r:v ~-ational in scope, but require delivery at the Branch 

<ffi ~ Insurance Rate Stabilization Fund is to be used to ensure 
~ "'~ future insuranc{! rate increases are buffered. 

/1 International Event Hosting Support Fund is to be used 
to support the organization's hosting of international 

g 
Inventories () 

events. 

Technology Fund is to be used to fund future 
technologies that the organization will utilize. 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is generally determined on the first -in, first-out 
basis. 

9 
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Hockey Canada 

<I 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Tangible Capital Assets Tangible capital assets areJ]t at cost less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization d on the estimated useful 
life of the asset iS- calculal e follows: 

Computer equipment~ ~ 3 year straight line basis 
Leasehold i mprovemen - straight-line over the term of 

the lease 
Office equipment - S year straight line basis 
Software 1 year straight line basis 
Training/medical S year straight li(le basis 

Amortizatio 
acquisition n 
disposal. 

orded in the year following the year of 
no amortization is taken in the year of 

When~angible capital asset no longer has any long-term 
servic tential to the organization, the excess of its net 
carryin amount over any residual value is recognized as an 
expense in the statement of operations. 

Revenue Rt!cognition Re ricted contributions related to general operations are 
nized as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year in :'\.. )) 4 ch the related expenses are incurred. All other restricted 

,',~ tf1 ontributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate 
V restricted fund when received. 

g Unrestricted contributions and sponsorship (marketing) 
revenue are recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in 
the year received or receivable if the amount to be received 

() 

can be reasonably measured and collection is reasonably 
assured. In certain instances, the organization receives funds 
from the governments and other supporters to offset specific 
expenses. When these funds are received prior to incurring 
the related expenses, they are shown as deferred 
contributions. 

Event revenue is recognized as revenue when performance 
has been achieved if the amount received can be reasonably 
measured and collection is reasonably assured. 

10 
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Hockey Canada 

0. 
C A NAD A 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Revenue Recognition 
(continued) High performance, Member ·ces and insurance premium 

revenues are recognized iJ)...!m year received or receivable if 
the amount can be reasORa-oly measured and collection is 
reasonably assured. 

ognized as revenue in the year in 
earned and realized. These amounts 

e urable and collection is reasonably 

lnve~tment revenue 
which- the income 
are reasonably 
assured. 

Contributed Materials & 
Services Volunteers co ribute many hours per year to assist the 

lu organizati carrying out its service delivery activities. 
~ Because of the difficulty of determining their fair value, 

contn~ted services are not re~ognized in the financial 
// state ts. Contributed materials and services are not i recogni in the financial statements unless they would 

~ ) ~ m ket value can be ascertained. 
~ ~ normally be purchased by the organization and their fair 

Income Taxes j~ organization claims an exemption for income tax 
~ urposes as: -a Registered Canadian Amateur Athletic 

1/ )J Association. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has 
~/ een made ln t t,ese financial statements. 

Foreign Currency (j 
Translation {Y Foreign currency accounts are translated into Canadian 

() 

dollars as follows: 

At the transaction date, each asset, liability, revenue and 
expense is translated into Canadian dollars by the use of the 
exchange rate in effect at that date. At the year end date, 
monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian 
dollars by using the exchange rate in effect at that date. The 
resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are included in 
income in the current period. 

11 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Use of Estimates 

() 

The preparation of financial~ements in accordance with 
ASNPO may require manag nt to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect ~ 'leported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date o('the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts o~· enues arid expenses during the 
reporting period. l re.suits could differ from 
management's best · ates as additional information 
becomes available · he future. Significant estimates were 
required in t he v on of other liabilities and reserves. 

12 
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Hockey Canada 

-ti 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

2. Cash 

The organization's bank accounts are held at two charteriks. 24(1) 
bank accounts earn interest at the lower of the Bank of C a Overnight Target rate less 
0.400% per annum. The Overnight Target rate at June@O..- 020 was 0.25% (2019 · 1. 75%). 
24(1) bank accounts earn inierest--lt a nominal rate of prime less 
1. 90% per annum. The prime rate at June 30, 20 as 2.45% (2019 · 3. 95%). Bank 
balances include $1 ,014,128 (2019 · $926,636) de ~ated in U.S. dollars converted to 
$1,385,780 (2019 · $1 ,211,947) Canadian. Cas d money market funds totaling 
$3,413,598 (2019 · $3,067,291) are held in an inv ent portfolio that is grouped with the 
organizations bank balance. 

,-... 

at a rate of bank prime and it is secu b a general security agreement . At June o, 
The organization has a $3, 200,000 overd~a mand facility with 24(T) 

2020, the organization had undrawn ere acity of $3,200,000. The organization has an 
available credit card limit of $3,200,00 th 24(1) · At June 30, 2020, 
the organization had undrawn credit card capacity of $3,200,000. The organization has an 
available credit card limit of $89~ 00 with 2,lf1") - . At June 30, 2020, the 
organization had undrawn credit car°'Japacity of $890,000 (2019 · S358,000). 

3. Short-term Investment s 

Short-term investme ts cons st i;iuaranteed investment certificates held at 24(l) 

24(f) and 24(1) _ ___., bearing interest at 1.00% and 1.87%, ma.turing 
July 2020 and Septemoe~ . ~ 

4. Accounts Receivabl a ~ ~ 
Accounts receiv "ncludes $51 ,895 (2019 · S237,383) due from third parties denominated 
in Swiss Franc co erted to $74,476 (2019 · $319,637) Canadian. Accounts receivable 
includes $14, 1 019 • $142,984) due from third parties denominated in U.S. dollars 
converted to ,469 (2019 - $188,754) Canadian. Accounts receivable includes $221,433 
(2019 • $194,447) in government remittances. 

5. Receivable From Funds / Payable to Funds 

The interfund balances are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

6. Hockey Resource Centre Inventories 

Total Hockey Resource Centre inventory expensed during the year was S752,413 (2019 -
$1,048,334). 

13 
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Hockey Canada 

.t, 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

7. Related Party Transactions 

Hockey Canada exercises significant influence over the Hoi Canada Foundation and the 
Hockey Canada Foundation U.S. (the Foundations) by virt f its sharing of premises and 
administrative support. The Foundations were es~'! ed as registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey Can~ and other organizations in the 
country with objectives similar to Hockey Canada. () 

i~~~~~tions with Hockey Co : tion g key Canada Fo::::tion U.S ac:
0

~: 

Donations given (/ 
Hockey Canada Foundation ' $ 398,449 $ 935,221 

Grants receiv4:: ~~ \ 

2020 2019 

Hockey Canada Foundation S 1,068,047 S 709,727 

These t ransactions are maas J t the exchange value, which approximates the arms 
length equivalent value. () ~v ( 

re '" 2020 2019 

Amounts due to (fro .A)lated parties are> as follows: 
Hockey Canada Fo'Ukfa~ion S (715,321) S 113,777 
Hockey Canad ndation U.S. 4,022 1,700 

$ (711,299) $ 115,477 

The amounts due to (from) related parties are non-interest bearing, unsecured, and have 
no fixed terms of repayment. 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

8. Long-term Investments 

t!!!. 2020 2019 

Bond funds $ 47,919,534 ll<::::J $44, 596,841 
Equities SS-18671410 4515331800 

Market value 
() 

$100,464,251 s 9314531334 

Long-term investments had an average rate of (RL__ 

9. Tangible Capital Assets 
oY 
0 

0~ \ 
Z020 2019 

Accumulated Accumulated ~ -~ ~ Cost Amortization Cost Amortization 

Computer equipment 535,645 $ 3,425,823 $ 3,535,645 s 3,137,299 
Leasehold improvements 979,923 637,674 1,893,207 554,400 
Office equipment ,481 ,738 1.446,953 1,481,738 1,438,256 
Software 228,868 114,536 123,571 
Training/medical equip 563,687 563,687 563,687 558,171 

s 7,789,861 $ 6,188,673 s 7,597,848 s 5,688,126 

Net book value $ 1,601 ,188 s 1,909,722 

During the y recognized amortization expense in the amount of 
$500,545 (201 

10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities also include $409,020 (2019 • $1,020,450) 
denominated in U.S. dollars and $nil (2019 · $182,388) denominated in Euros converted to 
$555,163 (2019 · $1,335,029) and $nil (2019 • $269,424) Canadian respectively. 
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Hockey Canada 

<I 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

11 . Deferred Contributions, Operations 

Deferred contributions, operations relate to restricted o ~ ng funding received in the 
current period that is related to expenses that will be i~ u~;n the subsequent period. 

't:::::; 
Changes in the deferred contributions balance d in the Operating Fund are as 
follows: 

Balance, beginning of the year )fj P 
Cont,ibutions ,cce ived J O t. 's 

Recognized to revenue ~ 

Balance, end of the year > \\ ..- ~ 

2020 2019 

$ 206,936 S 2,891 ,851 
4,339,591 206,936 

4,546,527 
(206,936) 

$ 4,339,591 $ 

3,098,787 
(2,891,851) 

206,936 

12. Deterred Contributions, lnte onal Event .Hosting 

Deferred contributions, ~n r ational Event Hosting relate to t icket revenue for the 2021 
World Junior Champions ournament and revenue related to the 2021 Women's World 
Championship tourname tailing $'12,352,975 and $396,256 respectively. Subsequent to 
June 30, 2020 , the ~~orld Junior Championship ticket revenue was deferred until the 
2022 World Junior C~ ionship as the 2021 Championship will not include a live audience. 

Balance, begi 
Contributions 

Recognized to revenue 

Balance, end of the year 

2020 2019 

s - s 
12 749 231 

12,749,231 

$12,749,231 $ 

16 

000199 



Hockey Canada 

-ti 
CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

13. lnterfund Transfers 

During the year, the Board of Directors authorized a sfer of $2,349,244 (2019 -
$1,062,480) from National Equity Fund to the Pillars Fu~ 

During the year, the Board of Directors authori d a transfer of $1,912,492 (2019 -
$3,225,688) from the Pillars Funds to the Oper Fund consisting of the following 
transfers: 

POE Enhancement S 
Realized Tech Fund Reserves Transfer 
National Womens Team Support 
Member Engagement Support 

14. Funding 

1,912,492 

The general operating grants~ived from government funding agencies are recorded in 
the fiscal year to which th ply. Total fur~ding received during the fiscal year was 
$4,945,523 received from th G ernment of Canada (2019 · $4,147,137), $250,000 from 
the Government of Nov, ia, $150,000 ttom the City of Edmonton (2019 - $125,000), 
$70,000 from Tourism E ton (2019 · $12S,OO0), $250,000 from the City of Red Deer, 
and $240,000 from the C Halifax. 

15. Non-Monetary TranO.n, ~ / ~ 
Marketing rev~ ncludes value in kind of $1 ,360,328 (2019 - $1 ,848,277) including 
products and n buted services in exchange for sponsorship rights. International events 
hosting includ omplimentary ticket sales of $nil (2019 - $1 ,904,478) including t ickets in 
exchange for event hosting services. These transactions have been measured at the fair 
value of the contributed products and services. 
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CANADA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

16. Commitments 

The organization has entered into a contract with the II ommitting to event hosting 
fees. The contract expires during the 2030/2031 seasont><:) 

The organization has entered into a software Hee · g agreement, office equipment 
agreement and an IT management and support se agreement. The contracts expire 
between July 2020 and October 201.1. 

The organization has entered into four rental ~ ments committing to incur the rental 
and operating costs relating to the organiz@$n's rented premises e,spiring between 
December 2021 and October 2Q31 . 

The expected outflow of funds relating 
are as follows: 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

above commitments for the next five years 

$ 3,485,998 
2,581 ,052 
2,523,643 
7,934,645 
2,399,645 

$ 18,924,983 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

17. Financial Inst rument Risks 

Credit Risk I 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial 1nstr'1Pl~ will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an obligatlorr. Financial instruments which 
potentially subject the organization to concentr,· of credit risk consist of cash, 
accounts receivable, and investments. The orga z ion has deposited the cash and 
investments with a reputable financial institution, which management believes the 
risk of loss to be remote. The credit risk on acco receivable has increased as a result of 
COVlD-19. 

Liquidity Risk ) 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the or an· tion e ncounters difficulty in meeting its 
obligations associated with financial lia 1es. Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a 
result of operatiQnal liquidity requirements, the organization 'efill not have sufficient funds 
to settle a transaction on the due te; will be forced to sell financial assets at a value, 
which is less than what tt,ey are w h; or may be unable to settle or recover a financial 
asset. Liquidity risk arises from accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and 
commitments. Due to the org~ hi ation·s current working capital, management believes the 
risk of loss to be remote. 

Market Risk rR) 
Market risk ·is the risk tha 
fluctuate because of ch 
currency risk, interes 
three risks. 

fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: 

te risk and other price risk. The organization is exposed to all 

management strategies are described below. 

Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The organization's 
financial instruments that are exposed to this risk include cash, accounts receivable, 
portfolio investments and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The organization 
considers this risk to be acceptable and therefore does not use derivatives to hedge its 
foreign exchange rate risks. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2020 

17. Financial Instrument Risks (continued) 

I Interest Rate Risk 
II, 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or ture <.:ash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in mainterest rates. The organization is 
exposed to interest rate risk arising from the possi i that changes in interest rates will 
affect the value of its equities and bonds within its · stment portfolio. 

Other Price Risk /,,.--..;: ~ r(} 
Other price risk is the uncertainty associ 

I 
with the valuation of assets arising from 

changes in equity markets which has incr se as a result of COVID-19. The organization is 
exposed to this risk through its equity h di s within its investment portfolio. Bond funds 
hold a diversified mix Canadian and U. . gh yield and pooled corporate bonds with an 
average duration of 5-10 years. Equity funds consist of a diversified portfolio of large cap 
Canadian, U.S, and International eq "ties. 

Apart from the specific comments e related to COVID-19, these risks have not changed 
from the prior year. 

18. Uncertainty Related to COV • 

Subsequent to year-end, impact of COVID-19 on the Canadian economy increased 
significantty. The glob ndemic; has disrupted economic activities and increased 
restrictions on the l o number of individuals able to participate and attend sporting 
events. Any potentia cellation or capacity restrictions of sporting events could lead to 
decreased ticket a ponsorship revenues. Although the disruption from the virus is 
expected to be t orary, given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the duration 
of business dis ti and the related financial impact cannot be reasonable estimated at 
this time. H ey anada's ability to continue to service obligations and expenses as they 
come due is d dent on the continued ability to generate revenues and cash flows. 
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For the .,.ear ended J . . une 30, 2020 

Fund balance • bevlnnlna or t he year s 

Excess of ,_ues for the year ove< expenditures 

Inter-fund I ransfers (Note 13) 

Fund bal1n . c~ • end of the year s 

{718, 106) 

13
, 200.~1iJ6~=~~f;~=L----'l!1!s4~· .~s o~

4
~, 

1'1,727,-403 

aJ» 
g 

ea ,nt~ral panymg notes . . The accom . (j these financial state ments. part of . 

Schedule 1 

s 

(-451 ,764) 

2,349, 24~ 

21.00, .•06 

Hockey Canada 

0. 
C:ANA 

- Activity for the Pillars Fu~d 

s 

(1 ,07.l,%~9) 

11 . 28S,32◄) 

8,651, 101 

s 

s 

10,770, 156 

(375, 479) 

(462,876) 

9 ,931,801 

s 

$ 

Tota.I 

81 ,094,884 

(◄, 702,985) 

◄36,752 

76,828,651 
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Schedule of Sport Canada Funded Revenue and Expenses 
(Unaudited) 

Deficien ainstream athletes 

···~:::,:·. DS•blllty a ~ lbw 
Expenses O w~ 

~~:inistration costs {Y A 

Governance ~ E/ 
Staff salaries 
Coaching salari a professional development 
National team ams 
Operations and programming 

Non-core 
Official languages 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses for athletes with a disability 

s 

2020 

993,866 

2,611,320 
349,861 

10,335,973 
508,244 

6,023,831 
8, 354,830 

28,184,059 

238,417 

28,422,476 

$ 27 428 610 

s 931 ,374 

137,438 
18,414 

146,580 
138,693 
737,037 

(460) 

1,177,702 

12,548 

1,190,250 

s (258,876) 
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24(1) 
Canada LLP 
Bauer Buildings 
Caroline St S Suite 201 
trloo ON NZL OAS Canada 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Hockey Canada 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Hockey Ca 
the balance sheet as at June 30, 2021 , and the sta 
operations, and cash flows for the year then ende 
including a summary of significant accounting polici 

cl (the organization), which comprise 
nt of changes in fund balances, 

d notes to the financial statements, 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial stat s present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the organization as at 30, 2021 , and its results of operat ions and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in ac rd hce with Canadian accounting s tandards for 
not-for-profit organizations. 

Basis for Opinion 

I 

We conducted our audit in accordance "th Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Our responsibilities under thos~ standards re further described in the Auditor's Responsibifities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statemen section of our report. We are independent of the 
organization in accordance with t~e thical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Canada, an we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities i· n 
accordance with these requireme e believe tha the audit evidence we have obtaine fs" · 
sufficient and appropriate to pro e basis for our opihion. 

Responsibilities of Managem n and Those Charged with Governance for the F?i6ancial 
Statements ,.-i 
Management is respons1~b or the preparation and fair presentation of these; financial 
statements in accordanc · h Canadian atcot1nting standards for not-for-profit orgtnizations, 
and for such internal con as management determines is necessary to enable the _,preparation 
of financial stateme hat are free from material misstatement, whether due ' to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing th · ancial statements, management is responsible for 'assessing the 
organization's abih to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, rnatters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless m~~agement either 
intends to liquidate the organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's financial 
reporting process. 

000207 
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0. 
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Balance Sheet 

June 30 2021 2020 
Operating Health Nat ional 

Fund Benefit T rust Eguit:t Fund Pilla rs Total Total 

Assets 

Current 
Cast, (Note 2) s 4,831,498 $ 135,109 $ 858 ,5 18 s 19, 110,-1 .. 1 i 2◄,996, 172 $ 2.0, 175,086 
Short·term Investments 4,800,000 
Accounts r«civabte 1~01e l) ,., .. , 18'1, 459 Hl,773 261, 198 ),715,189 3,968,,471 
Recel\lable from (payable to) hmd5 (Note 4) ?,693, (407) (1130,355) (1,862,◄57) 
Hockey Rr=tJrce Centre inveritories (Note 5) 1,231 , 1, 231 ,0!1 1,000,355 
Prepaid e:qienses . 694 7,135 1,619,363 2,320,9-43 353, 164 
0ue from related parties (Note 6) 

~ 2 
172,662 711,299 

11 1,6M 319,761 208,0 71 19,188,551 32,436,0-47 31,008,375 

lq•lerm inv~tment, (Note 71 6,247, 29 .. 8,718,765 80 ,7 83,583 118,512, 953 100,46-4,151 
Tang,ble capflal assets iNote 81 921 ,!559 2,381,◄83 1,601,188 

s 6 567 055 a 926 836 100 ~93 693 _ .$ 153 330 ~Bl 1n on s14 

Liabilities and Fund B■lance1 

Current 

() Accountg D,lyable and accrued liabilities jNote 91 s 1 0,77◄,076 s 631,058 s 63,4&9 s 3,712,713 s 15,181, 336 s 5,610,029 
Deferred contributions, operations (1'4ole 101 l, 386, J96 2,386,396 4 ,339,591 
Deferred revenue, inlernatfona t event hosting (1'401e 11t 12,623, 106 12,623,106 11,749 ,231 

13,160,472 631,058 6l,◄8'1 16,335,819 30,190 ,831 U',7otl ,851 
Other 11abllltle$ ,~nd provi.tons 4,0111,71-4 4 ,018,714 -(,◄70,078 

\ 13, 160,471 631.058 4,082,20) H,,335,8 19 3"4,209,552 27,178,929 

Fund bal1nc.s 
Internally restricted 1,45 9,914 5,935.997 4,8o44,63l 64,557,874 96,798,428 94,332,193 
Ur11estricted 22,322,503 22,322,503 11,562,692 

23,782,◄27 5,9)5.997 ◄,8◄◄,633 M,557,87-4 119,120,931 105,894,885 

36 942 899 s 6 567 055 $' 8 926 836 $ 100 8 93 693 s 153 330 483 1n on 81◄ 

On h!!half of the Board· On ~al!ement: 

19(1) and 24(1) 

The accompanying notes are egrat part of these financial statements. 000208 4 



Fo r the ear ended J une 30 

Fund balances b • eginning of -h t e year 

Excess (defld for the ye:~cy) of revenue over expend"t • ures 

lnterfund tr.irnfers (Hole 12) 

Fund bahmc es' end of the year 

The accom . panymg notes are an ese financial 1 part of th • 

s $ 

s 23,782,427 $ 

statements. 

Hockey Canada 

Statement o ~ f Changes in F CANADA 

;:~--::-:------ und Balances 

National 
E u1 fund 

2021 

Pillars 

2020 

Schedule 1 Total Total 

6,364,108 s 7,6 25,326 $ 76,828,651 $ 105,894,885 s 109,050,984 

(428, i11) (1 ,281 ,905) 8,48_8,831 13,226,046 (3,156,099) 

5,935,997 6,343,421 85,317,482 119,120,931 105,894,885 

(l ,498,788) (759,608) 

5,935,997 s ◄,844,633 _$ 



Hockey Canada 

-ti: 
C AN A DA 

Statement of Operations 

For the :,:ear ended June 30 2021 2020 
Operating Health Benefit National Pillars Total Total 

Fund Trust Eguit~ Fund 

Revenue 
Funding (Notes 6 and 13) s 6,470,341 s s - s - s 6 ,470,341 $ 6,990,416 
Marketing (Note 14) 20,138,668 20,138,668 19,512,956 
Development (Note 6) 96,490 
National events and camps (Note 13) 1,417,732 1,4 17,732 800,465 
National teams (Note 6) ~-ii 2,000,861 554,286 
International event h05tin9 (Note 13 and 14) 17,088,438 17,088 ,438 1,934,431 
Investment and Interest Income 71 353,259 ◄92,683 4,112,0 87 5,669, 1.31 12,265,888 
Administration 34 _ 3◄9,395 246,774 
Member services ~,91 11,001,797 2,997,948 
Member engagement ,06 7 1,580 ,067 3,688,682 
Insurance premiums 2,28 9,928 3,896,421 6,186,349 15,197,092 

2,643,187 4,389,104 21 ,200,525 61,902,779 64,285,428 

E)(penditures g Funding 109,727 109,727 522,001 
Marketing 1,591li0\17 1,590,097 2,113,380 
Development (Note 6) 205,203 
National events and camps 

() 
1,424,726 1,◄2◄.726 2,073,821 

National teams {Note 61 6,816,,946 6,816,946 8,934,170 
International event hosting 17,460,580 17,460,580 2.950,562 
Administration 16,851 ,182 751,971 1,098, 173 3,634,256 22, 335,58◄ '22,127(016 
Member services l ,026,768 3,026,7,68 2',976,835 
Member engagement '1,394,493 1,394,◄93 3,409,463 
Insurance premlums 

\ 
2,573,057 S,825,957 8,399,014 <J,634,886 

Insurance claims (recovery) 4:88,4 16 (175,746) 312,670 1,385,148 

31,213,939 3,813,446 6,748,384 21 ,094,836 62,870,605 56,332,490 

Ei,;cess (deficiency) of revenut.- over e~penditures r 1he year 
before other ftem$ 2,456,024 (1, 170, 259) (2,359,280) 105,689 (967,8261 7,952,938 

Othl!< Items 
Unrea112ed ga1n (loss) on market value of 1,342,818 742,148 1,077,375 8,383, 142 11,545,483 (11 ,869,258) 
Govemmenc assistance (Note 151 2,648,389 2,648,389 760,221 

3,991 , 207 742,148 1,077,375 8,383,142 14,193,872 (11,109,0371 

s 6 447 231 s 428 111 s 1 281 905 s 8 488 831 s 13 226 046 s 3,156 099 

The accompanying notes are · 000210 
6 
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Hockey Canada 

<, 
CANADA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended June 30 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year 

Items not involving cash Q<::), 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Unreal ized (loss) on market value of investments a 

Changes in non-cash working capital balances g 
Accounts receivable 
Hockey Resource Centre inventories 
Prepaid expenses () 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred contributions, operations 
Deferred revenue, international event hostin 
Other liabilities and provisions 

cash, beginning of the 

cash end of the ea 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

2021 

13,226,046 S 

383,935 
(1 1,545,483) 

2,064,498 

253,282 
(230,726) 

(1,967,779) 
9,561 ,307 

(1 ,953,195) 
(126, 12~) 
(451 ,364) 

5,085,400 

7,149,898 

(1 ,164,229) 
(6,503,219) 
4,800,000 

538,637 

(2,328,811) 

4,821,087 

20,175,086 

$ 24 996 173 

2020 

(3,156,099) 

500,545 
11,869,258 

9,213,704 

(192,453) 
24,910 
so, 157 

(1,476,514) 
4,132,655 

12,749,231 
(166,191) 

15,121,795 

24,335,499 

(192,011) 
(23,680,175) 

9,844,563 
(826,776) 

(14,854,399) 

9,481 ,100 

10,693,986 

20 175 086 

7 

000211 



Hockey Canada 

0. 
CANA D A 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2021 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations Hockey Canada (the "'organil:") is a Canadian Amateur 

Basis of Accounting 

Fund Accounting 

Athletic Association incorpor without share capital under 
the laws of Canada. The or ization carries on operations 
for the express purpose/7~ improving and enhancing the 
growth and development .t) fockey in Canada. 

The fjnancial statem a ave been prepared using Canadian 
accounting standar for not-for-profit organizations 
(ASNPO). 

the restricted fund method of 

Fund accounts for the costs of programs, 
administ ra · and other operating expenditures of the 
organization funded by fees, funding agencies, sponsorships 
and o er general revenue. 

~ The He lth Benefit Trust Fund was established in 1988 to ~ ~ pr vide supplementary medical and dental coverage during VJ ~_/'""\: sa tioned hockey activities. The provision for expenses is 
~ · wed regularly by the organization to ensure financial 

ris is minimized. 

O The National Equity Fund balance has been accumulated as a 
~ precaut ion against judgments that may be made against the 

P orgjln,ization as a result of current or future claims. The 
organization is currently involved in defending legal actions 
resulting from accidents and injuries involved in sanctioned 

() 

hockey activities. A provision has been made for all 
settlements, deductibles and professional fees related to 
these actions. 

8 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2021 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fund Accounting 
(continued) The Pillars are internally res eel funds which include The 

Growth Fund, F-acilities Fu , Branch Support Fund, the 
Insurance Rate Stabiliza~ Fund, the International Event 
Hosting Support Fund an e Technology Fund. These funds 
are to be used as folio 

Growth Fundu.·s used, as determined by the Board 
of biredors, f , e development of hockey in Canada. 

Fa,cilities l:u is to be used to support current office 
structur i planning and to review other initiatives 
regardi f ilities across the country. 

or~nization can support Br~nches for initiatives that 
p ..:_ a national in scope, but require delivery at the Branch 
~ le l. 

~ a ~ /41nsurance Rate Stabilization Fund is to be used to ensure 'VJ ~ • future insurance rate increases are buffered. 

International Event Hosting Support Fund is to be used 

(j to support the organization's hosting of international 
~ events. 

{j Technology Fund is to be used to fund future 
(Y tet hnologies that the organization will utilize. 

Inventories () Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is generally determined on the first-in, first-out 
basis. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2021 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Tangible Capital Assets Tangible capital assets are,ta at cost less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization on the estimated useful 
life of the asset is calculate allows: 

Computer equipment Q(:::;,. 3 year straight line basis 
Leasehold improvemenn • straight-line over the term of 

l// the {ease 
Office equipment · 5 year straight line basis 
Software 1 year straight line basis 
Training/medical 5 year straight line basis 

When a tangi e capital asset no longer h~s any long-term 
service pot to the organizat ion, the excess of its net 

✓,;::::;> carrying a u over any residual value is recognized as an 
(( ~ expense in statement of operations. 

Revenue Rec6gnition Restri~ ed cont ributions related to general operations are 
recog ed as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year in -..;;::;,/ fL whkh e related expenses are incurred. All other restricted 

~ ~\::: contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate 
~ ~ (e ricted fund when received. 

~ stricted cont ributions and sponsorship (marketing) 
re nue are recbgnized as revenue of the Operating Fund in 

() 
he year received or receivable if the amount to be received 

can be reasonably measured and collection is reasonably 
assured. In certain instances, the organization receives funds 

g frol)l the governments and other supporters to offset specific 
expenses. When these funds are received prior to incurring 
the related expenses, they are shown as deferred 

() 

contributions. 

Event revenue is recognized as revenue when performance 
has been achieved if the amount received can be reasonably 
measured and collection is reasonably assured. 

10 
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CA N A DA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30 2021 

1. Summary of Signi ficant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Revenue Recognit ion 
(continued) 

Contributed Materials & 
Services u 
~m~ 

<< '\\ ~ 

lncom~ s ~[' () 

Foreign Currency (j 
Translation {Y 

() 

National teams, member s0 mls and insurance premium 
revenues are recognized in t~ ar received or receivable if 
the amount can be rea~ly measured and collection is 
reasonably assured. 

Investment revenue i ognized as revenue in the year in 
which the income w s rned and realized. These amounts 
ar.e reasonably rable and collection is reasonably 
assured. 

Volunteers on bute many hours per year to assist the 
organizatio i carrying out its service deliyery activities. 
Because o e difficulty of determining their fair value, 
contributed services are not recognized in the financial 
state"\~nts. Contributed materials and services are not 
recog~.~~ in the financial statements unless they would 
nprmalW be purchased by the organization and their fair 
m ket value can be ascertained. 

organizatiort claims an exemption for income tax 
u oses as a Registered Canadian Amateur Athletic 
sociation. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has 

een made in these financial statements. 

Foreign currency accounts are t ranslated into Canadian 
dollars as follows: 

At the t ransaction date, each asset, liability, revenue and 
expense is translated into Canadian dollars by the use of the 
exchange rate in effect at that date. At the year end date, 
monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian 
dollars by using the exchange rate in effect at that date. The 
resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are included in 
income in the current period. 

11 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30 2021 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial~ ments in accordance with 
ASNPO may require manag t to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the orted amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date ofQ{~ financial statements, and the 
reported amounts o~r >,cel'iues and expenses during the 
reporting period. I results could differ from 
management's best mates as additional information 

Financial Instruments 

becomes availab~e i t future. Significant estimates were 
requfred in the val · n of other liabilities and reserves. 

financial instr ts are recorded at fai r value when 
acquired or i l,· In subsequent periods} equities traded in 
an active rk and derivatives are reported at fair value, 
with any c n in fair value reported in income. In addition, 
all guaran investment certificates have been designated 
to be in the fair value category, with gains and losses 
repor! in operations. All other financial instruments are '<: report at cost or amortized co~t less impairment, if 

~ applica e. Financial assets are tested for impairment when 
~ cinges in circumstances indicate the asset could be 
~./"" i aired. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issue 
~ inancial instruments are expensed for those items 

.lfe1 easured at fai r value at each balance sheet date and 
~ fl..harged to the financial inst rument for those measured at 
~ ~ amortized cost. 
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2. Cash 

The organization's bank accounts are held at two chartered~ s. 24( 1) 
bank accounts earn interest at the tower of the Bank of cla Overnight Target rate or 
0.400% per annum. The Overnight Target rate at June 30, 21 was 0.25% (2020 · 0.25%). 
24(1 bank accounts earn inter~ a nominal rate of prime less 
1.90% per annum. The prime rate at June 30, i 02 as 2.45% (2020 • 2.45%). Bank 
balances include $235,042 (2020 · $1 ,014,128) den i ated In U.S. dollars converted to 
$390,512 (2020 · $1 ,385,780) Canadian. Cash and market funds totaling $1 ,846,997 
(2020 · $3,412,596) are held in an lnvestme rtfolio that is grouped with the 
organizations bank balance. () 

The organization has a $13,200,000 overdraf!;f and facility with 24(1) 
at a rate of bank prime and it i s secured }f(_cf eneral security agreement. This overdraft 
demand facility has been extended until, rc 31, 2022, when it will reve t.o $3,200,000. 
This overdraft demand facili ty is subjec o mitations based on the value ,0f investments 
held with 24(1) At J 30, 2021 , the organization had undrawn credit 
capacity of S 3,200,000. The organizat ion ha$ an avai lable credit card limit of $3,200,000 
with 24( 1) At Ju~ 30, 2021, the organization had undrawn credit card 
capacity of $2,995,000. The organi~ion has an available credit card limit of $890,000 
with 24(1) At June 30, 2021 , the organization had undrawn credit card 
capacity of $890,000 (2020 • $89 ,000). 

3. Accounts Receivable ) 

4. 

5. 

Accounts receivable Incl e 62,228 (2020 • $51,895) due from third parties denominated 
in Swiss Francs converte $83,539 (2020 • $74,476) Canadian dollars and $230,231 (2020 
• $14,984) due from th' arties denominated in U.S. dollars converted to $303,059 (2020 • 
$19,469) Canadian d a . 

Receivable Fro/F/)nds / Payable to Funds 

The interfund V.ces are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

Hockey Resource Centre Inventories 

Total Hockey Resource Centre inventory expensed during the year was $769,358 (2020 · 
$752,413). 
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6. Related Party Transactions 

Hockey Canada exercises significant influence over the H:llCanada Foundation and the 
Hockey Canada foundation U.S. (the foundations) by virt its sharing of premises and 
administrative support. The foundations were establ as registered charitable 
foundations to raise funds for the use of Hockey Ca~ and other organizations in the 
country with objectives similar to Hockey Canada. 

Transactions with Hockey Canada foundat ion and ey Canada foundation U.S are as 
follows: 

OonaUons g;ven e=j ~(Jg 
Hockey Canada ~ on ' 

\ 

s 602,211 S 

2021 2020 

Grants received 
Hockey Canada Foundatiol'.I 

2021 2020 

398,449 

s 271,064 $ 1,068,047 

These transactions are meas t the exchange value, which approximates the arms 

length eqlrivalent value. a ~ ) W ---
2
-
02

_
1 
____ 

2
-
02

-
0 

Amounts due from (t9f1Jlated pa1ties are as follows: 
Hockey Canada F~tion S 83,347 S 

Hockey Can() ~aUon U.S. $ ,:::::: S 

715,321 
(4,022) 

711 ,299 

The amounts due to (from) related parties are non-interest bearing, unsecured, and have 
no fixed terms of repayment. 
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7. Long-term Investments 

2021 2020 

Bond funds 46,055 s 44,596,841 
Equities <?(:y76,966,897 55,867,410 

Market value () $118,51 2,952 s 100,464,251 

Long-term investments had an average rate of r~ of 7.41% (2020 - 5.77%). 

8. Tangible Capital Assets 
A 

2021 2020 

~ ~~~ 
r( __ __.,.,_o_s_t_ A_m_o_r_ti_za_t_lo_n _____ Co_s_t _ Am_ o_r_ti_za_t_io:_._n 

Computer equipment 
Leasehold improvements 
Office equipment 
Software 
Training/me~ical e(luipme 

Net book value 

,535,645 s 
982,309 
481,738 

,390, 71 1 
563,687 

8,~54,090 s 
s 

3,531,585 s 
731 ,845 

1,455,649 
289,841 
563,687 

6,572,607 · s 
2,381,483 

During the ye , 
$383,935 (202 -

recognized amortization 

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

3,535,645 s 3,425,823 
1,979,923 637,674 
1,481 ,738 1,446,953 

228,868 114,536 
563,687 563,687 

7,789,861 s 6, 188,673 

s 1,601,188 

expense in the amount of 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $950,264 (2020 - $409,020) denominated in 
U.S. dollars converted to $1,177,947 (2020 · $555,163) Canadian dollars. 
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10. Deferred Contributions, Operations 

Deferred contributions, operations relate to restricted op~ ng funding received in the 
current period that is related to expenses that will be incu~ in the subsequent period. 

II, 
Changes in the deferred contributions balance rerjo in tt)e Operating Fund are as 
follows: () ~ 

~ 2021 2020 

Balan~e,?eginning_oftheyear ~<::::d} 0 $4,339,591 S 206,936 
Contnbut1onsrece1ved ~ f!:J' 1,146,040 4,339,591 

(/ Recognized as revenue 

Balance, end of the year 

11. Deferred Contributions, tntern ional Event Hosting 

5,485,631 
(3,099,235) 

4,546,527 
(206,936) 

$ 2,386,396 S 4,339,591 

Deferred contributions, lnte a nal Event Hosting relate to ticket revenue for the 2021 
World Junior Championshi urnament and revenue related to the 2021 Women's World 
Championship tourname ailing S1 2,352;975 and $396,256 respectively. Subsequent to 
June 30, 2020, the 2021 Id Junior Championship ticket revenue was deferred until the 
2022 World Junior Ch ·onship a the 2021 Championship did not include a live audience. 

Ticket refunds issued 

Balance, end of the year 

2021 2020 

$12,749,231 S 
1,250,000 12,749,231 

13,999,231 
(1,376,125) 

12,749,231 

$12,623,106 $ 12,749,231 
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12. lnterfund Transfers 

During the year, the Board of Directors authorized a 
$2,349,244) from National Equity Fund to the Pillars Funds. 

Q<:::, 

$1,498,788 (2020 -

During the year, the Board of Directors authoriz 
$1,912,492) from the Pillars Funds to the Oper 

t ransfer of $2,258,396 (2020 -
Fund consisting of the following 

transfers: 

POE Enhancement $ 
Realized Tech Fund Reserves Transfer 
National Womens Team Support 
Member Engagement Support 

2,258,396 

13. funding 

The general operating grants~ived from government funding agencies are recorded in 
the fiscal year to which they ply. Total funding received during the fiscal year was 
$5,653,641 received from th ernment of Canada (2020 - $4,945,520), $150,000 from 
the Government of NovatJia (2020 - $250,000), $225,000 from the City of Edmonton 
(2020 - $150,000), $305, rom Edmonton Economic Development Corporation (2020 -
$70,000), and $500,000 f ourism Calgary. 

14. Non·Moneta,y T<ang.n, J. '= 

Marketing rev~ncludes value in kind of $1,177,101 (2020 - $1 ,360,328) including 
products and nt uted services in exchange for sponsorship rights. These transactions 
have been me d at the fair value of the contributed products and services. 
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15. Government Assistance 

Due to the impact of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemi 
implemented a number of temporary financial aid progra 
this period. Q(::) 

The organization received government assistance 
Subsidy (CERS). Total assistance received was $197, 

e Government of Canada 
o assist organizations during 

Emergency Rent 

The organization received govem,:nent .assistan from the Canadian Emergency Wage 
Subsidy (CEWS). Total assistance received was , 0,971 (2020 - $760,221). 

J~ 

16. Commitments Cl 
The organization has entered into a contract with the IIHF committing to event hosting 
fees. The contract expires during th 2031/2032 season. 

The organization has entered into software licensing agreement, office equipment 
agreement and an IT n,anagem nt and support services agreement. The contracts expire 
October 2021 . 

The organization has enter four rental agreements committing to incur the rental 
and operati ng costs rela ·A to the organization's rented premises expiring between 
December 2021 and Octo r 031 . 

The expected outflow funds relating to the above commitments for the next five years 
are as follows: 

s 9,603,222 
4,019,923 
3,830,095 
9,365,095 
2,399,645 

s 29,217,980 
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17. Financial Instrument Risks 

Credit Risk ~ 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrlj,~t!l will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an ob\igat'l'Q!y Financial instruments which 
potentially subject the organization to concentra~i of credit risk consist of cash, 
accounts receivable, and investments. The organ· a on has deposited the cash and 
investments with a reputable financial institution, which management believes the 
risk of loss to be remote. The credit riskqn accou eivable has increased as a result of 
COVI0-19. () 

)-Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the or ion encounters di fficulty (n meeting its 
obligations associa~ed with financial lia Ii · s. Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a 
result of operational liqutdity requireme , the organization will not have sufficient funds 
to settle a transaction on the due date; will be forced to sell financial assets at a value, 
which is less than \<ihat they are w h; or may be unable to settle or recover a financial 
asset. Liquidity risk arises f rom accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and 
commitments. Due to the organjzatio ·s current working capital, management believes the 
risk of loss to be remote. ~ . 

Market Risk ~ ~ 

Market risk is t he risk thi t fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of cha in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: 
currency risk, interest ·sk and other price risk. The organization is exposed to all 
three risks. 

anagement strategies are described below. 

Currency Risk 

Foreign curre risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The organization's 
financial instruments that are exposed to this risk include cash, accounts receivable, 
portfolio investments and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The organization 
considers this risk to be acceptable and therefore does not use derivatives to hedge its 
foreign exchange rate risks. 
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17. Financial Instrument Risks (continued) 

Interest Rate Risk I!) 
Interest rate risk is t he risk that the fair value o/~~ure cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in mark -Jn'terest rates. The organization is 
exposed to interest rate risk arising from the possib. that changes in interest rates will 
affect the value of its equities and bonds within its · stment portfolio. 

Other Price Risk ) () 
Other price risk is the uncertainty associa~ ·th the valuation of assets arising from 
changes in equity markets which has incre~icas a result of COVI0-19, Th~ organization is 
exposed to this risk through its equity h~in within its investment portfolio. Bond funds 
hold a diversified mix Canadian and U. · h yie ld and pooled corporate bonds with an 
average duration of 5-10 years. Equity tis consist of a diversified portfolio of large cap 
Canadian, U.S. and tnternational equities. 

Apart from the specific comments a ve related to COVID·19, these risks have not changed 
from the prior year. 

18. Uncertainty Rela<ed to cov~ =, 

The global pandemic ha~i pted economic activities and increased restrictions on the 
total number of individ s ble to participate and attend sporting events. Any potential 
cancellation or capacity fictions Of sporting events could lead to decreased ticket and 
sponsorship revenue~. hough the d isruption from the virus is expected to be temporary, 
given the dynamic n e of these circumstances, the duration of business disruption and 
the related financia pact cannot be reasonable estimated at this time. 

19. Comparative (I.ts 
The comparative amounts presented in the financial statements have been reclassified to 
conform to the current year's presentation. 
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For the yc. r ended J une 30, 2020 

Fund balance • beginning of t he year 

Excess (dellcw,: ex ncy) ol r"" pend1tures for th enu~ over e year 

Inter-fund tr~ I s en (Note 12) 

Fund ib•lanco> , eoo of t he year 

_ __.:G,.r,owth Fund 

13,200, 136 

2,001, 525 

"·"'·'" t)' 

\ 

t])y 

The accompanyi '(jg - ,ntegrat part of ng note • re . . these financial statem ents. 

s 
(J~7. 144) 

15,285,708 

Schedule 1 

Hocke~da 

- Act· · u 1Vlty for th . CANADA e Plllars Fund 

Technology 
_ ..:..:..:;:..__~ Fund Total 

$ 3,651,102 $ 9,931 , 801 s 76,828,651 

1,356, 740 

-
-~- ~~~L _ _ J..1_._161 s ,4ss.s31 

(1,166,524) -:-....... __ ..J.(7'.'._:5~9~. 6>Q088)) 

10, 122,017 s 

4, 390,n◄ 

- 1,498 ,78 8 

(700, 339) 

s )2,&90,51!_ 

(724,941 ) 

s 1,225 ,n 2 $ 84,557,874 

WV 
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Schedule of Sport Canada Funded Revenue and Expenses 
(Unaudited) 

For the ear ended June 30 

1/') 

Deficienc of revenue over ex ense~ ainstream athletes 

Athletes with a Dlsabillty a ~~w 
't::"' rP (()) ~ 
Revenue 

Administration ~ost ~ ~ 
Governance <I' 
Staff salaries 
Coaching salarf a professional development 
National team rams 
Operations and programming 

Non-core 
Long term athlete development 
Official languages 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses for athletes with a disabfflty 

s 

2021 

2,959,950 

3,659,654 
94,216 

11 ,169,458 
908,710 

5,268,184 
1,788 ,854 

22,889,076 

421 ,706 
246,063 

23,556,845 

$ 20 596 895 

$ 1,200,1 50 

192,613 
4,959 

173,392 
162,014 
475,71 1 

89,443 

1,098,132 

141 ,288 
12,951 

1,252,371 

s (52,221) 
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